
Agenda Descriptions: The Agenda descriptions are intended to give notice to members of the public of a general summary of items of business to be transacted
or discussed.

Public Comments: At this time, members of the public may address the Taxpayer Oversight Committee (TOC) regarding any items within the subject matter
jurisdiction of the TOC, provided that no action may be taken on off-agenda items unless authorized by law. Comments shall be limited to three (3) minutes per

person, unless different time limits are set by the Chairman, subject to the approval of the TOC.

Any person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should contact the OCTA at (714) 560 5611,

no less than two (2) business days prior to this meeting to enable OCTA to make reasonable arrangements to assure accessibility to this meeting.

AGENDA

1. Welcome

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Approval of Minutes/Attendance Report for October 11, 2022

4. Action Items

A. M2 Quarterly Revenue & Expenditure Report (September)

Sean Murdock, Director, Finance and Administration

Recommended Action: Receive and File

5. Presentation Items

A. Measure M2 2022 Update: Next 10 Delivery Plan

Francesca Ching, Measure M Program Manager

B. OC Streetcar Update

Tresa Oliveri, Public Outreach

6. OCTA Staff Updates (5 Minutes)

A. I-5 South County Improvements Project – Chris Boucly, Public Outreach

B. Staff Liaison – Alice Rogan, Marketing and Public Outreach Director

7. Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee Report

8. Audit Subcommittee Report

9. Environmental Oversight Committee Report

10.Committee Member Reports

11. Public Comments*

12. Adjournment

The next meeting will be held on February 14, 2023 at 5pm

Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight Committee
December 13, 2022 @ 5:00 p.m.







INFORMATION ITEMS

Staff Report Title Board Meeting Date

1. Measure M2 Streets and Roads Program Milestone October 10, 2022

2. First Quarter Fiscal Year 2022-23 Capital Action Plan
Performance Metrics

November 14, 2022

3. Measure M2 Annual Eligibility Review November 14, 2022

4. Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs -
Project X Tier 1 2022 Call for Projects Programming
Recommendations

November 14, 2022

5. Interstate 405 Improvement Project Update November 14, 2022

6. Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program
Update

November 14, 2022

Measure M2 Taxpayer Oversight Committee

https://octa.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=5863182&GUID=2A742D48-CF9D-4256-B2DE-DC3F5DE01C2C&Options=&Search=
https://octa.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=5921055&GUID=1A5657C5-3F04-424D-B567-8B31237DC970&Options=&Search=
https://octa.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=5921128&GUID=2479E5A0-7208-44F7-A306-01FBFFCBC116&Options=&Search=
https://octa.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=5921129&GUID=C8D90374-DF2F-413D-BE0F-2E20B3DD3D05&Options=&Search=
https://octa.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=5921131&GUID=C2338214-9765-4D3E-B374-5C15D8BEF2A2&Options=&Search=
https://octa.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=5921132&GUID=7C659A91-52E7-4C9C-9985-C7E9D4E8560F&Options=&Search=


Measure M Taxpayer Oversight Committee
Orange County Transportation Authority
550 S. Main Street, Orange CA, Room 07

October 11, 2022 @ 5:00 p.m.

MEETING MINUTES

Committee Members Present:
Frank Davies, Orange County Auditor-Controller, Chair
Naresh D. Patel, First District Representative
Harry Sloan, Second District Representative
Mark Kizzar, Second District Representative
Kirk Watilo, Third District Representative
Joseph McCarthy, Third District Representative
Ajay Khetani, Fourth District Representative
Mark W. Eisenberg, Fifth District Representative
Shannon O’Toole, Fifth District Representative

Committee Members Absent:
Andrew Ramirez, First District Representative
Rasik N. Patel, Fourth District Representative

Orange County Transportation Authority Staff Present:
Alice Rogan, Director, Marketing & Public Outreach
Allison Imler, Community Relations Specialist
Charvalen Alacar, Section Manager, Planning
Christina Byrne, Public Outreach Department Manager
Cynthia Morales, Transportation Funding Analyst, Planning
Francesca Ching, Measure M Program Manager
Kia Mortazavi, Executive Director of Planning
Sean Murdock, Director of Finance and Administration



Taxpayer Oversight Committee Page 2
Minutes/Attendance Report for October 11, 2022

1. Welcome

Chair Frank Davies called the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA)
Taxpayer Oversight Committee (TOC) meeting to order.

2. Approval of Minutes/Attendance Report for August 9, 2022

A motion was made by Ajay Khetani, seconded by Joseph McCarthy and passed by
those present to approve the Minutes/Attendance Report.

3. Action Items

Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee Eligibility Report

Shannon O’Toole, Annual Eligibility Subcommittee Chair said the Measure M2
Ordinance requires all local agencies in Orange County to annually satisfy eligibility
requirements to receive M2 net revenues. As such, the AER subcommittee convened
on September 27th with OCTA staff to complete its review process of applicable
eligibility submittals.

She said as part of the current review cycle, the AER subcommittee affirmed its receipt
and review of the Pavement Management Plans for applicable local agencies in
Orange County. Accordingly, the AER Subcommittee recommendation to the TOC is
to now affirm the TOC’s receipt and review of these M2 eligibility materials, which are
provided as attachments in today’s staff report. Upon TOC approval of the
recommendation before it today, OCTA staff will then advance the results of this
review to the OCTA Regional Planning and Highways Committee and Board in
November 2022, for a final finding that all 35 Orange County local agencies be
deemed eligible to continue receiving net M2 revenues.

A motion was made by Harry Sloan, seconded by Mark W. Eisenberg and passed by
those present to affirm receipt and review of the Annual Eligibility Review
Subcommittee Eligibility Report.

Committee Member Comments:
A committee member asked who grades the roads and who decides how much money
cities get based upon the road conditions. Kia Mortazavi responded monies are not
based on the grade of the pavement; it is an incentive-based program to encourage
cities to keep pavement at, or better, than existing conditions, which can allow the
cities competing for monies to reduce the amount of their local match.



Taxpayer Oversight Committee Page 3
Minutes/Attendance Report for October 11, 2022

4. Presentation Items

A. Sales Tax Forecast
Sean Murdock, Director, Finance and Administration provided an overview on this
item.

Committee Member Comments:
A committee member asked if the numbers presented were created before the
economic forecast that suggests we are headed into an economic recession. Sean
Murdock said they received the data in May.

A committee member asked if the forecasted $15 billion would be sufficient to fund
projects through the end of Measure M. Sean Murdock replied OCTA does believe
they will meet the promises of Measure M, and contingency dollars will be
earmarked for future uncertainties.

A committee member asked what percentage of sales tax revenue comes from
small businesses as there appears to be a downturn in the number of small
businesses. Sean Murdock replied he did not have that data and would ask
MuniServices.

B. Measure M2 Next 10 Delivery Plan: Market Conditions Key Indicators Analysis
Francesca Ching, Measure M Program Manager provided an overview on this item.

Committee Member Comments:
A committee member asked if the contracts involving Measure M monies are fixed-
price contracts. Francesca Ching responded the contracts are fixed-price and the
risk lies with the contractor, but OCTA is subject to the submittal of change orders.
She said there are several anticipated freeway projects that will go out to bid within
the next two years, so OCTA is accounting for the potential cost risks.

A committee member asked if OCTA expedited the award of contracts due to the
expected rise in costs. Francesca Ching responded no; the existing schedule is
being followed. Alice Rogan added projects are being expedited whenever possible
but are subject to the timeframe of the processes and procedures within the phases
of a project.

A committee member asked if the fixed-price contract model would need to change
as contractors may not agree to a fixed price having seen the same data. Alice
Rogan responded that is to be determined.

A committee member asked if any contractors have walked off the job stating they
are unable to economically fulfil the obligation. Alice Rogan responded no.



Taxpayer Oversight Committee Page 4
Minutes/Attendance Report for October 11, 2022

C. Measure M2 Streets and Roads Milestone
Francesca Ching, Measure M Program Manager provided an overview on this item.

Committee Member Comments:
A committee member asked what percentage of signal synchronization has been
completed under Measure M. Francesca Ching responded that traffic patterns are
always changing, so signals often have to get retimed and it is at the city’s discretion
to submit applications for these projects. To date, 621 miles has been synchronized
that are directly attributable to M2 dollars; with additional leveraged external
funding, over 838 miles have been synchronized.

5. OCTA Staff Update

Alice Rogan, Marketing and Public Outreach Director provided an update on the TOC
attendance policy.

Committee Member Comments:
A committee member asked if there was a virtual option for members not able to attend
in person. Alice Rogan responded no, due to the requirements of the Brown Act.

6. Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee Report

Shannon O’Toole, Annual Eligibility Subcommittee Chair item said the subcommittee
will meet next in March 2023. At that time, the Subcommittee will receive and review
M2 Expenditure Reports for fiscal year 2021-2022. Upon completion of the
Subcommittee’s review, the M2 Expenditure Reports will be advanced to this
committee for its receipt and review.

7. Audit Subcommittee Report

Frank Davies, Orange County Auditor-Controller stated there was no report.

8. Environmental Oversight Committee Report

Ajay Khetani said the 2021 Conservation Plan Annual Report has been released and
is available online. This report includes the tracking of impacts associated with covered
freeway improvement projects and other management and monitoring activities on the
Preserves. It also includes the status and activities on the Preserves, progress of the
restoration projects, and Conservation Plan administration and public outreach
activities. OCTA is in compliance and on target with the Conservation Plan
commitments.

The next OCTA hike is taking place on Saturday, Nov. 5 at the Pacific Horizon
Preserve in Laguna Beach and the next ride will take place on Saturday, Nov.19 at
the Trabuco Rose Preserve in Trabuco Canyon.



Taxpayer Oversight Committee Page 5
Minutes/Attendance Report for October 11, 2022

9. Committee Member Reports

There were no committee member reports.

10.Public Comments

There were no public comments.

11.Adjournment

Chair Frank Davies adjourned the meeting.

The next meeting will be held on December 13, 2022, at 5 p.m.



Taxpayer Oversight Committee
Fiscal Year 2022-2023
Attendance Record

Absences Pending Approval

Meeting Date Name Reason

October 11, 2022 Andrew Ramirez

October 11, 2022 Rasik N. Patel

X = Present E = Excused Absence * = Absence Pending Approval U = Unexcused Absence -- = Resigned

Meeting Date
July 9 Aug. Sept. 11 Oct. Nov. 13 Dec Jan. 14 Feb. March 11 Apr. May 13 Jun.

Naresh D. Patel X X X

Andrew Ramirez X X *

Harry Sloan X X X

Mark Kizzar X X X

Joseph McCarthy X E X

Kirk Watilo X X X

Fairport

Rasik N. Patel X X *

Ajay Khetani X X X

Shannon O’Toole X X X

Mark W. Eisenberg X X X

Frank Davies X X







Schedule 1

Period from
Quarter Ended Year to Date Inception to

($ in thousands) Sept 30, 2022 Sept 30, 2022 Sept 30, 2022
(A) (B)

Revenues:
Sales taxes $ 112,898 $ 112,898 $ 3,614,831
Other agencies' share of Measure M2 costs:

Project related 7,246 7,246 797,808
Non-project related - - 453

Interest:
Operating:

Project related 257 257 3,757
Non-project related 1,338 1,338 71,406

Bond proceeds - - 87,219
Debt service 54 54 1,141
Commercial paper - - 395

Capital grants - - -
Right-of-way leases 65 65 1,548
Proceeds on sale of assets held for resale - - 13,428
Donated assets held for resale

Project related - - 2,071
Non-project related - - -

Miscellaneous:
Project related - - 331
Non-project related - - 130

Total revenues 121,858 121,858 4,594,518

Expenditures:
Supplies and services:

Sales tax administration fees 839 839 36,220

Professional services:
Project related 4,569 4,569 492,390

Non-project related 3 3 36,052
Administration costs:

Project related 2,811 2,811 108,056

Non-project related:
Salaries and Benefits 1,068 1,068 36,862
Other 1,663 1,663 62,263

Other:
Project related 15 15 5,856
Non-project related 22 22 5,310

Payments to local agencies:
Project related 16,530 16,530 1,249,979

Non-project related - - -
Capital outlay:

Project related (17,042) (17,042) 1,960,208
Non-project related - - 32

Debt service:
Principal payments on long-term debt - - 75,550
Interest on long-term debt and

commercial paper 17,474 17,474 302,101

Total expenditures 27,952 27,952 4,370,879

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 93,906 93,906 223,639

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out:

Project related (8,050) (8,050) (453,967)

Non-project related - - -
Transfers in:

Project related 521 521 337,189
Non-project related - - -

Bond proceeds - - 804,625
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent - - (45,062)

Total other financing sources (uses) (7,529) (7,529) 642,785

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures
and other sources (uses) $ 86,377 $ 86,377 $ 866,424

Measure M2

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

as of September 30, 2022

(Unaudited)

1



Schedule 2

Period from Period from

Inception October 1, 2022

Quarter Ended Year to Date through through

Sept 30, 2022 Sept 30, 2022 Sept 30, 2022 March 31, 2041

($ in thousands) (actual) (actual) (actual) (forecast) Total

(C.1) (D.1) (E.1) (F.1)

Revenues:

Sales taxes $ 112,898 $ 112,898 $ 3,614,831 $ 11,431,307 $ 15,046,138

Operating interest 1,338 1,338 71,406 445,693 517,099

Subtotal 114,236 114,236 3,686,237 11,877,000 15,563,237

Other agencies share of M2 costs - - 453 - 453

Miscellaneous - - 130 - 130

Total revenues 114,236 114,236 3,686,820 11,877,000 15,563,820

Administrative expenditures:

Sales tax administration fees 839 839 36,220 100,708 136,928

Professional services 3 3 32,277 105,355 137,632

Administration costs: - - - -

Salaries and Benefits 1,068 1,068 36,862 117,279 154,141

Other 1,663 1,663 62,263 197,816 260,079

Other 22 22 2,290 7,403 9,693

Capital outlay - - 32 - 32

Environmental cleanup 117 117 48,076 228,590 276,666

Total expenditures 3,712 3,712 218,020 757,151 975,171

Net revenues $ 110,524 $ 110,524 $ 3,468,800 $ 11,119,849 $ 14,588,649

(C.2) (D.2) (E.2) (F.2)

Bond revenues:

Proceeds from issuance of bonds $ - $ - $ 804,625 $ - $ 804,625

Interest revenue from bond proceeds - - 87,219 66,278 153,497

Interest revenue from debt service funds 54 54 1,141 3,250 4,391

Interest revenue from commercial paper - - 395 - 395

Total bond revenues 54 54 893,380 69,528 962,908

Financing expenditures and uses:

Professional services - - 3,775 - 3,775

Payment to refunded bond escrow - - 45,062 - 45,062

Bond debt principal - - 75,550 804,486 880,036

Bond debt and other interest expense 17,474 17,474 302,101 458,584 760,685

Other - - 3,020 - 3,020

Total financing expenditures and uses 17,474 17,474 429,508 1,263,070 1,692,578

Net bond revenues (debt service) $ (17,420) $ (17,420) $ 463,872 $ (1,193,542) $ (729,670)

Measure M2

Schedule of Calculations of Net Revenues and Net Bond Revenues (Debt Service)

as of September 30, 2022

(Unaudited)

1



Schedule 3

Measure M2

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Summary

as of September 30, 2022

(Unaudited)

Net Revenues Expenditures Reimbursements

through Total through through Net

Project Description Sept 30, 2022 Net RevenuesSept 30, 2022 Sept 30, 2022 M2 Cost

(G) (H) (I) (J) (K) (L)

($ in thousands)

A I-5 Santa Ana Freeway Interchange Improvements $ 136,723 $ 575,013 10,907 $ 8,786 $ 2,121

B I-5 Santa Ana/SR-55 to El Toro 87,328 367,275 20,079 11,947 8,132

C I-5 San Diego/South of El Toro 182,395 767,092 299,427 52,240 247,187

D I-5 Santa Ana/San Diego Interchange Upgrades 75,052 315,646 2,778 527 2,251

E SR-22 Garden Grove Freeway Access Improvements 34,908 146,812 5 - 5

F SR-55 Costa Mesa Freeway Improvements 106,470 447,776 65,120 25,645 39,475

G SR-57 Orange Freeway Improvements 75,256 316,502 52,142 12,434 39,708

H SR-91 Improvements from I-5 to SR-57 40,726 171,281 34,959 824 34,135

I SR-91 Improvements from SR-57 to SR-55 121,160 509,560 46,205 43,016 3,189

J SR-91 Improvements from SR-55 to County Line 102,455 430,893 18,250 16,723 1,527

K I-405 Improvements between I-605 to SR-55 312,078 1,312,498 1,278,326 284,516 993,810

L I-405 Improvements between SR-55 to I-5 93,001 391,131 9,205 6,954 2,251

M I-605 Freeway Access Improvements 5,818 24,469 4,829 16 4,813

N All Freeway Service Patrol 43,635 183,515 6,253 - 6,253

Freeway Mitigation 74,579 313,656 59,157 4,592 54,565

Subtotal Projects 1,491,584 6,273,119 1,907,642 468,220 1,439,422

Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service - - 151,106 - 151,106

Total Freeways $ 1,491,584 $ 6,273,119 2,058,748 $ 468,220 $ 1,590,528
% 48.4%

O Regional Capacity Program $ 346,884 $ 1,458,883 802,474 $ 507,884 $ 294,590

P Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program 138,748 583,528 98,143 15,975 82,168

Q Local Fair Share Program 624,384 2,625,957 603,161 77 603,084

Subtotal Projects 1,110,016 4,668,368 1,503,778 523,936 979,842

Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service - - 44,274 - 44,274

Total Street and Roads Projects $ 1,110,016 $ 4,668,368 1,548,052 $ 523,936 $ 1,024,116
% 31.2%

Freeways (43% of Net Revenues)

Street and Roads Projects (32% of Net Revenues)



Schedule 3

Measure M2

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Summary

as of September 30, 2022

(Unaudited)

Net Revenues Expenditures Reimbursements

through Total through through Net

Project Description Sept 30, 2022 Net RevenuesSept 30, 2022 Sept 30, 2022 M2 Cost

(G) (H) (I) (J) (K) (L)

($ in thousands)

R High Frequency Metrolink Service $ 333,373 $ 1,455,001 430,918 $ 98,896 $ 332,022

S Transit Extensions to Metrolink 306,215 1,287,840 154,269 2,133 152,136

T Metrolink Gateways 36,085 74,566 98,220 60,956 37,264

U Expand Mobility Choices for Seniors and Persons

with Disabilities 114,514 505,863 110,412 88 110,324

V Community Based Transit/Circulators 69,358 291,696 15,969 1,537 14,432

W Safe Transit Stops 7,655 32,196 1,172 26 1,146

Subtotal Projects 867,200 3,647,162 810,960 163,636 647,324

Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service - - 24,761 - 24,761

Total Transit Projects $ 867,200 $ 3,647,162 835,721 $ 163,636 $ 672,085
% 20.4%

$ 3,468,800 $ 14,588,649 4,442,521 $ 1,155,792 $ 3,286,729

Revenues Expenditures Reimbursements

through Total through through Net

Project Description Sept 30, 2022 Revenues Sept 30, 2022 Sept 30, 2022 M2 Cost

(G) (H.1) (I.1) (J) (K) (L)

($ in thousands)

X Clean Up Highway and Street Runoff

that Pollutes Beaches $ 73,725 $ 311,265 48,076 $ 311 $ 47,765

Net (Bond Revenue)/Debt Service - - - - -

Total Environmental Cleanup $ 73,725 $ 311,265 48,076 $ 311 $ 47,765
% 1.3%

Collect Sales Taxes (1.5% of Sales Taxes) $ 54,222 $ 225,692 36,220 $ - $ 36,220

% 1.0%

Oversight and Annual Audits (1% of Revenues) $ 36,862 $ 155,632 36,862 $ - $ 36,862
% 1.0%

Taxpayer Safeguards and Audits

Transit Projects (25% of Net Revenues)

Measure M2 Program

Environmental Cleanup (2% of Revenues)







Orange County Transportation Authority
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California  92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282)

November 7, 2022

To: Executive Committee

From: Darrell E. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer

Subject: Measure M2 2022 Update: Next 10 Delivery Plan

Overview

The Measure M2 Next 10 Delivery Plan aims to strategically deliver Measure M2
freeway, roadway, transit, and environmental projects through fiscal year 2032.
A comprehensive review of the M2 Next 10 Delivery Plan was recently
conducted to incorporate updates to the Measure M2 sales tax revenue forecast,
external funding assumptions, and project cost estimates. As a result of this
review, staff has prepared the 2022 update of the Measure M2 Next 10 Delivery
Plan, which continues to ensure the realization of Measure M2 commitments,
maintain fiscal sustainability, and strives to deliver transportation benefits early.
The recommended update is presented to the Board of Directors for review and
approval.

Recommendations

A. Adopt the 2022 Measure M2 Next 10 Delivery Plan.

B. Direct staff to work with Metrolink to develop a financially sustainable
service plan.

C. Direct staff to continue to monitor revenue and project cost shifts that
could affect the delivery plan and return to the Board of Directors with
changes if necessary.

Background

On November 7, 2006, Orange County voters, by nearly 70 percent, approved
the Renewed Measure M Transportation Investment Plan (Plan) for the
Measure M2 (M2) one-half cent sales tax for a period of 30 years through 2041.
The M2 Plan defines the general scope of the programs and projects that are to
be delivered, which includes four primary elements: freeways, streets and roads,
transit, and environmental programs. The M2 Plan summary page is included as
Attachment A.



Measure M2 2022 Update: Next 10 Delivery Plan Page 2

The Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) is committed to
fulfilling the promises made to voters in the M2 Plan. This effort began with
preparatory plans to expedite the delivery of M2 projects and programs. In
addition, the delivery plans validate OCTA’s ability to deliver the M2 Plan
consistent with commitments to voters, outline a near-term work plan to promote
effectiveness and efficiency, establish a common understanding among M2
stakeholders, set a baseline upon which future changes are measured, and
provide the basis for the preparation of OCTA’s annual budgets for capital
projects. To date, the Board of Directors (Board) has adopted three delivery
plans: Early Action Plan in 2007, M2020 Plan in 2012 (intended to go through
2020 but replaced in 2016 to address changes in M2 revenues), and the Next 10
Delivery Plan (Next 10 Plan) in 2016, which was last updated in 2021 and spanned
fiscal year (FY) 2020-21 to FY 2029-30. The intent is for the Next 10 Plan to be
a living document and provide a ten-year outlook on revenues, project costs, and
delivery schedules. The draft 2022 Next 10 Plan update spans FY 2022-23 to
FY 2031-32.

OCTA receives annual updates to the M2 sales tax revenue forecasts.
On September 26, 2022, the 2022 M2 sales tax revenue forecast of $15 billion
was presented to the Board, which is a 13.6 percent, or a $1.8 billion dollar
increase from what was assumed in the 2021 Next 10 Plan. Orange County’s
economy continued to emerge strongly from the coronavirus (COVID-19)
pandemic in FY 2021-22. As a result, sales tax collections for FY 2021-22 grew
by 23 percent to $424 million, which is the highest annual sales tax collection for
M2. Future year annual growth rates are forecasted to average approximately
3.29 percent. While this forecast indicates recovery, staff will continue to monitor
variables that could impact short- and long-term M2 revenues.

OCTA also monitors construction market conditions key indicators to provide
insight on potential construction cost drivers that could affect projects delivered
within the Next 10 Plan timeframe. On October 10, 2022, the fall market
conditions update was presented to the Board, which indicated that OCTA may
experience a high inflationary cost environment in 2023 and 2024.

Discussion

The 2022 Next 10 Plan, as well as prior delivery plans, were developed based
on three fundamental principles: fulfill the commitment to voters, ensure fiscal
sustainability, and implement projects and programs effectively and
expeditiously. First, the annual review of the Next 10 Plan tests and validates
whether the complete M2 Program can be delivered consistent with the
commitments to voters. Second, financial analysis of the latest revenue forecast



Measure M2 2022 Update: Next 10 Delivery Plan Page 3

and project cost information ensures that the rate of expenditures is financially
sustainable and that M2 can withstand economic fluctuations over the life of M2
through 2041. Third, the Next 10 Plan aims to implement projects and programs
effectively and expeditiously so the public can realize the benefits of M2 as early
as possible.

The 2022 update of the Next 10 Plan, included as Attachment B, incorporates
the $15 billion 2022 M2 revenue forecast, programmed external revenues, and
refined project information. Through this effort, OCTA can confirm that the M2
Plan remains deliverable; however, this update suggests that Metrolink
operations require close monitoring. Additional details on Metrolink are included
under the transit section of this report. The 2022 update also continues progress
on near-term projects and prepares additional projects for delivery while
optimizing the level of debt financing. Prudent annual ending balances are
maintained along with an economic uncertainties allowance to address potential
revenue or cost fluctuations. An M2 cash flow summary chart showing a positive
ending balance through 2041 is included as Attachment C. The 2022 Next 10 Plan
deliverables along with progress to date are included as Attachment D.

Sales tax revenues and market pressures will continue to fluctuate due to
unpredictable changes in the economy. OCTA will also need to monitor and
manage regulatory risks. However, these uncertainties do not alter the M2
commitments. Some of the strategies that OCTA will continue to employ to
uphold voter-commitments include using innovative project delivery methods,
managing the scope and cost of remaining freeway projects in conjunction with
the California Department of Transportation, working proactively with
stakeholders and communities, continuing to closely monitor market conditions,
and pursuing external grants to supplement M2 funds.

The following sections provide a brief overview of what is included in the 2022
Next 10 Plan.

Freeway Program

The M2 Freeway Program consists of 13 projects listed in the M2 Plan, which
have been subdivided into 30 project segments for delivery purposes. The
included projects have defined project scopes and cannot be scaled to available
revenue.

The 2022 Next 10 Plan will continue the progress on the freeway projects
advanced in the 2019 Next 10 Plan. As of June 2022, 13 project segments have
been completed, five are in construction, and seven are initiating
design/readying for construction. The remaining five project segments are
currently in various stages of project development. With this progress,



Measure M2 2022 Update: Next 10 Delivery Plan Page 4

OCTA remains on track to complete 26 of the 30 freeway projects, effectively
87 percent of the M2 Freeway Program by FY 2029-30 and ten years in advance
of the plan horizon. This outcome fulfills the goal of delivering project benefits
early, despite multiple extraordinary financial events that have affected M2
revenues. The 2022 Next 10 Plan also reviewed the four remaining M2 Freeway
Program projects. These projects are planned to be delivered by 2041 and will
be reevaluated each year as part of the Next 10 Plan for earlier delivery.

For the 2022 Next 10 Plan, two changes in financial assumptions merit additional
attention.

• The 2022 Next 10 Plan does not assume any additional bond issuances
through 2041. This is a reduction from the single $200 million bond
issuance in 2023 that was assumed in last year’s update. The change is
driven by the projected increase in M2 revenues and the refinement of
project expense cash flows.

• The 2022 Next 10 Plan allows for economic uncertainty to account for the
forecasted high inflationary cost environment in 2023 and 2024.
Additionally, the updated sales tax revenue forecast also increases the
long-term allowance for economic uncertainties, which provides
additional security to weather economic fluctuations.

Included in the M2 Freeway Program is the Environmental Mitigation Program.
OCTA has purchased seven properties and is addressing the balance of the
freeway program mitigation needs through restoration projects on 12
publicly-owned properties. The 2022 Next 10 Plan accounts for the recurring
costs for the management and support of the program, as well as an annual
deposit of approximately $2.9 million to fund a non-wasting endowment. While
the performance of the endowment fund may affect the timeframe for full funding,
current projections indicate that OCTA remains on track to meet the endowment
target of $46.2 million in FY 2027-28. Regular reports on the status of the
endowment are provided to the Board as a standalone item.

Streets and Roads Program

The M2 streets and roads elements are programmatic and scale to available
revenues. The M2 Streets and Roads Program includes three programs:
Regional Capacity Program (RCP {Project O}), Regional Traffic Signal
Synchronization Program (RTSSP {Project P}), and the Local Fair Share
Program (Project Q). The RCP makes funding available on an annual basis to
address roadway bottlenecks and close gaps in the regional roadway network.
The RTSSP provides ongoing funding support to ensure a network of 2,000
intersections across the County remain coordinated to minimize stop-and-go
traffic. Lastly, the Local Fair Share Program will continue to provide flexible



Measure M2 2022 Update: Next 10 Delivery Plan Page 5

funding to local jurisdictions to improve and maintain streets or for other local
transportation priorities including bicycle trails, sidewalks, or community transit
services. The assumptions for the funding of the three programs remain on a
pay-as-you-go basis. The 2022 Next 10 Plan assumes annual calls for
projects (call) for Project O and Project P, as well as provide a reliable, flexible
funding source for local jurisdictions for transportation improvements through
2041.

Transit Program

The M2 Transit Program includes funding for Metrolink operations, station and
infrastructure improvements (Project R), implementation of the OC Streetcar
(Project S), expanded mobility for seniors and persons with disabilities (Project U),
funding for community-based transit circulators (Project V), and enhanced
passenger amenities for Orange County’s busiest transit stops (Project W).

Close monitoring of Metrolink operations is necessary to ensure sustainability
through 2041. As shared with the Board earlier this year, Metrolink ridership has
struggled to recover, continuing the impacts of farebox revenues and cost
recovery. To exacerbate this shortfall, operating costs have increased.
Consequently, Metrolink has postponed the full service restoration that was
previously scheduled for implementation in October 2022 in order to manage
costs while also working on campaigns to attract more riders. However, many
variables affect ridership recovery, such as prevalence of flexible remote work
policies. Without changes in service levels, ridership growth, and operations and
rehabilitation costs or availability of additional external funds, the current service
cannot be sustained beyond FY 2035-36. Staff will closely monitor ridership and
these variables. The Next 10 Plan is reviewed annually, which will provide OCTA
many opportunities to update and adjust assumptions as necessary. OCTA will
continue to actively engage with Metrolink and the other member agencies to
monitor ridership levels and the corresponding financial impacts to M2.

Another impact to Metrolink in Orange County is the on-going railroad track
stabilization effort in the City of San Clemente. In September 2021, a failing slope
severely degraded the railroad track structure. Emergency repair efforts were
taken between late 2021 and early 2022. However, recent higher tidal events
coupled with movement of an ancient slide have continued to impact the stability
of the track, leading to a suspension of passenger rail service in this area. On
October 3, 2022, the Board adopted a resolution to authorize OCTA to take all
necessary actions to address the emergency need for railroad track stabilization.
These repairs are funded from the commuter rail fund and some state
emergency funds for this phase of the work. Long-term solutions need to be
developed to ensure the ability to provide rail service in this portion of the County,
the cost for which is undetermined at present.  Future updates to the
Next 10 Plan will need to consider the financial implications of the long-term track
improvement needs.



Measure M2 2022 Update: Next 10 Delivery Plan Page 6

Project S, transit extensions to Metrolink, funds the capital and long-term
operating cost of the OC Streetcar, which is slated to be operational in 2024. In
addition, the amount of funding through 2041 for any additional extensions to
Metrolink has been updated from approximately $738 million in the
2021 Next 10 Plan to approximately $788 million in the current plan.

Project U is made up of three programs: Senior Mobility Program, Senior
Non-Emergency Medical Transportation Program, and Fare Stabilization
Program. While all three programs adjust to available revenue, the Fare
Stabilization Program requires a minimum level of funding. This presented a
challenge because that minimum level of funding did not contemplate significant
decreases in sales tax revenues. OCTA proactively addressed this requirement
with an early amendment to M2 Ordinance No. 3 to provide additional funding
by transferring the savings from completed transit projects to this program. The
2022 Next 10 Plan projects adequate and stable funding for these programs for
the duration of the M2 program.

Both Project V and Project W are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. While the
majority of Project V services were suspended due to COVID-19, most have
since reinitiated service. OCTA continues to communicate with local cities to
support successful existing services and evaluate opportunities for future service
additions. Through Project W, OCTA will continue to have the capacity to invest
in amenities at the County’s busiest transit stops for the duration of the
M2 Program.

Environmental Cleanup Program

The Environmental Cleanup Program (ECP) also adjusts to available revenues
and is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. ECP projects prevent the flow of trash
and debris into waterways. The 2022 Next 10 Plan assumes continued
commitment to annual water quality spot-improvement grants. Funding for larger
scale, system-level improvements are assumed to occur in 2024, with future
grant opportunities based on project success, local jurisdiction interest, and
detailed cash flow analysis.



Measure M2 2022 Update: Next 10 Delivery Plan Page 7

Key Risks and Actions to Protect M2 Delivery

Delivering a major program such as M2 is not without challenges. OCTA remains
cognizant and continues to monitor delivery risks. A table of risks is included on
pages six through eight in Attachment B, with the two key risks highlighted below.

• Funding – While the 2022 sales tax revenue forecast of $15 billion is good
news, a significant amount of risk remains with the high inflationary cost
environment forecasted in 2023 and 2024; these increases in expenses
could net out the forecasted increase in revenues.

Current external funding commitments are assumed in the M2 cash flow
for the 2022 Next 10 Plan, but prospects of future revenues for highway
projects are uncertain. State transportation policies continue to shift
towards projects that reduce automobile travel, which could affect access
to currently programmed, as well as future, state funding opportunities for
the M2 Freeway Program. These policies are more suited for the
advancement of transit projects where OCTA has more flexibility in
defining the scale of project scopes. However, external funding
opportunities for transit capital projects are contingent on defined project
scopes. Future updates of the Next 10 Plan may include outcome of
transit project development activities.

• Regulatory Risks – Current state planning and project approval policies
place great emphasis on reducing travel by automobile and encourage
project alternatives that promote short trips where possible, such as travel
by transit, bicycling or walking, and use of zero-emission vehicles. These
requirements will affect the project environmental review process. The
majority of M2 freeway projects, where this risk could manifest itself, have
obtained the necessary approvals, but if the approvals require a review
or revision, these new requirements could impact delivery.

Updated revenue assumptions and commitments result in a delivery plan that
ensures the M2 promises to voters are upheld. This balanced plan not only
allows OCTA to maintain current commitments but will also allow OCTA to
weather reasonable changes to cost or revenues in the future while reducing
reliance on debt financing.



Measure M2 2022 Update: Next 10 Delivery Plan Page 8

Summary

Staff has reviewed and updated the Next 10 Plan with the $15 billion forecast,
revised external funding, and refined project information. Strategic financial
decisions to date result in a delivery plan that fulfills OCTA’s commitment to the
voters of Orange County. The 2022 updated Next 10 Plan is presented for Board
review and approval.

Attachments

A. Measure M Investment Summary
B. 2022 Update, Next 10 Delivery Plan, 2023-2032, Draft
C. 2022 Updated Next 10 Delivery Plan, Measure M2 Program Cash

Balance
D. 2022 Updated Next 10 Delivery Plan, Progress on Deliverables

Prepared by: Approved by:

Francesca Ching Kia Mortazavi
Section Manager,
Measure M2 Program Management Office
(714) 560-5625

Executive Director, Planning
(714) 560-5741



RE
NE

WED

I-5 Santa Ana Freeway Interchange Improvements $470.0

I-5 Santa Ana/San Diego Freeway Improvements 1,185.2

SR-22 Garden Grove Freeway Access Improvements 120.0

SR-55 Costa Mesa Freeway Improvements 366.0

SR-57 Orange Freeway Improvements 258.7

SR-91 Riverside Freeway Improvements 908.7*

I-405 San Diego Freeway Improvements 1,392.5*

I-605 Freeway Access Improvements 20.0

All Freeway Service Patrol 150.0

Regional Capacity Program $1,132.8

Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program 453.1

Local Fair Share Program 2,039.1

High Frequency Metrolink Service $1,129.8*

Transit Extensions to Metrolink 1,000.0

Metrolink Gateways 57.9*

Expand Mobility Choices for Seniors and Persons with Disabilities 392.8*

Community Based Transit/Circulators 226.5

Safe Transit Stops 25.0

Clean Up Highway and Street Runoff that Pollutes Beaches $237.2

Collect Sales Taxes (State charges required by law) $178.0

Oversight and Annual Audits 118.6

Measure M
Investment Summary

Streets & Roads Projects (in millions) $3,625.0

Environmental Cleanup (in millions) $237.2

Transit Projects (in millions) $2,832.0

Taxpayer Safeguards and Audits (in millions) $296.6

A

E

F

G

H I J

K L

M

N

O

P

Q

X

S

T

U

V

W

Total (2005 dollars in millions) $11,861.9

2005 estimates
in millions

Freeway Projects (in millions) $4,871.1

COSTS
PROJECTSLOCATION

R

B C D

30 31

*Asterisk notes project estimates that have been amended since 2006.

PGrond
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT A

PGrond
Typewriter
I-5 - Interstate 5 / SR-22 - State Route 22 / SR-55 - State Route 55 / SR-57 - State Route 57 / SR-91 - State Route 91 / I-405 - Interstate 405 / I-605 - Interstate 605



1

A

ATTACHMENT B

DRAFT

DRAFT

ATTACHMENT B



i

On November 14, 2022, the Orange County Transportation Authority Board of
Directors will consider adoption of the Draft 2022 Updated Next 10 Delivery Plan
(Next 10 Plan). The 2022 update shifts the timeframe of the Next 10 Plan from
fiscal year (FY) 2020-21 through FY 2029-30 to FY 2022-23 through FY 2031-32. As

such, commitments have been reviewed and adjusted accordingly. The draft 2022
Updated Next 10 Plan also incorporates refined project information including cost
estimates, schedules, and available external funding.



ii

Printed November 2022

For the latest version of the Next 10 Plan,
including any edits or corrections,
please visit: www.octa.net/Next10

For status updates on M2 projects and programs,
including quarterly progress reports,

please visit: www.octa.net/m2

https://www.octa.net/Next10
https://www.octa.net/m2


iii

This page intentionally left blank



iv

Next 10 Plan Table of Contents

I. Introduction

Introduction .......................................................................................... 3
2022 Review............................................................................................. 5
Delivery Risks........................................................................................... 5
Guiding Principles..................................................................................... 8
Updated Next 10 Plan Deliverables.......................................................... 9
Oversight and Safeguards...................................................................... 14
Sustainable Communities Strategy......................................................... 15
Funding Assumptions ............................................................................. 16
Funding and Financing ........................................................................... 18
Future Outlook........................................................................................ 20

II. Measure M2 Transportation Investment Plan

Freeway Program
Map of Freeway Programs................................................................ 24
Project Schedules ............................................................................. 25
Program Fact Sheets (A – N)............................................................ 28
Freeway Environmental Mitigation Fact Sheet .................................. 64

Streets and Roads Program
Map of Streets and Roads Projects................................................... 71
Funding Chart ................................................................................... 72
Program Fact Sheets (O, P, and Q) .................................................. 73

Transit Program
Map of Transit Projects ..................................................................... 81
Project Schedules ............................................................................. 82
Program Fact Sheets (R, S, T, U, V, and W)..................................... 83

Environmental Cleanup Program
Next 10 Plan Project Schedule.......................................................... 97
Program Fact Sheet (X) .................................................................... 98

III. Appendix

Next 10 Plan Funding Assumptions...................................................... 103
Common Abbreviations ........................................................................ 108



v

This page intentionally left blank



vi



2

This page intentionally left blank



3

Introduction

On November 7, 2006, Orange County voters, by a margin of 69.7 percent, approved the
renewal of the Measure M one-half cent sales tax for transportation improvements. Voters
initially endorsed Measure M (M1) in 1990 with a sunset in 2011. With the approval of
Renewed Measure M (M2), the voters agreed to a continued investment of local tax
dollars in Orange County’s transportation infrastructure for another 30 years to 2041.

Since M2 (also branded externally as OC Go) approval, the Orange County
Transportation Authority (OCTA) Board of Directors (Board) has continued to pursue the
expeditious implementation of M2 through the adoption of delivery plans. These delivery
plans validate OCTA’s ability to deliver the entire slate of M2 plan elements, outline a
near-term work plan to promote effectiveness and efficiency, establish a common
understanding among M2 stakeholders, set a baseline upon which future changes are
measured, and provide the basis for the preparation of OCTA’s annual budgets for capital
projects. They are developed based on three fundamental principles: to fulfill the
commitments as promised to the voters, ensure fiscal sustainability, and implement
projects and programs effectively and expeditiously. The goal is to bring transportation
improvements to Orange County residents and commuters earlier, and as appropriate,
address changes in sales tax revenue projections through strategic financing and
augmenting the M2 Program with external revenue.

To date, there have been three delivery plans: Early Action Plan (EAP) adopted in 2007,
M2020 Plan adopted in 2012 (intended to go through 2020), and the Next 10 Delivery
Plan (Next 10 Plan) adopted on November 14, 2016. Due to significant changes in sales
tax revenue projections, the M2020 Plan was replaced after four years with the
Next 10 Plan that covered fiscal year (FY) 2016-17 through FY 2025-26. In
December 2020, the Board approved a shift of the Next 10 Plan timeframe to span
FY 2020-21 through FY 2029-30. The intent is for the Next 10 Plan to be a living document
with delivery timeframes shifted every two years to ensure revenue and project
information stay current. The 2022 update spans FY 2022-23 to FY 2031-32.

To ensure and reconfirm the ability to deliver M2 through 2041, annual reviews and
updates of the Next 10 Plan have taken place incorporating changes in sales tax revenue
forecast assumptions, external revenue, and project cost and schedule refinement.



4

A summary of the adopted plan and annual updates of the base assumptions follow:

• The 2016 adopted Next 10 Plan set M2 project and program priorities based on a
revenue forecast of $14.2 billion through 2041. The Next 10 Plan revenues were
augmented by net excess 91 Express Lanes revenue, in an amount not to exceed the
project costs for two eligible projects on State Route 91 (SR-91) – Project I between
State Route 57 (SR-57) and State Route 55 (SR-55) and Project J between
State Route 241 (SR-241) and the Riverside County Line. Net excess 91 Express
Lanes revenue is designated for improvements on the SR-91 corridor.

• The 2017 update incorporated a revised $13.5 billion revenue forecast and required
bonding adjustments and inclusion of the full amount of eligible excess 91 Express
Lanes revenue. The update also designated Project I as one of the priority projects
for advancement through construction.

• The 2018 update incorporated a revised $13.1 billion revenue forecast offset by an
early $300 million increase in captured external revenue. The update also responded
to construction market concerns of potential project cost increases in the freeway
program by incorporating a program level line item for economic uncertainty to ensure
OCTA could weather fluctuations in M2 revenue receipts. The 2018 update anticipated
up to four bond issuances during the Next 10 Plan period to accommodate market
changes if necessary.

• The 2019 update incorporated a revised $13.4 billion revenue forecast, which was the
first increase in the M2 forecast since 2014. The increase was driven by the growing
economy and the implementation of the Wayfair decision in California. The Wayfair
related legislation enabled the collection of sales tax for out-of-state transactions. As
a result of the decision, increased sales tax receipts were incorporated in the
short-term forecast provided by MuniServices, LLC, which increased the overall
long-term forecast.

• The 2020 update incorporated a revised $11.6 billion revenue forecast, the lowest
since M2 inception. The substantial decrease was driven by uncertainties regarding
the economic impacts of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. The update also
shifted the timeframe from FY 2016-17 through FY 2025-26 to FY 2020-21 through
FY 2029-30 for more strategic, forward-thinking planning and adjusted commitments
as appropriate. To maintain progress on near-term projects and ready additional
projects for delivery per Board direction, one bond issuance was anticipated.

• The 2021 update incorporated a revised $13.2 billion revenue forecast. While the
COVID-19 pandemic negatively impacted sales tax revenues through the first half of
FY 2020-21, the second half of the FY showed tremendous growth as the Orange
County economy began emerging from the pandemic. Sales tax collections for
FY 2021-22 grew by 8.6 percent to $345 million, which was the highest annual sales
tax collection for M2. As a result of higher sales tax collections, the 2021 update
reduced the amount of the one bond issuance anticipated.



5

2022 Review

The 2022 M2 sales tax revenue forecast of $15 billion was presented to the Board on
September 26, 2022. This represents a 13.6 percent, or a $1.8 billion dollar increase from
what was assumed in the 2021 Next 10 Plan. Orange County’s economy continued to
strongly emerge from the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic in FY 2021-22. As a result,
sales tax collections for FY 2021-22 grew by 23 percent to $424 million, which is the
highest annual sales tax collection for M2. Future year annual growth rates are forecasted
to average approximately 3.29 percent. While this forecast indicates recovery, staff will
continue to monitor variables that could impact short- and long-term M2 revenues.

Staff has reviewed and updated the cash flow for the complete M2 plan of projects and
programs. The 2022 update incorporates the higher M2 sales tax revenue forecast,
current programmed external revenues, revised bonding assumptions, and refined
project cost estimates. Through this process, staff confirms that the M2 Program remains
deliverable.

Next 10 Plan Delivery Risks

While the M2 Program continues to demonstrate financial viability, OCTA remains
cognizant of the delivery risks of M2 projects and programs. A table of identified risks are
included on pages 6 through 8 with two key risks highlighted below.

Funding – While the 2022 sales tax revenue forecast of $15 billion is good news, a
significant amount of risk remains with the high inflationary cost environment forecasted
in 2023 and 2024; these increases in expenses could net out the forecasted increase in
revenues. Current external funding commitments are assumed in the M2 cash flow for
the 2022 Next 10 Plan, but prospects of future revenues for highway projects are
uncertain. State transportation policies continue to shift towards projects that reduce
automobile travel, which could affect access to currently programmed as well as future
state funding opportunities for the M2 Freeway Program.

Regulatory Risks – Current state planning and project approval policies place great
emphasis on reducing travel by automobile and encourage project alternatives that
promote short trips where possible, travel by transit, bicycling or walking, and use of
zero-emission vehicles. These requirements will affect the project environmental review
process. The majority of M2 freeway projects, where this risk would manifest itself, have
obtained the necessary approvals, but if the approvals require a review or revision, these
new requirements could impact delivery.

A summary table of the risks, explanations, and suggested management actions are
identified on the following pages and are tracked and reported in the
M2 Quarterly Progress Reports presented to the Board, following each fiscal year quarter.



6

Risk Explanation Action

Moderate .. One to Watch

Financial

1 Sales tax revenues were

impacted by the Great

Recession and the COVID-19

pandemic. The 2022 M2

revenue forecast is $15 billion,

which is a $1.8 billion

(13.6 percent) year-over-year

increase from the 2021

forecast.

While the 2022 M2 revenue

forecast is higher, 19 years of

M2 delivery remain and

fluctuations in economic

conditions may affect future

revenue projections.

Staff will continue to monitor sales

tax revenue receipts to ensure

delivery of M2 as promised to

voters.

2 Reduced external funding

opportunities for the M2

freeway program.

State and federal priorities

continue to shift and favor

projects that reduce

automobile travel, which

could affect access to

currently programmed as well

as future external funding

opportunities for the M2

freeway projects.

Current external funding

commitments are assumed in the

M2 cash flow for the 2022 Next 10

Plan, but prospects of future

revenues for highway projects are

low.

3 Potential for an environment of

increasing cost for M2 capital

projects.

The fall 2022 update of the

Next 10 Plan Market

Conditions Forecast and Risk

Analysis reflects a high

inflationary environment in

2023 and 2024. This is driven

by inflation, increases in

construction wages, and

construction materials.

To further protect against potential

cost increases for capital projects,

11 percent program level expense

line items have been incorporated

in the 2022 M2 cash flow for an

economic uncertainty allowance.

The Next 10 Plan Market

Conditions Forecast and Risk

Analysis report is updated

biannually and provides a three-

year look ahead. OCTA will

continue to monitor bid results and

market conditions affecting project

costs.

4 Inability to scale the M2

Freeway Program to available

revenue and still deliver the M2

commitments.

The M2 Freeway Program

includes set project scopes

leaving limited flexibility in

what is delivered.

OCTA will work closely with the

California Department of

Transportation (Caltrans) to apply

value engineering strategies on

projects to manage costs.

5 Schedule and scope changes

on capital projects that impact

delivery and project costs.

Changes as a result of

updated highway standards,

new regulatory requirements,

or issues identified in the field

may impact scope, schedule,

and costs substantially.

OCTA will work closely with

project partners and project

contractors to limit changes in

scope and schedules.



7

Risk Explanation Action

6 Increase Southern California

Regional Rail Authority

(Metrolink) train service as an

alternative to driving within the

limits of available revenue.

COVID-19 has altered travel

behavior, which affect

ridership and revenue.

Operational cost of Metrolink

service continues to grow as

the system ages, track-

sharing arrangements with

BNSF Railway Company

(BNSF) are revised, and new

air quality requirements are

implemented.

External funding (one-time federal

funds through the Coronavirus

Aid, Relief and Economic Security

Act, Coronavirus Response and

Relief Supplemental

Appropriations Act, and

Infrastructure Investment and

Jobs Act) has helped alleviate

some near-term financial

concerns. OCTA will continue to

work closely with Metrolink and

member agencies to ensure cost

increases are minimized, while

continuing to seek external

revenue.

Resource

7 Substantial work underway in

the region has resulted in

significant demand for

professional and skilled labor

which may impact delivery given

the volume of the M2 capital

program.

The fall 2022 update of the

Next 10 Plan Market

Conditions Forecast and Risk

Analysis reflects a steep

decrease in unemployment

rates. If shortages continue,

project delivery costs could

rise but if additional labor

resources are available, it

may temper costs and reduce

delivery risk.

OCTA will monitor resources for

professional and skilled labor

needed for project delivery. Expert

and timely coordination between

OCTA and project partners is

imperative to manage this risk.

8 New operational responsibilities

with the OC Streetcar.

With the implementation of

the OC Streetcar service,

OCTA will be increasing its

overall role in operations.

To ensure success of the OC

Streetcar, OCTA hired a streetcar

operations manager with proven

start-up experience to oversee

start-up and daily operations. A

contractor with extensive

experience in operations of rail

systems was selected to handle

the startup and revenue operation

phases.



8

Risk Explanation Action

Climate

9 Climate-related hazards could

affect M2 investments.

OCTA has experienced

hazards affecting M2

investments. Recent events

include the 2022 Coastal Fire

which impacted the M2

Environmental Mitigation

Program (EMP) Pacific

Horizon Preserve and the

tidal events, ocean currents

and waves, and storm surges

which continue to affect

railroad track stabilization in

San Clemente.

OCTA has developed Fire

Management Plans for the seven

properties purchased as part of

the M2 Freeway EMP.

Additionally, on October 3, 2022,

the Board adopted a resolution to

authorize OCTA to take all

necessary actions to address the

emergency need for railroad track

stabilization.

Regulatory

10 Changing federal and state

directives could affect M2

freeway project approvals.

Current state planning and

project approval policies

place great emphasis on

reducing travel by automobile

and encourage project

alternatives that promote

short trips where possible,

travel by transit, bicycling or

walking, and use of zero-

emission vehicles. These

requirements will affect the

project environmental review

process.

The majority of M2 freeway

projects, where this risk would

manifest itself, have obtained the

necessary approvals. If the

approvals require a review or

revision, these new requirements

could impact delivery.

Guiding Principles

During the development of the EAP, guiding principles were established that set direction
for staff on establishing priorities for freeway project delivery. These guiding principles
continue to instruct us today and were used to identify projects to recommend moving
from the environmentally cleared/shelf-ready list to early funding through construction.

• Project Readiness

• Congestion Relief and Demand

• External Funding Availability

• Public Opinion and Support

• Project Sequencing and Connectivity

• Project Duration



9

Updated Next 10 Plan Deliverables

Significant progress and accomplishments have been made to M2 since 2007. The 2022
update of the Next 10 Plan confirms that M2 can be delivered consistent with the
commitment to voters. To outline a near-term work plan to promote effectiveness and
efficiency, ten deliverables on program and project delivery have been defined during the
ten-year period from fiscal year (FY) 2022-23 through FY 2031-32.

Freeways

1. Deliver 13 freeway improvement projects through construction (Projects A-M).

Status:
The M2 Freeway Program is currently made up of 30 projects/project segments.
Deliverable 1 includes 13 projects to be delivered through construction as reflected in the
table below. The completion of these projects would bring the total number of completed
projects to 26 by FY 2029-30, which equates to approximately 87 percent of the M2
Freeway Program. See Appendix page 105 for a table of the completed projects.

In Construction
Construction

Complete
Cost*

1. Project C, D
Interstate 5 (I-5) between State Route 73 (SR-73)
and Oso Parkway/Avery Parkway Interchange

2024 $195.8

2. Project C, D
I-5 between Oso Parkway and Alicia Parkway/La
Paz Road Interchange

2024 $203.1

3. Project C I-5 between Alicia Parkway and El Toro Road 2024 $165.9

Project C, D
I-5 between SR-73 and El Toro Road
Landscaping

2026 $12.4

4. Project F SR-55 between Interstate 405 (I-405) and I-5 2027 $503.2

5. Project K I-405 between SR-73 and Interstate 605 (I-605) 2024 $1,560.2

In Design
Construction

Complete
Cost*

6. Project B I-5 between I-405 and Yale Avenue 2029 $230.5

7. Project B I-5 between Yale Avenue and SR-55 2029 $200.4

8. Project G
SR-57 Northbound from Orangewood Avenue to
Katella Avenue

2028 $71.8

9. Project I SR-91 between SR-55 and Lakeview Avenue 2027 $100.9

10. Project I SR-91 between La Palma Avenue and SR-55 2028 $208.4

11. Project I
SR-91 between Acacia Street and La Palma
Avenue

2028 $116.2



10

In Design
Construction

Complete
Cost*

12. Project M I-605 Katella Avenue Interchange 2026 $29.0

In Environmental
Construction

Complete
Cost*

13. Project F SR-55 between I-5 and SR-91 2029 $131.3

Deliverable 1 Total $3,729.1

*Cost in millions

2. Prepare remaining freeway improvement projects for delivery (Projects A-M).

Status: The four remaining projects (of the 30 total) are environmentally cleared or on
track to be cleared by 2032, making them shelf-ready for future advancement. These
projects will continue to be reevaluated for earlier delivery as the Next 10 Plan is reviewed
each year.

Remaining Projects
Environmentally

Clear Shelf-
Ready

Cost*

1. Project D I-5 El Toro Road Interchange 2024 $120.51

2. Project G
SR-57 Northbound from Lambert Road to
Tonner Canyon Road

2028 $227.11

3. Project J SR-91 between SR-241 and Interstate 15 (I-15) 2026 $300.01

4. Project L I-405 between I-5 and SR-55 2018 $262.4

Remaining M2 Freeway Projects Total $910.02

*Cost in millions

Streets and Roads

3. Provide annual competitive funding opportunities for local jurisdictions to
address bottlenecks and gaps in the street system (Project O), synchronize
signals (Project P) and continue flexible funding to local jurisdictions to support
pavement rehabilitation or other transportation needs as appropriate
(Project Q).

Status: As of June 2022, OCTA has awarded approximately $482.0 million in competitive

funding through the Regional Capacity Program (RCP {Project O}) and Regional Traffic

Signal Synchronization Program (RTSSP {Project P}) through annual calls for projects

1 These cost estimates are preliminary and will be updated once the project alternative is selected at the
completion of environmental clearance.
2 The total will be revised once the three remaining projects (Project D, G, and J) have a selected project
alternative and complete environmental clearance.



11

(call). Additionally, $584.3 million in Local Fair Share (LFS {Project Q}) funds have been

distributed to local jurisdictions.

Transit

4. Maintain Metrolink service and complete one rail station improvement project
(Project R).

Status: In October 2019, three weekday intracounty round trips operating between
Laguna Niguel/Mission Viejo and Fullerton were replaced with two round trips between
Laguna Niguel/Mission Viejo (extended from Fullerton) into Los Angeles. Additional
service changes were scheduled to be implemented in April 2020; however, in
March 2020, all Metrolink services were severely impacted by the statewide enforcement
of stay-at-home orders that resulted from the COVID-19 pandemic. Metrolink
implemented temporary service reductions in March and November 2020 due to the
decline in ridership resulting from these orders. In April 2022, Metrolink partially restored
service in response to increasing ridership, customer feedback and demand for more train
trips. The three lines serving Orange County (Orange County, Inland Empire-Orange
County, and the 91/Perris Valley lines) currently operate 45 weekday trains, a 17 percent
reduction from the 54 weekday trains operated prior to COVID-19.

Close monitoring of Metrolink operations is necessary to ensure sustainability through
2041. As shared with the Board earlier this year, Metrolink ridership has struggled to
recover, continuing the impacts of farebox revenues and cost recovery. To exacerbate
this shortfall, operating costs have increased. Consequently, Metrolink has postponed the
full service restoration that was previously scheduled for implementation in October 2022
in order to manage costs while also working on campaigns to attract more riders.
However, many variables affect ridership recovery, such as prevalence of flexible remote
work policies. Without changes in service levels, ridership growth, and operations and
rehabilitation costs or availability of external funds, the current service cannot be
sustained beyond FY 2035-36. Staff will closely monitor ridership and these variables.
The Next 10 Plan is reviewed annually, which will provide OCTA many opportunities to
update and adjust assumptions as necessary. OCTA will continue to actively engage with
Metrolink and the other member agencies to monitor ridership levels and the
corresponding financial impacts to M2.

Another impact to Metrolink in Orange County is the on-going railroad track stabilization
effort in the City of San Clemente. In September 2021, a failing slope severely degraded
the railroad track structure. Emergency repair efforts were taken between late 2021 and
early 2022. However, recent higher tidal events coupled with movement of an ancient
slide have continued to impact the stability of the track, leading to a suspension of
passenger rail service in this area. On October 3, 2022, the Board adopted a resolution
to authorize OCTA to take all necessary actions to address the emergency need for
railroad track stabilization. These repairs are funded from the commuter rail fund and
some state emergency funds for this phase of the work. Long-term solutions need to be
developed to ensure the ability to provide service in this portion of the County, the cost



12

for which is undetermined at present. Future updates to the Next 10 Plan will need to
consider the financial implications of the long-term track improvement needs.

Within this program, funding is provided for rail corridor and station improvements to
accommodate increased passenger train service including station upgrades, parking
expansions, and safety enhancements. One station improvement project is anticipated to
be completed during the Next 10 Plan timeframe. Construction on the Anaheim Canyon
Metrolink Station Improvements Project began in May 2021 and is anticipated to be
complete in early 2023.

5. Complete construction, secure vehicles, begin operating the OC Streetcar, and
work with local jurisdictions to consider recommendations from planning
studies to guide development of future high-quality transit connections
(Project S).

Status: The 4.15-mile OC Streetcar will serve the Santa Ana Regional Transportation
Center (SARTC) through Downtown Santa Ana and the Civic Center to Harbor Boulevard
in the City of Garden Grove. Activities underway include construction of the tracks,
installation of rail and overhead poles, communication with third parties on utility
relocation, and continued coordination with the Federal Transit Administration. Other
significant activities include construction of the maintenance and storage facility and an
issued limited notice to proceed for the operations and maintenance contract. The first
seven cars are in the final stages of equipping and the last car is in final assembly.
Construction is anticipated to be complete in 2024.

6. Support expanded mobility choices for seniors and persons with disabilities
(Project U).

Status: Project U is comprised of three programs: the Senior Mobility Program (SMP),
the Senior Non-Emergency Medical Transportation (SNEMT) Program, and the Fare
Stabilization Program. Since inception, approximately $105.3 million3 has been provided
to these three programs. The SMP provides funding to participating cities to design and
implement transit service that best fits the needs of seniors (60 and above) in their
communities. The SNEMT Program provides funding to the County of Orange Office on
Aging for senior (60 and above) transportation to and from medical appointments,
dentists, therapies, exercise programs, testing, and other health-related trips at a low cost
to the rider than would otherwise be available. The Fare Stabilization Program provides
stable discounted fares for seniors and persons with disabilities by lowering the cost of
riding transit.

3 Only includes disbursed funds. On October 12, 2020, the Board approved a temporary exception to the
SMP guidelines which allows for OCTA to hold allocations in reserve for agencies with suspended services
due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The funds will be held until the State lifts the State of Emergency or the
agency resumes transportation services, whichever occurs first.



13

7. Work with local jurisdictions to maintain successful community circulator
projects and potentially provide grant opportunities for expanded or new local
transit services (Project V).

Status: Since inception, OCTA has approved 35 projects and ten planning studies
totaling approximately $52 million through four calls. The most recent Project V call was
programmed by the OCTA Board on April 13, 2020. OCTA receives ridership reports from
local agencies on a regular basis to monitor the success of awarded services against
performance measures adopted by the Board. As of June 2022, 17 projects are active,
ten have been cancelled (primarily due to low ridership), five are suspended or not
initiated as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, and three have been completed. Staff
continues to work with local jurisdictions through letters of interest requests, workshops,
Comprehensive Transportation Funding Program Guidelines revisions, calls, and
cooperative agreement amendments to fine-tune this program and facilitate successful
project implementation, especially in light of the COVID-19 pandemic.

8. Continue to improve the top 100 busiest transit stops to enhance the customer
experience (Project W).

Status: Through three calls, the Board has approved $3.1 million to improve 122
city-initiated improvement projects at the busiest OCTA transit stops. The program is
designed to ease transfers between bus lines and provide passenger amenities such as
installation of bus benches or seating, shelters, improved lighting, and other passenger-
related amenities. To date, 49 improvements have been completed, 63 improvements are
in various stages of implementation, and ten improvements have been cancelled by the
awarded agency.

Environmental

9. Ensure the ongoing preservation of purchased open space, which provides
comprehensive mitigation of the environmental impacts of freeway
improvements and higher-value environmental benefits in exchange for
streamlined project approvals (Projects A-M).

Status: The M2 freeway EMP includes seven conservation properties (Preserves)
totaling more than 1,300 acres and 12 restoration projects covering nearly 350 acres. In
2017, OCTA received biological resource permits after completing a state and federal
Natural Community Conservation Plan/Habitat Conservation Plan (Conservation Plan) for
the EMP, allowing streamlined project approvals for the M2 freeway improvement
projects. The Conservation Plan also includes a streamlined process for coordination of
streambed alteration agreements. In 2018, OCTA secured programmatic permits and
assurances for federal and state clean water permitting requirements. Receipt of these
permits represents the culmination of years of collaboration and support by the Board,
environmental community, and regulatory agencies.



14

OCTA makes annual endowment deposits of approximately $2.9 million. As of
June 30, 2022, the endowment balance was $19,332,924. While the performance of the
endowment fund will affect the time frame for full funding, current projections indicate that
OCTA is on track to meet the target of $46.2 million in FY 2027-28.

10.Work with the Environmental Cleanup Allocation Committee (ECAC) to develop
the next tiers of water quality programs to prevent the flow of trash, pollutants,
and debris into waterways from transportation facilities. In addition, focus on
improving water quality on a regional scale that encourages partnerships
among the local agencies as part of the Environmental Cleanup Program (ECP)
(Project X).

Status: In May 2010, the Board approved a two-tier approach to funding Project X. Tier 1
consists of funding equipment purchases and upgrades to existing catch basins and related
best management practices, such as screens and other low-flow diversion devices. Tier 2
consists of funding regional, potentially multi-jurisdictional, and capital-intensive projects.
Since inception, the Board has approved over $30 million in funding for 199 Tier 1 projects
through 11 calls and $27.9 million for 22 Tier 2 projects through two calls.

Oversight and Safeguards

The 2022 Next 10 Plan is taking place with the full oversight and regular reporting
promised to the voters. Regular progress reports on implementing the Next 10 Plan are
included in the M2 Quarterly Progress Reports that are prepared for the Board. These
reports are included on the OCTA website, as well as other means, to ensure accessibility
and transparency of the information. Contact information for the OCTA staff member
responsible for each program or project is also included.

Additionally, as specified in the M2 Ordinance No. 3 (M2 Ordinance), Section 10, there
will be three performance assessments conducted during the Next 10 Plan time period.
Performance assessments are to be conducted at least once every three years to
evaluate the efficiency, effectiveness, economy, and program results of OCTA in
satisfying the provisions and requirements of the M2 Transportation Investment Plan
(Plan) and M2 Ordinance. These assessments will take place during 2024, 2027, and
2030. The latest performance assessment covering FY 2017-18 through FY 2020-21 was
completed and shared with the Board in April 2022. The consultant’s report reflected a
positive assessment of OCTA’s efficiency and effectiveness in the delivery of M2 projects
and programs. While there were no significant findings, four recommendations for
enhancements were made. Actions to address these recommendations are underway.



15

Also included in the M2 Ordinance, Section 11, is a ten-year comprehensive review of M2
programs and projects, which will be initiated during the Next 10 Plan time period. Due to
the early initiation of project development activities prior to the start-up of revenue
collection in 2011, the first review was completed in FY 2014-15. A second review is
planned to take place in FY 2024-25 (or sooner if warranted) and will determine the basis
for setting the direction of future refinements to the M2 Plan. The ten-year review includes
a comprehensive review of all projects and programs implemented under the M2 Plan to
evaluate the performance of the overall program and may result in revisions to further
improve performance.

Sustainable Communities Strategy

It is important to note that M2 also supports and enhances the ability of OCTA to support the
regional Sustainable Communities Strategy in Orange County. M2 projects and programs
are part of a larger suite of transportation improvements included in the 30-year M2 Plan.
Over 50 percent of M2 funds are intended to fulfill transit, system optimization, enhanced
environmental elements and infrastructure preservation goals. In addition, the funding
eligibility criteria encourages local agencies to consider accommodations for transit and non-
motorized transportation.

M2 was publicly reviewed through a Program Environmental Impact Report (EIR) prior to
voters approving the ballot measure in November 2006. Since 2008, the M2 Program has
been included in the Regional Transportation Plans, Sustainable Communities Strategies,
and the associated Program EIR prepared by the Southern California Association of
Governments.

In addition to funding freeway improvements, the M2 Program dedicates funding for many
transit and local street improvement projects. These include improvements such as:

• New transit connections between major Orange County activity areas that reduce the

need for short automobile trips;

• Enhanced convenience and reliability for bus services and Metrolink commuter rail to

encourage transit as a dependable commute option;

• Local funding for development of multimodal corridors and roadway preservation that

improves the quality of mobility for all users; and

• Signal synchronization on 750 miles of roadways throughout Orange County to

reduce congestion and tailpipe emissions.

The M2 freeway EMP has preserved 1,300 acres of wild lands that will be converted to
the Preserves to enhance connectivity and wildlife movement between existing
conservation areas – such as the Cleveland National Forest, the Chino Hills State Park,
and the Irvine Ranch Conservancy lands – and to coastal areas. Furthermore, the
program also provides critical habitat for endangered or listed species. Additionally, since
M2 inception, the ECP has funded over 220 projects totaling over $57 million to treat
storm water runoff and help keep waterways and beaches clean in Orange County.



16

The aforementioned transit, local streets, and environmental programs collectively
contribute to and enhance the quality of life, as well as provide a sustainable future, and
an efficient transportation system that benefits the region.

Brief summaries of the specific programs are listed below.

✓ Projects A through N – Freeway improvements and Freeway Service Patrol (FSP)
to provide emission reductions through congestion relief.

✓ Projects O and P – Signal synchronization and street improvements that provide
emission reductions through congestion relief and flexibility to accommodate bike
and pedestrian project elements as appropriate.

✓ Project Q – Local funding for city-selected transportation projects that provide for
preservation of the streets and roads system and includes bicycle, pedestrian,
water quality, and transit enhancements as eligible expenditures.

✓ Project R – Expanded Metrolink train capacity including improvements to stations
and parking to improve transit reliability and convenience and reduce reliance on
highways while also supporting potential transit-oriented development.

✓ Project S – Transit extensions to improve access between Metrolink stations and
residential/employment centers and provide an alternative to driving.

✓ Project T – Station improvements to connect to planned future high-speed rail
services.

✓ Project U – Sustain mobility choices for seniors and persons with disabilities and
provides an alternative to driving.

✓ Project V – Community-based circulators to complement regional transit services
with local communities and provides an alternative to driving.

✓ Project W – Transit stop improvements to support transfers between major bus
lines and support the implementation of mobile ticketing to ensure ease of fare
purchase and convenience for bus passengers.

✓ Project X – Water quality improvement programs/projects to meet federal Clean
Water Act standards for urban runoff, and augment required mitigations.

✓ Freeway Mitigation Program – Natural resource protection strategy to provide for
more comprehensive mitigation of environmental impacts from M2 freeway
improvements.

Updated Next 10 Plan Funding Assumptions

Funding assumptions are included in the 2022 Next 10 Plan. The revenue assumptions
incorporate the latest 2022 M2 sales tax revenue forecast of $15 billion and prior
commitments in programmed local, state, and federal external revenues.



17

Projected revenues and expenses are merged into a high-level cash flow model. To
support project delivery schedules in the Freeway Program, bond assumptions were
previously included. With the increase in the M2 revenue forecast as well as refined
project costs, bond assumptions are no longer anticipated through 2041. Bonding
capacity is available, as OCTA’s debt coverage ratios are well above the allowable
amount of 1.3x. The minimum forecasted debt coverage ratio during the Next 10 Plan
timeframe is 9.2x in 2023. This offers significant financial protection against unforeseen
economic changes related to project delivery. The appendix on page 104 includes a more
detailed discussion on assumed revenues, costs, and debt service.

For the 2022 Next 10 Plan review and update, forecasted revenues and costs through
2041 were tested. This effort was conducted to ensure the complete M2 Program could
be delivered consistent with commitments provided to the voters as part of M2 approval
in November 2006. Revenues are expected to fluctuate over time. The M2 expenditure
plan includes programmatic items which adjust according to available revenues.
However, the freeway portion defines specific project scopes which cannot be easily
adjusted to revenue fluctuations.

Funding for the freeway mode assumes $9.3 billion in total revenue, with costs for the
same period totaling $9.2 billion. To date, OCTA has been very successful in capturing
external funding to offset the reduction in sales tax revenue. The long-term M2 freeway
plan relies on the total receipt of approximately $1.7 billion in state and federal revenues.
Additionally, the program includes $692 million in net excess 91 Express Lanes revenue
and $495 million in bond proceeds.

As a result of the higher forecasted sales tax and interest revenue, the freeway program
net sales tax revenue through 2041 increased by approximately $899 million. In addition,
each project in the freeway program was reviewed and cost estimates updated. With the
majority of the projects now either nearing completion of the environmental phase or in
design, project cost estimates have a higher level of engineering and are therefore better
defined. This significant net increase allowed for the removal of future bonding
assumptions, which provides significant savings in the freeway program while maintaining
project delivery schedules. This also increased the economic uncertainty for the freeway
mode, with most of it available between FY 2032-33 and FY 2040-41. As noted earlier,
there is significant bonding capacity available should the freeway program require
additional revenue to support project expenses.

Funding for the streets and roads mode assumes $5.4 billion in total revenue, with costs
for the same period totaling $5.1 billion. The projects within the Streets and Roads
Program are scaled to available revenue and are reflected in the cash flow on a pay-as-
you-go basis. The Streets and Roads Program relies on the total receipt of approximately
$567 million in external revenues (state, federal, and local) primarily for the OC Bridges
grade separation projects. More detailed program assumptions for the Streets and Roads
Program can be found in the Appendix on page 107.



18

For the transit mode, $4.2 billion in total revenue is assumed, with costs for the same
period totaling $4 billion. The majority of projects within the Transit Program are scaled
to available revenue with the exception of Project U’s Fare Stabilization Program. The M2
Ordinance specifically requires that the Fare Stabilization Program subsidize fares for
seniors and persons with disabilities to the extent of maintaining the reduced fare rate
effective on July 24, 2006, through FY 2040-41. While this program is not scalable, it
remains solvent due to OCTA’s proactive amendment to the M2 Ordinance. The
remaining transit mode programs are assumed on a pay-as-you-go basis. The funding
for the transit mode assumes the total receipt of $407.4 million in local, state, and federal
revenues. This number is inclusive of $148.96 million in Federal New Starts and
$25.52 million in State Cap-and-Trade revenues to partially fund the OC Streetcar project.
More detailed program assumptions for the Transit Program can be found in the Appendix
on page 108.

The ECP assumes $301.2 million in total revenue, with costs for the same period totaling
$237.8 million. The projects within the ECP are scaled to available revenue and are
reflected in the cash flow on a pay-as-you-go basis. More detailed program assumptions
for the ECP can be found in the Appendix on page 108.

With careful management of the projects and use of financial resources, the full scope of
the M2 Program through 2041 can be delivered as promised.

Funding and Financing

The Board’s vision in developing the EAP created a great opportunity for the M2 Program.
While the economy took a significant downturn due to the 2008 Great Recession, OCTA
advanced projects years before revenue became available. Projects were accelerated,
making them shelf-ready. This allowed OCTA to capture significant one-time external
funding provided through State Proposition 1B and the American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act. Using the revised forecasting methodology implemented in
March 2016, the 2022 M2 sales tax revenue forecast is $15 billion.

When it comes to the bidding environment, OCTA significantly benefited during the
recession by capitalizing on a low-cost environment with early project development and
acceleration. When the M2020 Plan was adopted in late 2012, staff reported that freeway
construction bids were consistently coming in between ten to 20 percent below engineers’
estimates. Since that time, construction bids have slowly risen to meet and in some cases
exceed the engineers’ estimates.

In the 2021 update of the Next 10 Plan, there was one bond issuance anticipated in 2023.
As a result of higher forecasted sales tax collections, this year’s update eliminates the
one anticipated bond issuance and assumes no additional bonding is required through
2041. The update also continues to maintain prudent annual ending balances and an
economic uncertainties allowance, which provides continued financial stability in the
event of additional financial fluctuations.



19

Pay-as-you-go project funding is identified in the M2 Ordinance as the preferred method
of financing, while bond financing is an option that is within the purview of the Board. It
takes many years to bring projects to fruition therefore it is prudent to maintain current
project schedules to deliver M2 benefits earlier.

While the current cost of debt remains low and continues to be attractive, there are no
additional issuances planned through 2041. Current 20-year bond rates have increased
from last year from 1.29 percent to 3.03 percent. Long-term rates remain near all-time
lows of 1.49 percent, thus maintaining a relatively “flat” yield curve, allowing OCTA to take
advantage of attractive mid- and long-term rates if needed. See the graph below showing
historical issuance rates of 20-year bonds.

OCTA has a strong track record of successfully delivering projects by utilizing bond
financing, as seen in M1, as well as M2, under the EAP and M2020 Plan. While the 2022
Next 10 Plan no longer anticipates additional bond financing for the Freeway Program
through 2041, OCTA has significant bonding capacity available should the freeway
program require additional revenue to support project expenses.

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

B
O

N
D

 I
S

S
U

A
N

C
E

 R
A

T
E

YEAR

HISTORICAL ISSUANCE RATES FOR
20-YEAR BONDS

Median Moving Average (Median)



20

Future Outlook

As noted in the Risks section starting on page 5, major capital work is underway in the
Southern California region that may impact OCTA’s ability to secure resources needed
for future project and program delivery. Competition for available resources for capital
projects has increased with the major capital work currently underway in Los Angeles,
Riverside, and San Bernardino counties. For future projects going forward, engineers,
ROW experts, skilled labor, and materials will be in higher demand.

In September 2017, the Board was presented with a Market Conditions Forecast and Risk
Analysis report conducted by economists Dr. Wallace Walrod and Dr. Marlon Boarnet
through a contract with the Orange County Business Council (OCBC). The result of this
analysis identified strong potential for OCTA to experience an increasing-cost
environment in the near term. The Board directed staff to continue to work with OCBC to
monitor and track key early warning indicators and provide OCTA information on changes
to the risk factors and potential cost impacts.

In October 2022, OCBC provided an updated forecast to the Board for 2023 through 2025.
OCBC tracked relevant market data and indicators, performed analytics, and incorporated
this analysis to provide OCTA with a range of potential cost fluctuations through the use
of an Infrastructure Construction Cost Pressure Index (ICCPI). The ICCPI incorporates a
detailed trend analysis of building permits, unemployment rates, localized labor costs,
material costs and general economic conditions.

ICCPI Range of Cost Fluctuations

Index Score Low Midpoint High

0 -17% -9.5% -2%

1 -2% -0.5% 1%

2 1% 1.5% 2%

3 2% 4% 6%

4 6% 8.5% 11%

5 11% 25.5% 40%

OCBC forecasts a score of four in 2023 and 2024, which represents a potential range of
higher cost fluctuation of six to 11 percent. The forecast for 2025 drops to a score of two,
which anticipates a tempering of economic conditions. The updated forecast points to
continued volatile market conditions as cost pressures remain high in the most recent
data available. Major drivers include low unemployment rates coupled with high inflation
rates, which could result in rising labor and the cost of materials. Despite the Federal
Reserve raising interest rates to curb inflation, the national and regional labor market
remains strong. In the most recent data, some material prices saw large increases,
specifically, Portland Cement Concrete pavement, aggregate base, and steel bar.



21

OCBC Orange County Transportation ICCPI Score, 2023-2025

Year Index Score Range of Cost Fluctuation

2023 4 6 percent to 11 percent

2024 4 6 percent to 11 percent

2025 2 1 percent to 2 percent

As in prior forecasts, OCBC indicates that OCTA will also need to be aware and ready to
respond to cost pressures that cannot be modeled. Examples of such forces include:

• Pace of Federal Reserve interest rate hikes largely unknown and subject to rapid
changes,

• Lingering impacts of the pandemic, zero-tolerance policy in China, and

• General political uncertainty both domestically and internationally.

To mitigate cost pressures, OCTA’s Project Controls Department monitors and adjusts
project cost escalation assumptions according to market trends. Project Controls’ cost
estimating process uses historical information, as well as current trends in the market,
and follows a consistent and defined process. Looking back at the last 20 years, OCTA’s
cost estimates have included a three percent escalation, which, on average during this
timeframe, provided the appropriate escalation to deliver projects successfully. Currently,
using 3.5 percent for construction escalation, as well as incorporating contingency based
on the project type and complexity, is staff’s best estimate using industry standards on
cost estimating. Additionally, to further protect against potential cost increases in our
freeway capital program, staff incorporated an 11 percent program level expense line item
in the cash flow for an economic uncertainty allowance.



22



23

This page intentionally left blank



24



25



26



27

This page intentionally left blank



Freeway Program

28

Overview:
The Freeway Program accounts for
43 percent of the M2 Program. Over the
life of M2, approximately $6.3 billion is
expected to be generated in sales tax
revenues for freeway Projects A-N (not
including the five percent of net
revenues apportioned to the EMP).
Improving Orange County freeways is a
major investment of the M2 Program.

To ensure delivery of the Freeway
Program, the Next 10 Plan includes the
following framework:

• Bring congestion relief.

• Deliver projects using the guiding
principles.

• Work with Caltrans to seek cost
effective measures on freeway
projects through changes in scope
and design parameters where
possible.

• Tightly manage project scopes and
schedule to reduce cost escalation
risk.

Next 10 Plan Deliverables:
When M2 originally passed, 13 freeway
projects were highlighted in the M2
Plan. Since then, these projects have
been segmented into 30 projects or
project segments. Significant progress
of the freeway program is included in
the
Next 10 Plan deliverable goals through
2032:

1. Deliver construction of 13 freeway
projects or project segments: five
along I-5, one along I-405, two along
SR-55, three along SR-91, one along
SR-57, and one at the I-605
Interchange (Projects B, C, C/D, F, G,
I, K, and M).

2. Prepare the remaining four project
segments for delivery. This includes
one on I-405, SR-91, and SR-57; and
one interchange project at I-5, El Toro
Road (Projects D, G, J and L).



A. I-5 (SR-55 to SR-57)

29

Description:
Project A reduced freeway congestion
by adding a second high-occupancy
vehicle (HOV) lane (approximately
three miles) in both directions on I-5
between SR-55 and SR-57. The project
was generally constructed within the
existing ROW.

Cost:
$38.85 million.

Status:
All lanes opened to traffic in
August 2020. Construction was
completed in January 2021.

Present Day:
The current daily traffic volume on this
segment of I-5 is about 380,000
vehicles and is severely congested.
Traffic volumes are expected to
increase nearly seven percent by 2035,
bringing it up to 406,000 vehicles per
day. The HOV lanes experience more
congestion in the peak period than the
adjacent general purpose lanes,

underscoring the need to add an HOV
lane on this freeway segment.

Benefits:
This project improved the HOV facility
on I-5 in Santa Ana to meet traffic
demands and eliminate bottlenecks.
Improvements were needed to
accommodate HOV traffic from both
the SR-55/I-5 and SR-57/I-5 direct
HOV connectors.

Originally considered under this
project, the extension of the auxiliary
lane from southbound I-5 to
southbound SR-55 through the
McFadden Avenue exit ramp on SR-55
to Edinger Avenue, was instead studied
as part of SR-55 Project F.

External Funding:
The Board has approved $36.19 million
in federal funds to support this project.

Risks:
None – project completed.



A. I-5 (SR-55 to SR-57)

30

Related Projects:
Projects B and F.

Other Involved Agencies:
California Transportation Commission
(CTC), Caltrans, City of Santa Ana,
Federal Highways Administration
(FHWA), and Metrolink.

Assumptions:
Cost based on June 2022 M2 Program
cash flow.

References:

• OCTA 2018 Long-Range
Transportation Plan

• June 2022 Project Status Report

• Capital Funding Program Report –
State Highway Project
(August 2022)



B. I-5 (I-405 to SR-55)

31

Description:
Project B will reduce congestion by
constructing new northbound and
southbound general purpose lanes and
improving key interchanges in the area
between SR-55 and State Route 133
(SR-133) (near the El Toro “Y”). This
segment of I-5 is the major route
serving activity areas in the cities of
Irvine, Santa Ana, and Tustin, and
north Orange County. The project will
generally be constructed within the
existing ROW. The project is divided
into two segments as described below.

Segment 1: This project will add one
general purpose lane in each direction
between I-405 and Yale Avenue
(approximately 4.5 miles), improve
interchanges, and add auxiliary lanes
where needed to improve traffic
operations in the Irvine area.

Segment 2: This project will add one
general purpose lane in each direction
between Yale Avenue and SR-55
(approximately 4.5 miles), improve
interchanges, and add auxiliary lanes
where needed to improve traffic
operations in Irvine and Tustin areas.

Cost:
Segment 1: $230.48 million (Year of
Expenditure [YOE]).

Segment 2: $200.44 million (YOE).

Status:
The environmental phase for both
segments was completed in
January 2020.

Segment 1: The design phase was
initiated in October 2021.

Segment 2: The design phase was
initiated in May 2021.



B. I-5 (I-405 to SR-55)

32

Present Day:
The current traffic volume on this
segment of I-5 is about 358,000
vehicles per day and is expected to
increase by nearly 16 percent by 2035,
bringing it up to 416,000 vehicles per
day.

Benefits:
Project improvements would alleviate
congestion and reduce delay.

External Funding:
The Board has approved funding that
supports this project including:

Segment 1: $52.36 million in federal
funds and $128.73 million in state
funds.

Segment 2: $32.53 million in federal
funds.

Risks:
Overall time, scope, and costs risks are
high with this project due to tight ROW
and the need for design variations.

Related Projects:
Projects A and F.

Other Involved Agencies:
Caltrans, cities of Irvine and Tustin, and
FHWA.

Assumptions:
Cost based on June 2022 M2 Program
cash flow.

References:

• OCTA 2018 Long-Range
Transportation Plan

• June 2022 Project Status Report

• Capital Funding Program Report –
State Highway Project
(August 2022)



C. I-5 (SR-73 to El Toro Road includes Avery Parkway and La Paz

Road Interchanges)

33

Description:
Project C will add new lanes to I-5 from
El Toro Road in the City of Lake Forest
to the vicinity of SR-73 in the cities of
Laguna Hills, Laguna Niguel,
Laguna Woods, Lake Forest, and
Mission Viejo. Additional improvements
include continuous HOV access
completion and major improvements at
the Avery Parkway and La Paz Road
interchanges, as part of Project D. The
project will generally be constructed
within the existing ROW. This project is
divided into three segments as
described below.

Segment 1: This project from SR-73
to Oso Parkway will add one general
purpose lane (approximately 2.2 miles)
in both directions between SR-73 and
Oso Creek, reconstruct Avery Parkway
interchange, and add auxiliary lanes
where needed to reduce congestion in
Laguna Niguel and Mission Viejo
areas.

Segment 2: This project from
Oso Parkway to Alicia Parkway will add
one general purpose lane
(approximately 2.6 miles) in both
directions between Oso Creek and
Alicia Parkway, reconstruct
La Paz Road interchange, and add
auxiliary lanes where needed to reduce
congestion in Laguna Hills and
Mission Viejo areas.

Segment 3: This project from
Alicia Parkway to El Toro Road will add
one general purpose lane
(approximately 1.7 miles) in the
southbound direction between
Alicia Parkway and El Toro Road,
continue the additional general purpose
lane in the northbound direction
through Alicia Parkway, extend the
second HOV lane (approximately one
mile) in both directions from
El Toro Road to Alicia Parkway, and
add auxiliary lanes where needed to
reduce congestion in Laguna Hills,
Lake Forest, and Mission Viejo areas.



C. I-5 (SR-73 to El Toro Road includes Avery Parkway and La Paz

Road Interchanges)

34

Cost:
Segment 1: $195.80 million (YOE).

Segment 2: $203.07 million (YOE).

Segment 3: $165.86 million (YOE).

Landscaping for all three segments:
$12.37 million (YOE).

Status:
Segment 1: Construction began in
January 2020 and is scheduled to be
complete and open to traffic in 2024.

Segment 2: Construction began in
April 2019 and is scheduled to be
complete and open to traffic in 2024.

Segment 3: Construction began in
October 2020 and is scheduled to be
complete and open to traffic in 2024.

Present Day:
The current traffic volume on I-5 near
the El Toro “Y” is about 343,000
vehicles per day. This volume will
increase in the future by 22 percent by
2035, bringing it up to 420,000 vehicles
per day.

Benefits:
This project will help alleviate
congestion and reduce traffic delays.
The second HOV extension for
segment 3 will enable more efficient
operation of general purpose lanes for
future projected traffic volumes. Adding
an additional general purpose lane in
Segments 1 and 2 will accommodate
future projected traffic volumes. The
I-5/La Paz Road and
I-5/Avery Parkway interchange

improvement projects called for in M2
Project D will reduce chokepoints and
congestion, as well as accommodate
future traffic demands on the local
roads at each interchange.

External Funding:
The Board has approved funding that
supports this project including:

Segment 1: $34.60 million in federal
funds and $121.81 million in state
funds.

Segment 2: $56.60 million in federal
funds.

Segment 3: $54.63 million in federal
funds and $9.39 million in state funds.

Additionally, $6.00 million in state funds
have been approved for landscape
planting across all three segments.

Risks:
Utility relocation and management of
contaminated materials pose
significant risk to project scope,
schedule and cost.

Related Projects:
Project C (I-5, Avenida Pico to
San Juan Creek Road) and Project D
(I-5, El Toro Road Interchange).

Other Involved Agencies:
Caltrans, cities of Laguna Hills,
Laguna Niguel, and Mission Viejo,
CTC, FHWA, and Transportation
Corridor Agencies.



C. I-5 (SR-73 to El Toro Road includes Avery Parkway and La Paz

Road Interchanges)

35

Assumptions:
Costs based on June 2022 M2
Program cash flow.

References:

• OCTA 2018 Long-Range
Transportation Plan

• June 2022 Project Status Report

• Capital Funding Program Report –
State Highway Project
(August 2022)



C. I-5 (Avenida Pico to San Juan Creek Road includes Avenida Pico
Interchange)

36

Description:
Project C extended the HOV lanes on
I-5 from Avenida Pico to
San Juan Creek Road in the cities of
Dana Point, San Clemente, and
San Juan Capistrano. Major
interchange improvements were also
included at Avenida Pico, as part of
Project D. This project was generally
constructed within the existing ROW
and was divided into three segments as
described below.

Segment 1: This project from
Avenida Pico to Avenida Vista
Hermosa added new continuous-
access HOV lanes (approximately 0.7
miles) in each direction between
Avenida Vista Hermosa overcrossing
and Avenida Pico undercrossing. The
Avenida Pico Interchange was
reconstructed to optimize traffic
movements within the interchange and
provided bicycle lanes in both
directions of Avenida Pico.

Segment 2: This project from
Avenida Vista Hermosa to
Pacific Coast Highway (PCH) added
new continuous-access HOV lanes
(approximately 2.5 miles) in each
direction between Avenida Vista
Hermosa overcrossing and PCH
undercrossing. The project also
reconstructed on- and off-ramps at
Avenida Vista Hermosa and
Camino de Estrella, and re-established
existing auxiliary lanes.
Avenida Vaquero undercrossing was
widened in both directions to
accommodate the new HOV lanes.

Segment 3: This project from PCH to
San Juan Creek Road added new
continuous-access HOV lanes
(approximately 2.5 miles) in each
direction between Camino Estrella
overcrossing and San Juan Creek
Road undercrossing. The project also
reconstructed on- and off-ramps at
Camino Las Ramblas/PCH and the



C. I-5 (Avenida Pico to San Juan Creek Road includes Avenida Pico
Interchange)

37

I-5/PCH northbound connector and
I-5/Camino Las Ramblas
undercrossing were widened in both
directions.

Cost:
Segment 1: $83.60 million.

Segment 2: $75.26 million.

Segment 3: $74.27 million.

Status:
All segments of Project C opened to
traffic at the same time in early 2018.
Segment 1 was completed in
August 2018, segment 2 in July 2017,
and segment 3 in July 2018.

Present Day:
This section of I-5 has high levels of
traffic during the weekdays and
weekends, as well as holidays,
throughout the proposed project limits.
The current traffic volume on this
segment of I-5 is about 250,000
vehicles per day and is expected to
increase by nearly six percent by 2035,
bringing it up to 266,000 vehicles per
day.

Benefits:
This project eliminated a southbound
lane drop at PCH by extending the
southbound HOV lane between
Camino Capistrano and Avenida Pico,
and the northbound HOV lane between
Avenida Pico and PCH. Elimination of
the lane drop enabled more efficient
operation of general purpose lanes and
serves projected traffic volumes for the
year 2040.

External Funding:
The Board approved funding that
supported these projects including:

Segment 1: $28.47 in federal funds
and $43.74 million in state funds.

Segment 2: $12.07 million in federal
funds and $46.78 million in state funds.

Segment 3: $11.33 million in federal
funds and $20.79 million in state funds.

Risks:
No risk to project delivery as the project
is complete. Final claims remain
pending in segment 3, however, cost
risk is low.

Related Projects:
Project D.

Other Involved Agencies:
Caltrans, cities of Dana Point,
San Clemente, and
San Juan Capistrano, CTC and FHWA.

Assumptions:
Cost based on June 2022 M2 Program
cash flow.

References:

• OCTA 2018 Long-Range
Transportation Plan

• June 2022 Project Status Report

• Capital Funding Program Report -
State Highway Project
(August 2022)



D. I-5 (El Toro Road Interchange) Improvements

38

Description:
Proposed Project D improvements at
I-5/El Toro Road Interchange include
modifying entrance and exit ramps and
modifying or replacing existing bridge
structures.

Cost:
$120.52 million (YOE) is currently
included in the cash flow however,
once the selected project alternative is
determined this will need to be
updated.

Status:
The environmental phase for this
project began in April 2017. The
Next 10 Plan includes funding this
project through environmental. This
project has faced challenges
determining a build alternative that has
local support and consensus with the
three stakeholder cities (cities of
Laguna Hills, Laguna Woods, and
Lake Forest). Built into M2 is a promise
that projects will be delivered in
cooperation with local agencies. A

consultant was retained in
September 2020 by OCTA to provide
further assessment of the build
alternatives to help facilitate reaching
an agreement. The draft final
assessment study was completed in
October 2021. An agreement has been
made with Caltrans and the three cities
to include two new alternatives, in
addition to the two alternatives from the
draft environmental document, to be
incorporated into the environmental
phase.

Present Day:
This portion of I-5 has high levels of
traffic during the weekdays and
weekends, as well as holidays,
throughout the proposed project limits.
The current traffic volume on this
segment of I-5 is about 355,000
vehicles per day and is expected to
increase nearly nine percent by 2035,
bringing it up to 388,000 vehicles per
day.



D. I-5 (El Toro Road Interchange) Improvements

39

Benefits:
This project would reduce the
chokepoint and better accommodate
forecasted traffic demands.
Modification of the entrance and exit
ramps would alleviate congestion at
adjacent intersections.

External Funding:
The Board has approved $9.2 million in
federal funds for the environmental
phase. Future phases are also eligible
for state and federal funds. Any
additional funding is expected to be
submitted for Board approval at a later
time.

Risks:
Overall time, scope, and cost risks are
high with this project due to the
challenging project area with significant
ROW impacts with study alternatives
under consideration. Community
concerns has resulted in a lack of
consensus between the three
stakeholder local jurisdictions. This
project will need local jurisdiction
consensus, before moving forward.

Related Projects:
Project C.

Other Involved Agencies:
Caltrans, cities of Laguna Hills,
Laguna Woods, and Lake Forest, and
FHWA.

Assumptions:
Cost based on conceptual estimates,
which was incorporated in the
June 2022 M2 Program cash flow.

References:

• OCTA 2018 Long-Range
Transportation Plan

• June 2022 Project Status Report

• Capital Funding Program Report -
State Highway Project
(August 2022)



D. I-5 (Ortega Highway Interchange) Improvements

40

Description:
Project D improvements included
reconstructing the I-5 interchange at
State Route 74 (SR-74) in south
Orange County, as well as widening
SR-74, modifying entrance and exit
ramps and replacing the existing bridge
structure.

Cost:
$79.80 million.

Status:
The project opened to traffic in
September 2015 and was officially
completed in January 2016.

Present Day:
Prior to completion of the project, the
existing freeway overcrossing and on-
and off-ramps did not accommodate
existing and projected to-and-from
street/freeway traffic.

Benefits:
This project alleviated a major
chokepoint and reduced congestion by
widening the Ortega Highway bridge
and improving local traffic flow through
reconfigured streets and on- and off-
ramps.

External Funding:
$752,000 in federal funds, $73.48
million in state funds, $2.50 million in
M1 funds from the regional interchange
program, and $5.01 million in other
local funds were used for the project.

Risks:
None – project completed.

Related Projects:
Project C.



D. I-5 (Ortega Highway Interchange) Improvements

41

Other Involved Agencies:
Caltrans, City of San Juan Capistrano,
and CTC.

Assumptions:
Cost based on January 2020 Project
Status Report, which was incorporated
in the June 2022 M2 Program cash
flow.

References:

• OCTA 2018 Long-Range
Transportation Plan

• January 2020 Project Status Report

• Capital Funding Program Report -
State Highway Project
(August 2022)



E. SR-22 Access Improvements

42

Description:
Project E constructed interchange
improvements at Euclid Street,
Brookhurst Street, and
Harbor Boulevard to reduce freeway
and street congestion near these
interchanges.

Cost:
$25.80 million.

Status:
These projects were part of the State
Route 22 (SR-22) Widening Project
completed in 2008 using M1 funds.

Present Day:
The project widened the streets at the
interchanges and were designed to
improve accommodation of existing
and projected traffic.

Benefits:
The project reconstructed the freeway
overcrossings to allow these streets to
be widened through the interchange
area. These improvements reduced
congestion and delay at all three
interchanges.

External Funding:
$15.9 million of M1 funds and
$9.9 million of other non-M2 (federal,
state and city) funds were used for the
project.

Risks:
None – project completed.

Related Projects:
West County Connector (WCC)
improvements at SR-22/I-405 and
I-405/I-605 interchanges.

Other Involved Agencies:
Caltrans and City of Garden Grove.

Assumptions:
Completed as part of the M1 SR-22
Design/Build project.

References:

• OCTA 2014 Long-Range
Transportation Plan



F. SR-55 (I-405 to SR-91)

43

Description:
Project F will reduce congestion by
adding lanes and operational
improvements to SR-55 between I-405
and SR-91. This project is divided into
two segments as described below.

Segment 1: This project will add one
general purpose lane (approximately
four miles) between I-405 and I-5,
including auxiliary lanes between
interchanges to smooth traffic flow. The
general purpose lane will be funded
with M2, state, and federal funds.
Concurrent with these efforts, a second
HOV lane will also be constructed
between I-5 and I-405 with state and
local funds.

Segment 2: This project will add new
lanes (approximately 7.5 miles)
between I-5 and SR-22, including
merging lanes between interchanges to
smooth traffic flow. Operational
improvements between SR-22 and
SR-91 would also be incorporated. The
environmental phase of this segment
was completed in March 2020 and is
ready to advance into design and
construction This segment will
generally be constructed within the
existing ROW.

Cost:
Segment 1: $503.22 million (YOE)
which includes cost for potential ROW
risk.

Segment 2: $131.31 million (YOE).



F. SR-55 (I-405 to SR-91)

44

Status:
Segment 1: The project was
advertised for construction in
December 2021, awarded by Caltrans
in May 2022, and approved in
June 2022. Construction began in
June 2022 and is anticipated to be
complete in February 2027.

Segment 2: The environmental phase
for this project was completed in
March 2020. The project was
advertised for design services in
September 2021, and the Board
approved a design consultant in
February 2022. Final design is
anticipated to begin in August 2022.

Present Day:
This freeway carries about 316,000
vehicles on a daily basis. This volume
is expected to increase by nearly eight
percent by 2035, bringing it up to
340,000 vehicles per day in the future.

Benefits:
This project will improve mobility and
reduce congestion in central Orange
County areas by adding new lanes and
make operational improvements for
existing and forecasted traffic volumes
(especially for weaving and lane
efficiency at ramp junctions).

External Funding:
Segment 1: The Board has approved
providing $160.5 million in federal
funds and $220.00 million in state
funds. As previously mentioned,
Caltrans has also committed $41.90

million in State Highway Operation and
Protection Program funds for this
project.

Segment 2: The Board has approved
providing $11.00 million in federal
funds for this project. This project is
eligible for future state and federal
funds.

Risks:
Schedule, scope, and cost risks remain
high on Segment 1 due to complex
ROW impacts which rely on design
variations. This may also delay receipt
of the State’s share of funding.

Overall schedule, scope, cost risks are
low on segment 2 at this time.

Related Projects:
Projects A and B.

Other Involved Agencies:
Caltrans, cities of Anaheim, Orange,
Santa Ana, and Tustin, and FHWA.

Assumptions:
Cost based on June 2022 M2 Program
cash flow.

References:

• OCTA 2018 Long-Range
Transportation Plan

• June 2022 Project Status Report

• Capital Funding Program Report -
State Highway Project
(August 2022)



G. SR-57 Improvements

45

Description:
Project G will reduce congestion by
adding one general purpose lane in the
northbound direction from
Orangewood Avenue in the
City of Orange to approximately
Tonner Canyon Road in the
City of Brea. Select northbound
undercrossings will also be widening
and seismically retrofitted, as required.
The project is divided into three
segments as described below.

Segment 1: This project consists of
three northbound sections including
Katella Avenue to Lincoln Avenue
(approximately 2.8 miles),
Orangethorpe to Yorba Linda Avenue
(approximately 2.4 miles), and
Yorba Linda Boulevard to
Lambert Road (approximately 2.5
miles) in the cities of Anaheim, Brea,
Fullerton, and Placentia. Projects in this
segment are complete.

Segment 2: This project includes the
addition of a northbound truck-climbing
lane (approximately 2.5 miles) from
Lambert Road in the City of Brea to
one-half mile south of the Los Angeles
County Line (approximately
Tonner Canyon Road).

Segment 3: This project includes
adding one northbound general
purpose lane (approximately one mile)
from Orangewood Avenue in the
City of Orange to Katella Avenue in the
City of Anaheim. Segment
improvements would maintain the
existing auxiliary lane and address
existing non-standard features
between Orangewood Avenue and
Katella Avenue.

Cost:
Segment 1: $144.36 million.

Segment 2: $227.1 million (YOE).

Segment 3: $71.78 million (YOE).



G. SR-57 Improvements

46

Status:
Segment 1: This project was
completed and opened to traffic in
2014.

Segment 2: This project is planned to
be environmentally cleared during the
Next 10 Plan timeframe. Through the
SB 1 (Chapter 5, Statutes of 2017)
Trade Corridor Enhancement Program,
an initial phase for interchange
improvements at the Lambert Road
interchange is currently underway and
is anticipated to be completed in late
2022. The mainline project could be a
strong candidate for additional trade
corridor funding and will require
coordination to address connectivity
with Los Angeles County.

Segment 3: The environmental phase
for this segment was completed in
March 2019 and the design phase was
initiated in March 2022.

Present Day:
This freeway carries about 302,000
vehicles daily. This volume is expected
to increase by nearly 13 percent by
2035, bringing it up to 342,000 vehicles
per day in the future.

Benefits:
This project will substantially improve
existing and future mobility, reduce
congestion, improve mainline weaving,
and merge/diverge movements, which
will improve both traffic operations and
safety. Combined improvements from
Orangethorpe Avenue to
Tonner Canyon Road could achieve a
40 percent reduction in total delay
through the SR-57 northbound corridor.

External Funding:
Segment 1: $104.85 million in state
funds were used for the project.

Segment 2: The Board approved
$6.50 million in state funds to support
the environment phase of this project.

Segment 3: The Board approved
$5.74 million in federal funds to support
the environmental phase of this project.

Risks:
No risk on segment 1 as the project is
complete. For segment 2 and segment
3, overall time, scope, costs, and
quality risks are low to medium with this
project due to construction within the
existing ROW and relatively
straightforward design issues.
However, risks exist due to the
potential need for seismic retrofitting of
existing bridges and proximity to the
Southern California Regional Rail
Authority and future High Speed Rail
ROW.

Related Projects:
Project H.

Other Involved Agencies:
Caltrans, cities of Anaheim, Brea,
Fullerton, Orange, and Placentia, CTC,
and FHWA.

Assumptions:
Cost based on June 2022 M2 Program
cash flow.



G. SR-57 Improvements

47

References:

• OCTA 2018 Long-Range
Transportation Plan

• June 2022 Project Status Report

• Capital Funding Program Report -
State Highway Project
(August 2022)



H. SR-91 (I-5 to SR-57)

48

Description:
Project H widened westbound SR-91
by connecting existing auxiliary lanes
(approximately 4.5 miles) through
interchanges, thus forming a fourth
continuous general purpose lane
between I-5 and SR-57. The project
also replaced existing auxiliary lanes
on westbound SR-91 between
State College Boulevard and
Raymond Avenue, and between
Euclid Street and Brookhurst Street,
and added a new auxiliary lane
between Raymond Avenue and
Lemon Street.

Cost:
$59.23 million.

Status:
The project opened to traffic in
March 2016 and was officially
completed in June 2016.

Present Day:
SR-91 serves as a major commuting
route connecting Orange County with
Riverside and Los Angeles counties.

SR-91 is also one of the most
congested freeways in Southern
California. This freeway carries about
290,000 vehicles daily. This volume is
expected to increase by nearly
five percent by 2035, bringing it up to
304,000 vehicles per day in the future.

Benefits:
This project alleviated congestion by
adding a continuous general purpose
lane and replaced existing auxiliary
lanes, which improved merging
operations at each interchange.



H. SR-91 (I-5 to SR-57)

49

External Funding:
$27.23 million in state funds were used
for the project.

Risks:
None – project completed.

Related Projects:
Project I.

Other Involved Agencies:
Caltrans, cities of Anaheim and
Fullerton, and CTC.

Assumptions:
Cost based on June 2022 M2 Program
cash flow.

References:

• OCTA 2018 Long-Range
Transportation Plan

• June 2022 Project Status Report

• Capital Funding Program Report –
State Highway Project
(August 2022)



I. SR-91 (Tustin Avenue Interchange to SR-55)

50

Description:
Project I from Tustin Avenue
Interchange to SR-55 added a
westbound auxiliary lane, beginning at
the northbound SR-55 to westbound
SR-91 connector, through the
Tustin Avenue interchange. The overall
segment length was approximately two
miles. Additional features of this project
included widening the westbound
Santa Ana River Bridge to
accommodate the auxiliary lane.

Cost:
$42.47 million.

Status:
The project was completed and opened
to traffic in 2016.

Present Day:
SR-91 serves as a major commuting
route connecting Orange County with
Riverside and Los Angeles counties.

SR-91 is also one of the most
congested freeways in Southern
California. This freeway carries about
290,000 vehicles daily. This volume is
expected to increase by nearly
five percent by 2035, bringing it up to
304,000 vehicles per day in the future.

Benefits:
This project addressed chokepoint
conditions and reduced operational
problems, including weaving and
merging maneuvers, which were
primarily caused by extensive weaving
between the northbound SR-55 to
westbound SR-91 connector and the
westbound SR-91 off-ramp to
Tustin Avenue.

External Funding:
$29.75 million in state funds were used
for the project.

Risks:
None – project completed.



I. SR-91 (Tustin Avenue Interchange to SR-55)

51

Related Projects:
Projects H, I (SR-57 to SR-55) and J.

Other Involved Agencies:
Caltrans, City of Anaheim, CTC, and
FHWA.

Assumptions:
Cost based on January 2019 Project
Status Report, which was incorporated
in the June 2022 M2 Program cash
flow.

References:

• OCTA 2018 Long-Range
Transportation Plan

• January 2019 Project Status Report

• Capital Funding Program Report –
State Highway Project
(August 2022)



I. SR-91 (SR-57 to SR-55)

52

Description:
Project I from approximately SR-57 to
SR-55 will add one westbound general
purpose lane from northbound SR-57
connector to westbound SR-91
connector, and one eastbound general
purpose lane between SR-57 and
SR-55. The project is divided into three
segments as described below.

Segment 1: This project from SR-55
to Lakeview Avenue (approximately 1.4
miles) will realign the westbound on-
ramp to direct traffic to westbound
SR-91. This project will replace the
Lakeview Avenue bridge that will
feature a new on-ramp from the
Lakeview Avenue bridge connecting
directly to southbound SR-55 to
improve traffic operations in the
Anaheim area.

Segment 2: This project from
La Palma Avenue to SR-55 will add an
eastbound general purpose lane
(approximately 2.7 miles) on SR-91
between La Palma Avenue and SR-55
and include bridge replacements at
Glassell Street/Kraemer Boulevard and
Tustin Avenue to reduce congestion in
the cities of Anaheim and Fullerton.

Segment 3: This project from
Acacia Street to La Palma Avenue will
add a fourth general purpose lane
(approximately 1.7 miles) on
westbound SR-91 from the northbound
SR-57 to westbound SR-91, make
improvements to the weave from
westbound SR-91 to northbound and
southbound SR-57, and replace the
bridge at La Palma Avenue to enhance
westbound operations on SR-91, to
reduce congestion in the cities of
Anaheim and Fullerton.

Cost:



I. SR-91 (SR-57 to SR-55)

53

Segment 1: $100.91 million (YOE).

Segment 2: $208.45 million (YOE).

Segment 3: $116.20 million (YOE).

Status:
The environmental phase for all three
segments was completed in June 2020.

Segment 1: The design phase was
initiated in March 2020.

Segment 2: The design phase was
initiated in June 2020.

Segment 3: The design phase was
initiated in November 2020.

Present Day:
Current freeway volume on this
segment of the SR-91 is about 250,000
vehicles per day. This vehicular
demand is expected to increase by
12 percent by 2035, bringing it up to
280,000 vehicles per day in the future.

Benefits:
Segment 1: This project is anticipated
to alleviate congestion and reduce
delay by improving the connection from
Lakeview Avenue to southbound
SR-55.

Segment 2: This project is anticipated
to alleviate congestion in the eastbound
direction.

Segment 3: This project will enhance
westbound operations.

External Funding:

The Board has approved funding that
supports this project including:

Segment 1: $1.77 million in federal
funds and $13.98 million in 91 Express
Lanes excess revenue.

Segment 2: $3.46 million in federal
funds and $42.81 million in 91 Express
Lanes excess revenue.

Segment 3: $1.77 million in federal
funds and $16.37 million in 91 Express
Lanes excess revenue.

Risks:
Overall time, scope and costs risks are
high due to coordination with the
Caltrans multi-asset project and refined
design options that require Caltrans
concurrence, which remains under
review.

Related Projects:
Projects H, I (Tustin Avenue
Interchange to SR-55), and J.

Other Involved Agencies:
Caltrans, cities of Anaheim, Fullerton,
Orange, and Placentia, CTC, and
FHWA.

Assumptions:
Cost based on June 2022 M2 Program
cash flow.

References:

• OCTA 2018 Long-Range
Transportation Plan

• June 2022 Project Status Report

• Capital Funding Program Report –
State Highway Project
(August 2022)



J. SR-91 (SR-55 to I-15)

54

Description:
Project J includes improvements on
SR-91 from SR-55 to I-15 in
Riverside County and is divided into
three segments.

Segment 1: This project added one
eastbound lane (approximately six
miles) on SR-91 from one-mile east of
SR-241 to State Route 71 (SR-71) in
Riverside County. This project was led
by Riverside County Transportation
Commission (RCTC) in coordination
with Caltrans District 8.

Segment 2: This project added one
new lane (approximately six miles) in
both directions of SR-91 between
SR-55 and SR-241 and improved key
interchanges. Additional improvements
included the widening and seismic
retrofitting for the Imperial Highway and
Weir Canyon Road undercrossing
bridges. This project was led by OCTA
in coordination with Caltrans District 12.

Segment 3: This project requires
coordination and funding agreements
with RCTC to deliver complementary
improvements between SR-241 and

SR-71 in Riverside County.
Improvements between SR-71 and I-15
are overseen by RCTC.

Cost:
Segment 1: $57.77 million.

Segment 2: $79.74 million.

Segment 3: $300.00 million (YOE),
which does not include RCTC’s cost
share.

Status:
Segment 1 was completed in
January 2011, and segment 2 was
completed in March 2013.

Segment 3: This project was
environmentally reviewed as part of the
RCTC’s Corridor Improvement Project.
RCTC and OCTA advanced the
westbound direction of this segment by
adding a general purpose lane (two
miles in length) from Green River Road
to SR-241. RCTC was the lead agency
and OCTA contributed $15 million
towards the project. Construction
began in November 2020 and was
completed in January 2022. A



J. SR-91 (SR-55 to I-15)

55

feasibility study to evaluate potential
eastbound improvements from SR-241
to SR-71 was completed in April 2022.
RCTC will be the lead agency for
advancing the eastbound
improvements known as the Eastbound
Corridor Improvement Project.

Present Day:
Today, this freeway carries about
328,000 vehicles every day. This
volume is expected to increase by
15 percent, bringing it up to 378,000
vehicles by 2035.

Benefits:
Segment 1: This project added one
general purpose lane, which improved
weaving by reducing the volume of
exiting vehicles in the SR-91 mainline
through lanes that are exiting at
Green River Road and SR-71.

Segment 2: This project helped to
alleviate congestion and reduce delay.

Segment 3: This project will reduce
congestion and delay and improve
operational efficiency by reducing the
existing chokepoints within the project
limits.

External Funding:
Segment 1: $45.91 million in federal
funds and $4.92 million in local funds
were used for this project.

Segment 2: $76.30 million in state
funds were used for this project and
$2.90 million in state funds were used
for replacement planting.

Segment 3: $15.00 million of 91
Express Lanes excess revenue is

Board approved for the Orange County
portion of this segment. RCTC will
contribute $26.80 million.

Risks:
No risks for Segments 1 and 2 as they
are complete. For segment 3, time,
scope, and costs risks are dependent
upon required coordination with RCTC.
Eastbound improvements have
engineering challenges due to project
area topography (Santa Ana Canyon)
and natural constraints (Santa Ana
River).

Related Projects:
Project I and the Riverside County
Corridor Improvement Project.

Other Involved Agencies:
Caltrans, cities of Anaheim and
Yorba Linda, Corona,
County of Orange, CTC, FHWA, and
RCTC.

Assumptions:
Cost based on December 2012 Project
Status Report (Segment 1), June 2018
Project Status Report (segment 2), and
conceptual estimates (segment 3)
which was incorporated in the
June 2022 M2 Program cash flow.

References:

• OCTA 2018 Long-Range
Transportation Plan

• December 2012 Project Status
Report (segment 1)

• June 2018 Project Status Report
(segment 2)

• Capital Funding Program Report –
State Highway Project
(August 2022)



K. I-405 (SR-73 to I-605)

56

Description:
Project K includes the addition of new
lanes to I-405 between SR-73 and
I-605. The project will make the best
use of available freeway property by
staying generally within the freeway
ROW and updating key local
interchanges to the current Master Plan
of Arterial Highway (MPAH) standards.
The project will add one general
purpose lane (approximately 14 miles)
in each direction of I-405 from
Euclid Street to I-605. Additional
improvements include reconstruction of
local interchanges and making
improvements to freeway entrances
and exits along the corridor from SR-73
to I-605 through the cities of
Costa Mesa, Fountain Valley,
Garden Grove, Huntington Beach,
Los Alamitos, Seal Beach, and
Westminster.

Concurrently with Project K, an
additional lane (approximately 16
miles) will be added in each direction
that would combine with the existing

HOV lane to provide dual express lanes
in each direction on I-405 from SR-73
to I-605. The general purpose lanes will
be funded with M2, state, and federal
funds; the express lanes will be funded
solely with toll revenues.

Cost:
M2 Portion: $1.560 billion (YOE).
Express Lanes Portion: $520 million
(YOE).

Status:
Construction began in January 2017
and is currently over 80 percent
complete related to the design/build
contract. Design/build is a project
delivery method in which one team is
hired to perform both the design and
construction of the project. The
project’s substantial completion and
opening of the 405 Express Lanes
milestones are currently anticipated to
be met in late 2023 with full project
completion anticipated in early 2024.
To date, nine of the 18 bridges have
been completed and opened to traffic.



K. I-405 (SR-73 to I-605)

57

The remaining nine bridges are in
various stages of construction.

Present Day:
On average, I-405 carries
approximately 392,000 vehicles daily.
The volume is expected to increase by
20 percent by 2035, bringing it up to
472,000 vehicles daily. The project will
reduce congestion, enhance
operations, increase mobility, improve
trip reliability, and maximize throughput
on I-405.

Benefits:
Project K includes the addition of
auxiliary and general purpose lanes
that will help reduce congestion and
improve travel times. Additional
improvements include interchange and
local street improvements, and a direct
Express Lanes connector at the
I-405/SR-73 interchange.

The express lanes will operate
congestion-free throughout the day,
due to toll rates that vary based on
traffic demand. The express lanes
provide commuters with a reliable
travel option compared to the adjacent,
general purpose lanes.

M2 improvements, in combination with
express lanes improvements, will
provide more throughput in the corridor.
These improvements will add two
additional freeway lanes to I-405 in
both directions between SR-73 to the
I-605 interchange.

External Funding:
The Board has approved funding that
supports this project, including
$89.77 million in state funds, and

$45.65 million in federal funds. The
project also successfully secured
$628.93 million from Transportation
Infrastructure Finance and Innovation
Act (TIFIA), a low-cost federal loan.
The M2 cash flow will benefit from
$108.93 million in TIFIA revenues for
this project. The entire TIFIA loan will
be paid back solely with toll revenues.

Risks:
Overall time, scope, utility relocation,
archeological discoveries and cost
risks are high with this project due to
the extensive project scope.

Related Projects:
Project L and WCC improvements at
SR-22/I-405 and I-405/I-605
interchanges (mentioned under
Project E).

Other Involved Agencies:
Caltrans, Build America Bureau TIFIA
Office, cities of Costa Mesa,
Fountain Valley, Huntington Beach,
Seal Beach, and Westminster,
Community of Rossmoor, CTC, and
FHWA.

Assumptions:
Costs based on June 2022 M2
Program cash flow. M2 will only pay for
the addition of the general purpose
lanes. Toll revenues will pay for the 405
Express Lanes.

References:

• OCTA 2018 Long-Range
Transportation Plan

• June 2022 Project Status Report

• Capital Funding Program Report –
State Highway Project
(August 2022)



L. I-405 (I-5 to SR-55)

58

Description:
Project L will add new lanes
(approximately 8.5 miles) to I-405 from
the vicinity of I-5 to SR-55 to alleviate
congestion and reduce delay. The
project will generally be constructed
within the existing ROW.

Cost:
$262.39 million (YOE).

Status:
The project completed the
environmental phase in August 2018
and is shelf-ready to begin the design
phase.

Project B (I-5, I-405 to SR-55) is a
parallel project designated for
construction. As a result, Project L will
follow to avoid excessive
inconvenience to the traveling public.
Additionally, a significant Caltrans
safety project is scheduled to take
place within the Project L project limits
and will require additional coordination.

Present Day:
This segment of the freeway carries
296,000 vehicles a day. This number
will increase by nearly 22 percent,
bringing it up to 362,000 vehicles per
day by 2035.

Benefits:
Improvements between I-5 and SR-55
would help alleviate congestion and
reduce delay.

External Funding:
The Board approved providing $8.00
million in federal funds to support the
environmental phase of the project.
This project is eligible for future state
and federal funds.

Risks:
Overall time, scope, and costs risks are
low with this project due to low ROW
impacts and straightforward design.



L. I-405 (I-5 to SR-55)

59

Related Projects:
Projects B and K.

Other Involved Agencies:
Caltrans, City of Irvine, CTC, FHWA,
and Transportation Corridor Agencies.

Assumptions:
Cost based on estimate developed in
the environmental phase which was
incorporated in the June 2022 M2
Program cash flow.

References:

• OCTA 2018 Long-Range
Transportation Plan

• February 2019 Project Status
Report

• Capital Funding Program Report –
State Highway Project
(August 2022)



M. I-605 (Katella Avenue Interchange) Improvements

60

Description:
Project M includes improvements to
I-605 freeway access and the arterial
connection at Katella Avenue, which
serves communities in the cities of
Cypress and Los Alamitos.

Cost:
$29.02 million (YOE).

Status:
The environmental phase for this

project was completed in late 2018 and

was done in cooperation with the

City of Los Alamitos. The design phase

was initiated in December 2020.

Present Day:
The existing interchange design is
outdated and results in both arterial
congestion and freeway queuing in the
interchange area.

Benefits:
The I-605 Katella Avenue interchange
project would include both freeway and
arterial improvements that would
improve interchange traffic operations
and improve bicycle and pedestrian
facilities while minimizing adjacent
ROW and environmental impacts.
Additionally, these improvements
would reduce congestion, traffic
queuing, and delay within the
interchange area.

External Funding:
The Board approved providing $17.80
million in federal funds to support the
construction phase of the project

Risks:
Overall time, scope, and costs risks are
low with this project due to low ROW
impacts and straightforward design.



M. I-605 (Katella Avenue Interchange) Improvements

61

Related Projects:
Project K and WCC improvements at
the SR-22/I-405 and I-405/I-605
interchanges (mentioned under
Project E).

Other Involved Agencies:
Caltrans and City of Los Alamitos.

Assumptions:
Cost based on June 2022 M2 Program
cash flow.

References:

• OCTA 2018 Long-Range
Transportation Plan

• June 2022 Project Status Report

• Capital Funding Program Report –
State Highway Project
(August 2022)



N. Freeway Service Patrol

62

Description:
The FSP provides competitively-bid,
privately contracted tow truck services to
help stranded motorists quickly clear
disabled vehicles and large debris from
freeway lanes to minimize congestion
caused by blocked traffic lanes and
passing motorists rubbernecking.
Currently, FSP is available on various
Orange County freeways, seven days a
week. This project assures that this basic
level of service will be continued through
2041.

Program Funding:
$64.75 million in M2 revenue between
2023 and 2032.

Status:
FSP is primarily funded by State
Highway Account (SHA) and Road
Repair and Accountability Act of 2017
(SB 1) funds. OCTA meets matching
fund requirements by utilizing a portion
of its share of Service Authority for
Freeway Emergencies (SAFE) funds,
which are collected by the Department
of Motor Vehicles each year. Since
June 2012, the FSP has assisted more
than 679,068 motorists along Orange
County freeways.

As demand, congestion levels, and
costs increase, this project will allow
the program to maintain existing
service hours and allow service to be
extended throughout the day and on
weekends on additional freeway
segments.

M2 also helps support the California
Highway Patrol (CHP) as the partner
responsible for field supervision.
Currently, M2 funds a full-time

dispatcher to ensure dispatcher
coverage seven days a week.

Present Day:
In FY 2021-22, the FSP program
provided a total of 67,224 assists to
motorists along the Orange County
freeway system.

Benefits:
To keep Orange County moving, FSP
provides free limited roadside
assistance to motorists whose vehicles
have become disabled on an
Orange County freeway. Assistance is
limited to taping a leaking hose,
providing water for a radiator, a jump
start, a gallon of gas, a tire change, or
towing a disabled vehicle off the
freeway to a designated drop zone
where the motorist may seek additional
assistance.

In FY 2019-20, for every dollar invested
in the program, Orange County
received approximately $6 of
congestion relief benefit.

External Funding:
SHA allocation provided by Caltrans –
approximately $2.2 million annually.

SB 1 allocation provided by Caltrans –
approximately $2 million annually.

SAFE ($1 per vehicle registration fee) -
funds not allocated to the Freeway Call
Box and 511 Motorist Assistance and
Traveler Information programs are
available for FSP program use, to meet
local match fund requirements –
approximately $1.2 million annually.



N. Freeway Service Patrol

63

Risks:
Should the State of California stop
funding FSP through the SHA and
SB 1, M2 will not be sufficient to
maintain existing service levels.

Related Projects:
M2 Project N funds are designated to
maintain existing service levels,
provide mid-day and weekend service,
and support FSP service for
construction of Projects A-M.

Other Involved Agencies:
Caltrans and CHP.

Assumptions:
Project N is assumed to be funded on a
pay-as-you-go basis. Funding provided
through the SHA and SB 1 are
allocated first, and then M2 funding is
applied as needed.

References:

• M2 Project N Guidelines Freeway
Service Patrol Project, approved on
February 13, 2012



Environmental Mitigation Program

64

Overview:
The EMP provides for allocation of
five percent of the total M2 freeway
budget for comprehensive
environmental mitigation related to
impacts from freeway improvements
(projects A-M). The EMP was approved
by Orange County voters under the M2
half-cent sales tax for transportation
improvements in 2006.

A master agreement between OCTA,
Caltrans, and state and federal
resource agencies was approved in
January 2010. This offers higher-value
environmental benefits such as habitat
protection, connectivity, and resource
preservation in exchange for
streamlined project approvals for the 13
(segmented into 30) M2 freeway
projects.

To adhere to the promise of M2, the
Next 10 Plan includes the following
framework for the Mitigation Program
as it relates to Projects A-M:

• Streamline freeway projects
through the biological permitting
process.

• Provide comprehensive
environmental mitigation.

• Partner with state and federal
resource and regulatory agencies.

• Provide higher-value environmental
benefits such as habitat protection,
connectivity, and resource
preservation.

Next 10 Plan Deliverables:
In 2009, the Board approved a policy to
allocate approximately 80 percent of
the revenues to acquisitions and
20 percent to fund restoration projects.
This policy will need to be revisited
periodically to ensure it continues to
meet program needs. The Next 10 Plan
recommends four major initiatives
through 2032 consistent with the above
framework:

1. Oversee and manage the
Preserves while the endowment is
being established and determine
potential long-term land manager(s)
and endowment holder(s). This
includes coordinating with local fire
authorities and the Wildlife
Agencies to monitor habitat
recovery after wildfires impact the
Preserves, such as the 2022
Coastal Fire that impacted the
Pacific Horizon Preserve.

2. Focus EMP resources funding as a
first priority toward the
establishment of the endowment for
the Preserves.

3. Review and update the resource
management plans (RMP) on the
Preserves as appropriate. This
includes the development of fire
management plans (FMP) for each
of the Preserves.

4. Complete approximately 350 acres
of restoration projects funded
through M2 to fulfill the
Conservation Plan commitments.



Environmental Mitigation Program

65

Description:
In 2010, OCTA began preparing a
Conservation Plan, which examines
habitat resources within broad
geographic areas and identifies
conservation and mitigation measures
to protect habitat and species. This
analysis was completed in 2016; in
accordance with the master agreement
“advance credit” provision, funds were
allocated prior to completion of the
Conservation Plan. In 2017, the United
States Fish and Wildlife Service
(USFWS) and the California
Department of Fish and Wildlife
(CDFW) (collectively, Wildlife
Agencies) finalized the issuance of
their respective biological opinion,
findings, and associated permits, as
well as signed the Conservation Plan
Implementing Agreement. Receipt of
these permits represent the culmination
of years of collaboration and support by
the Board, environmental community,
and Wildlife Agencies.

Concurrent with efforts made toward
completing the Conservation Plan and
EIR/Environmental Impact Statement
(EIS), OCTA collaborated with the
United States Army Corps of Engineers
(USACE) and the State Water
Resources Control Board (SWRCB) -
regulatory agencies - to streamline the
regulatory permitting process. In 2017,
the USACE issued a programmatic
permit to OCTA and Caltrans (as
owner/operator of the state highway
system). The SWRCB provided a letter
to OCTA in 2018, which further secured
assurances related to advanced
mitigation and freeway project permit
issuance.

RMPs for each of the seven Preserves
were finalized in 2018. These RMPs
guide the management of the
Preserves as outlined within the
Conservation Plan. The Conservation
Plan also requires that each Preserve
also have a Preserve-specific FMP.
These FMPs were developed in
coordination with local fire agencies
and will require approval from the
Wildlife Agencies. The FMPs will be
attachments to the RMPs. Staff will
continue to oversee and manage the
Preserves until a long-term
management strategy is determined at
which time, the Preserve
responsibilities would be transferred to
another entity.

Cost:
In 2007, the Board approved
approximately $55 million as part of the
EAP. Accordingly, $42 million and
$10.5 million were allocated for
acquisition and restoration,
respectively. An additional $2.5 million
was allocated for the Conservation Plan
development and program support,
including appraisals and biological
surveys.

Status:
Since 2010, a total of $10 million has
been allocated for 12 projects to restore
approximately 350 acres of open space
lands throughout Orange County.

On September 26, 2016, the Board
approved the selection of the
endowment fund manager. Annually,
approximately $2.9 million is deposited
in the endowment. These annual
deposits are expected over a ten to 12
year period, or until the fund totals



Environmental Mitigation Program

66

approximately $46.2 million. As of
June 30, 2022, the balance was
$19,332,924, which includes six
deposits. Annual endowment deposits
will continue to be made near the
beginning of each fiscal year.

The Wildlife Agencies finalized the
issuance of their respective permits, as
well as executing the Implementing
Agreement in 2017. In early 2018,
OCTA secured advance streamlined
state and federal clean water permitting
requirements.

All seven Preserves have finalized
RMPs and are being managed and
protected for an interim period by
OCTA staff and contractors. These
RMPs will be reevaluated every five
years and revised as necessary. Staff
will continue to oversee and manage
the Preserves while a long-term
management strategy and manager is
determined.

Present Day:
In consultation with the local fire
authority, staff has developed FMPs for
the seven Preserves. The plans
provide guidelines for decision-making
at all stages including fire prevention,
pre-fire vegetation management,
suppression activities, and post-fire
responses that are compatible with
conservation and stewardship
responsibilities. These plans are a
requirement of the Conservation Plan
and are currently being reviewed for
approval by the Wildlife Agencies.

Benefits:
The completed Conservation Plan and
regulatory permitting process are tools

by which OCTA obtains biological and
regulatory permits/assurances for the
13 (segmented into 30) M2 freeway
projects. This comprehensive process
enables OCTA to streamline future M2
freeway improvement projects.

External Funding:
Examples of external funding available
for this program include:

• USFWS contribution toward the
acquisition of open space land in
the Trabuco Canyon area.

• USFWS Habitat Conservation
Planning Assistant Grant to help
fund the completion of the
Conservation Plan.

• Restoration project sponsors utilize
external funds and resources to
implement their projects.

Risks:
To date, four restoration projects have
been completed and signed off by the
Wildlife Agencies. The success of the
restoration projects will support
OCTA’s Conservation Plan and
regulatory permitting processes.
However, unforeseeable conditions
such as the frequency of drought and
wildfires have and may continue to
impact plant reestablishment.
Additional funding may be necessary to
ensure successful implementation of
the restoration projects if the Wildlife
Agencies do not sign off on the project
under current conditions.

OCTA will need to establish the
endowment over a ten to 12-year
period. OCTA currently holds the title
and interim land management
responsibility of the Preserves but will



Environmental Mitigation Program

67

potentially secure a long-term land
manager(s) in the future.

Related Projects:
Projects A-M.

Other Involved Agencies:
Caltrans, CDFW, the environmental
community, SWRCB, USACE, and
USFWS.

Assumptions:
This program is assumed to be funded
primarily on a pay-as-you-go basis in
the future, in addition to prior bonding
issuances. More detailed assumptions
are included in the appendices.

References:

• Final Conservation Plan and EIR/EIS

• Additional resources can be found
online: www.octa.net/environmental

http://www.octa.net/environmental


68

This page intentionally left blank



Environmental Mitigation Program

69

Program

Streets and Roads



This page intentionally left blank



71



72



Streets and Roads

73

Overview:
Local streets provide the capacity for the
movement of people and goods which is
essential to Orange County’s commerce
and vitality. Streets carry approximately
half of Orange County’s car and truck
traffic and nearly all of Orange County’s
bicycle and pedestrian traffic. Keeping
people moving on local streets is an
essential function of the M2 funding
programs for local streets. To meet this
broad mobility goal, the Next 10 Plan
includes the following framework for the
Streets and Roads Program:

• Target M2 competitive program funds
for streets with the worst traffic
congestion.

• Maintain the value of investments in
streets by synchronizing traffic signals
and keeping pavement in good
condition.

• Consider all modes of travel when
planning for added street capacity.

Next 10 Plan Deliverables:
Continue to provide funding to improve
the countywide network of streets and
roads making them safer and more
efficient. The Next 10 Plan for streets and
roads recommends two major initiatives
through 2032, consistent with the above
framework:

1. Provide annual calls for competitive
funding to local jurisdictions to
address bottlenecks and gaps in the
street system and synchronize
signals (Project O and P).

2. Provide flexible funding to local
jurisdictions to preserve the quality of
streets or for use on other
transportation needs as appropriate
(Project Q).



O. Regional Capacity Program

74

Description:
Project O provides funding through a
competitive process to local jurisdictions
for recommended streets and roads
projects which complete the
Orange County MPAH, relieve
congestion, are cost effective, and can
proceed to construction quickly. These
projects fall into one of two categories as
described below.

RCP: This portion of Project O provides
a funding source to complete the
Orange County MPAH, a plan for future
roadway improvements throughout
Orange County. This includes
intersection improvements and other
projects that help improve street
operations and reduce congestion. The
M2 goal for these projects is to complete
roughly 1,000 miles of new street lanes,
mostly in the form of widening existing
streets to their ultimate planned width.
Matching local funds are required for
these projects.

OC Bridges: This portion of Project O
funded seven over- or underpass grade
separations that eliminate car and train
conflicts along the BNSF railway
(Orangethorpe Avenue corridor) in
northern Orange County. These grade
separations increased safety for
everyone traveling through the
intersections and eliminate delays
caused by trains.

Program Funding:
RCP: $378.45 million between 2023
and 2032.

Status:
To date, OCTA has awarded $350
million, which includes $24 million in
external funding, to 173 projects
through 12 competitive RCP calls.
Annual calls are planned for projects
between 2023 and 2032.

As of November 2017, all seven grade
separation projects were opened to
traffic (Kraemer Boulevard, Lakeview
Avenue, Orangethorpe Avenue,
Placentia Avenue, Raymond Avenue,
State College Boulevard, and
Tustin Avenue/Rose Drive). No future
calls for grade separations are
anticipated.

Present Day:
Annual RCP calls take place providing
local jurisdictions the opportunity to
request funding for street
improvements.

Benefits:
Completion of the MPAH system,
including grade separations, will result
in better traffic flow and a more efficient
transportation system.



O. Regional Capacity Program

75

External Funding:
RCP: Local jurisdictions are required
to provide a 50 percent local match.
Matching funds may be reduced
contingent on participation in pavement
and signal programs, as well as use of
non-M2 funds for local match. While
other external state and federal funding
are not typically used for RCP projects,
there have been eight projects to date
which qualified for and received State-
Local Partnership Program funds,
amounting to approximately
$24 million.

OC Bridges: The Board approved the
use of $209.7 in federal funds and
$260.8 million in state funds for this
project. Additionally, local jurisdictions
provided $44.4 million in funding. OC
Bridges funding includes 75 percent in
external local, state, and federal funds.

Risks:
Local jurisdictions must meet and
maintain eligibility requirements to
receive net M2 funds. Additionally,
funds received are subject to M2 timely
use of funds provisions.

Related Projects:
Project P and Project Q.

Other Involved Agencies:
All local jurisdictions (cities and County
of Orange).

Assumptions:
Project O is assumed to be funded
primarily on a pay-as-you-go basis with
bonding for the seven OC Bridges
projects. More detailed assumptions
are included in the appendices.

References:

• M2 Eligibility Guidelines

• Comprehensive Transportation
Funding Guidelines

• Orange County MPAH Guidelines

• Capital Funding Program Report –
Local Road Project
(June 2022)



P. Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program

76

Description:
Project P provides funds to local
jurisdictions to implement new signal
timing on a 750-mile regional network
that covers most of Orange County.
Optimizing traffic signal timing is a
low-cost, high-benefit approach to
reducing congestion and improving
traffic flow. Better signal timing results
in fewer traffic stops, delays, pollution,
and saves commuters gas and money.

Program Funding:
$180.68 million between 2023 and
2032.

Status:
Annual calls are planned for projects
between 2023 and 2032. As of
June 2022, OCTA has funded
approximately $157 million, including
$30.5 million in external funding, to 128
projects. Since 2008, 96 corridor-based
signal synchronization projects for a
cost of approximately $82.2 million
(including non-M2 funds) have been
implemented, 29 are planned or
underway, and three have been
cancelled. Including early efforts,
OCTA and local jurisdictions have
synchronized more than 3,300
intersections. From FY 2022-23
through FY 2031-32, the entire network
of signals is anticipated to have been
retimed or optimized at least two times.
This equates to more than 4,000
intersections retimed over a ten-year
period.

Present Day:
In the past, many traffic signal
synchronization projects were limited to
segments of roads in individual cities.
M2 provides funds to expand these

projects to benefit neighboring cities
and regional corridors.

Benefits:
Optimizing signal timing offers
substantial benefits in reducing traffic
delays and improving air quality. To
date, OCTA has implemented
optimized signal timing on 96 corridors
with 3,338 intersections covering 858
miles of roadway. On the average,
each project resulted in a 12 percent
travel time savings for corridor end-to-
end travel, saving commuters time and
money for a relatively low investment.
Future projects may see comparable
benefits when combined with capital
improvements to reduce physical
bottlenecks where appropriate.

External Funding:
Local jurisdictions are required to
provide a 20 percent local match.
Matching funds may be in-kind
services. There may be future needs
for more capital-intensive investments
as systems age.

Projects that started prior to the 2011
call were funded with $4.95 million in
M1, $1.77 million in federal Congestion
Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement
(CMAQ), and $3.82 million in Prop 1B
funds. The 2013 call was partially
funded with $1.25 million in Mobile
Source Air Pollution Reduction Review
Committee grant money. The 2018 call
was able to leverage $6.69 million in SB
1 Local Partnership Program
competitive grant funds. OCTA was
also able to leverage $12 million in SB
1 Solutions for Congested Corridor
Program competitive grant funds for
three corridor projects outside the 2020



P. Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program

77

call. In all, external funding (not
including funds provided by local
jurisdictions) contributed is
approximately $30.4 million.

Risks:
Local jurisdictions must meet and
maintain eligibility requirements to
receive net M2 funds. Additionally,
funds received are subject to M2 timely
use of funds provisions.

Related Projects:
Project O (RCP) and Project Q.

Other Involved Agencies:
Caltrans and all local jurisdictions
(cities and County of Orange).

Assumptions:
Project P is assumed to be funded on a
pay-as-you-go basis.

References:

• M2 Eligibility Guidelines

• Comprehensive Transportation
Funding Program Guidelines

• OCTA’s Comprehensive
Business Plan

• Capital Funding Program Report
– Local Road Project
(June 2022)



Q. Local Fair Share Program

78

Description:
Project Q provides formula-based funds
that local jurisdictions may use for a
variety of transportation purposes and
needs, including repairing aging streets,
residential street projects, bicycle lanes,
and pedestrian safety.

Key among these needs is pavement
preservation, which involves extending
the useful life of pavement and avoiding
costly street reconstruction. Preserving
and maintaining roads in good condition
is a key goal of M2 and Project Q in
particular.

Program Funding:
Up to $926.52 million will be provided
between 2023 and 2032.

Status:
As of June 2022, approximately
$584.32 million in LFS payments have
been provided to local jurisdictions and
the County.

Orange County streets are in generally
good condition on average (with a
pavement condition index of 79 based
on the 2020 statewide report, the best in
state). As roadway pavement conditions
deteriorate, however, the cost for repairs
increases exponentially. For example, it
costs as much as 14 times more to
reconstruct pavement than to preserve it
when it is in good condition.

Present Day:
The cost of street rehabilitation has
increased substantially in recent years,
and gas tax revenues have not kept
pace, which has a direct impact on the
ability to fund street maintenance and
rehabilitation.

Benefits:
Investments in streets and roads save
future costs, keep traffic moving, and
offer expanded travel choices.

LFS funds are also flexible and can be
used as matching funds for capacity
and safety projects, bicycle and
pedestrian facilities, as well as local
transit services.

External Funding:
This program is not externally funded.

Risks:
Local jurisdictions must meet and
maintain eligibility requirements to
receive net M2 funds. Additionally,
funds received are subject to M2
timely-use of funds provisions.

Related Projects:
Project O (RCP) and Project P.

Other Involved Agencies:
All local jurisdictions (cities and County
of Orange).

Assumptions:
Project Q is assumed to be funded on
a pay-as-you-go basis.

References:

• M2 Eligibility Guidelines

• 2018 California Statewide Local
Streets and Roads Needs
Assessment

• OCTA’s Comprehensive
Business Plan

• Capital Funding Program Report
– Local Road Project
(June 2022)



79

•

Transit Program



80

This page intentionally left blank



81

This page intentionally left blank



82



Transit Program

83

Overview:
The goal of the Transit Program is to
build a visionary transit system that is
safe, clean, and convenient, with a focus
on Orange County’s transportation
future. Providing mobility choices and
connectivity for Orange County residents
and workers are key components of the
overall M2 Plan. To meet this broad
mobility goal, the Next 10 Plan includes
the following framework for the Transit
Program:

• Ensure efficient and integrated
Metrolink service for Orange County
residents.

• Assess and deliver transit options
providing riders first and last mile
connections and alternatives to
driving.

• Provide services and programs to
meet the growing transportation
needs of seniors and persons with
disabilities.

• Support local agency efforts to deliver
Board-approved community-based
transit projects.

• Advance improvements to the
busiest transit stops across the
County to provide passenger
amenities that ease transfers
between bus lines.

Next 10 Plan Deliverables:
The Next 10 Plan for transit recommends
seven major initiatives through 2032,
consistent with the above framework.

1. Complete one rail station
improvement.

2. Sustain Metrolink service as an
attractive alternative to driving in
Orange County.

3. Complete construction and begin
operating the OC Streetcar.

4. Incorporate recommendations from
planning studies to guide
development of future transit
connections.

5. Support expanded mobility choices
for seniors and persons with
disabilities.

6. Work with local jurisdictions to
maintain successful community
circulator projects and potentially
provide grant opportunities for
expanded or new local transit
services.

7. Continue to improve the top 100
busiest bus stops in Orange
County.



R. High Frequency Metrolink Service

84

Description:
Project R provides for sustained and
expanded rail service into Los Angeles
and Orange counties along the three
Metrolink lines serving Orange County
(Orange County, Inland Empire-Orange
County, and 91/Perris Valley Lines).
Project R also provides for safety and
operational improvements to the railroad
infrastructure necessary to support
existing and expanded train service,
including grade crossing improvements,
track improvements, signal and
communications system improvements,
as well as other projects as necessary to
support the rail system. Grade
separation projects will be considered as
available funding permits.

Program Cost:
Approximately $503.03 million between
2023 and 2032.

Status:
To date, rail safety enhancements at
50 at-grade rail-highway crossings have
been completed. As a result, quiet zones
have been established in the cities of
Anaheim, Dana Point, Irvine, Orange,
San Clemente, San Juan Capistrano,
Santa Ana, and Tustin.

Station improvements completed during
the EAP include parking expansion
projects at the Fullerton Transportation
Center, Tustin Station and
Laguna Niguel/Mission Viejo Station, as
well as safety repairs to the
San Clemente Pier Station platform.

Since then, several station improvement
projects have been completed: the
San Clemente Pier Metrolink/
Amtrak Station lighting, the

Laguna Niguel/Mission Viejo Metrolink
Station Americans with Disabilities Act
(ADA) ramps, the Orange Transportation
Center Parking Structure, the Fullerton
Transportation Center elevator upgrades
project and stair replacement project,
and detectable tile replacements at
various stations.

One major rail station improvement is
anticipated to be completed during the
Next 10 Plan: Anaheim Canyon
Metrolink Station improvement project.

The Anaheim Canyon Metrolink Station
project began construction in May 2021
and is anticipated to be complete in early
2023. The new Placentia Metrolink
Station project is on hold pending a
shared-use agreement between
Metrolink and BNSF prior to
advertisement and construction. There is
no projected date for when this
agreement will be completed at this time.

Completed rail corridor improvements
include Control Point at 4th Street,
Control Point Stadium, the
San Clemente Beach Trail Audible
Warning System, Laguna Niguel to
San Juan Capistrano Passing Siding,
Railroad ROW Slope Stabilization, and
six Project Study Reports for potential
grade separations along the
Los Angeles-San Diego-San Luis
Obispo Rail (LOSSAN) corridor,
including: 17th Street, Ball Road,
Grand Avenue, Main Street,
Orangethorpe Avenue, and
Santa Ana Boulevard.

Rail corridor improvements underway
include: San Juan Creek Railroad
Bridge Replacement, track stabilization



R. High Frequency Metrolink Service

85

in San Clemente, Metrolink Preventive
Maintenance Capitalized Operation,
Metrolink Rehabilitation/Renovation,
and ongoing operation of Positive Train
Control.

Present Day:
Metrolink is currently operating
45 weekday trains. In October 2019,
four intracounty trips operating
between Laguna Niguel/ Mission Viejo
and Fullerton were extended to
Los Angeles, however the extended
trips were temporarily suspended due
to COVID-19. In April 2022, Metrolink
partially restored some service in
response to customer feedback and
demand for more train trips. OCTA will
continue to actively engage with
Metrolink and other member agencies
and monitor ridership levels and the
corresponding financial impacts to M2.

Benefits:
Project R allows for sustained
operation and enhanced capacity of
Metrolink trains serving Orange County,
providing a viable alternative to single-
occupant vehicle travel, thereby reducing
congestion on crowded roadways and
freeways.

External Funding:
State: State Transportation
Improvement Program (STIP),
Propositions 1A, 1B, and 116, and
Transit and Intercity Rail Capital
Program totaling $285.78 million.
Federal: CMAQ, the Surface
Transportation Block Grant Program,
and FTA Sections 5307, 5309, and
5337, totaling $467.04 million.

Other Local: Local funding from the
cities as well as other entities is
programmed for $86.26 million.

M1 also provided $136.58 million.

Risks:
Close monitoring of Metrolink
operations is necessary to ensure
sustainability through 2041. Metrolink
ridership recovery has struggled to
meet projections, thereby reducing
farebox revenues. To exacerbate this
shortfall, operating costs have
increased. Consequently, Metrolink
has postponed full service restoration
that was scheduled for October 2022 to
manage costs and is working on
campaigns to attract more riders.
However, many variables affect
ridership recovery, such as prevalence
of flexible remote work policies,
pandemic worries, and longer than
average travel times. Without changes
in service levels, ridership growth, and
operations and rehabilitation costs or
availability of external funds, the
current service cannot be sustained
beyond FY 2035-36. Staff will closely
monitor as these variables change.

Another impact to Metrolink in Orange
County is the railroad track stabilization
effort in the City of San Clemente;
OCTA owns the railroad right-of-way in
the affected area. In September 2021,
a failing slope severely degraded the
railroad track structure. Emergency
repair efforts were taken between late
2021 and early 2022. However, recent
higher tidal events have continued to
impact the stability of the track, leading
to a suspension of rail service. On
October 3, 2022, the Board adopted a
resolution to authorize OCTA to take all



R. High Frequency Metrolink Service

86

necessary actions to address the
emergency need for railroad track
stabilization. These repairs are funded
from the commuter rail fund and some
state emergency funds for this phase of
the work. More enduring treatments
need to be developed to ensure the
ability to provide rail service in this
portion of the county, the cost for which
is undetermined at present.  Future
updates to the Next 10 Plan will need to
consider the financial implications of
the long-term track improvement
needs.

Related Projects:
Project S, Project T, and Project V.

Other Involved Agencies:
BNSF, Caltrans, California Office of
Emergency Services, California Public
Utilities Commission (CPUC),
California State Transportation Agency
(CalSTA), Corridor Agencies, CTC,
FTA, Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority, Metrolink,
RCTC, San Bernardino County
Transportation Authority, and Ventura
County Transportation Commission.

Assumptions:
Funding and operating agreements
with partner agencies will be
successfully implemented.

References:

• OCTA’s Comprehensive Business
Plan

• Capital Funding Program Report -
Rail Project (August 2022)



S. Transit Extensions to Metrolink

87

Description:
Project S establishes a competitive
program for local jurisdictions to broaden
the reach of Metrolink to other
Orange County cities, communities, and
activity centers via transit, to connect
passengers to their final destinations.
With approximately 60 percent of
Orange County’s population and
employment centers located within a
four-mile radius of Metrolink stations, the
emphasis of Project S is on expanding
access to the core rail system and
establishing connections to destinations
that are not immediately adjacent to the
Metrolink corridor, within the central core,
north and south of Orange County.
These connections may include a variety
of transit technologies such as
conventional bus or vanpool (Rubber
Tire), bus rapid transit or high capacity
rail transit systems (Fixed Guideways),
as long as they can be fully integrated
and provide seamless transition for the
users.

Program Funding:
Approximately $390.04 million between
2023 and 2032 for fixed guideways in
sales tax revenue.

Status:
Fixed Guideway: Through a competitive
process, one project (OC Streetcar)
advanced beyond initial study. The OC
Streetcar is under construction and will
operate in the cities of Garden Grove
and Santa Ana.

Rubber Tire: One call has been issued
since 2012, providing approximately
$732,000 for four projects in the cities
of Anaheim and Lake Forest. The
City of Lake Forest has cancelled all

three projects. The City of Anaheim
project successfully completed its grant
on June 30, 2020, and is being funded
on a go-forward basis through a
subsequent Project V grant. No future
calls for rubber tire projects are
anticipated.

Present Day:
Maintaining and growing Metrolink
ridership relies on convenient and
seamless bus and rail connections.
Currently, OCTA fixed bus service and
company shuttles are the prime
providers of transit connections.
However, Uber/Lyft paid-ridesharing
services have been a growing presence.

Benefits:
Project S will provide expanded transit
access to the centralized Metrolink
system, thereby allowing Metrolink
commuters to connect to other parts of
the County without using an
automobile.

External Funding:
Fixed Guideways: External funds for two
preliminary studies for the cities of
Anaheim and Santa Ana were funded
with $3.12 million in federal FTA
Section 5307 and city local funds. M1
also provided $20.63 million for
preliminary studies.

The Board has approved funding
supporting the OC Streetcar project,
including $25.59 million in contribution
of state funds, and $299.93 million in
federal funds from federal ARP, CMAQ,
FTA Section 5307 and 5309, and New
Starts funding, totaling $325.52 million.



S. Transit Extensions to Metrolink

88

Rubber Tire: None. These projects are
funded by M2 and local city matching
funds.

Risks:
Overall schedule, scope, and cost risks
are high with this project due to the
extensive project scope.

Related Projects:
Project R (High Frequency Metrolink
Service), Project T, and Project V.

Other Involved Agencies:
CalSTA, Caltrans, CPUC, CTC, FTA,
and local jurisdictions.

Assumptions:
OC Streetcar: Cities of Garden Grove
and Santa Ana will provide their
required match for operations.

Funding for a future call will be at the
Board’s discretion.

Rubber Tire: Future calls will be at the
Board’s discretion based on the level of
interest from local jurisdictions but will
likely be transitioned to Project V which
provides for greater flexibility.

References:

• M2 Eligibility Guidelines

• Project S Guidelines

• Federal 5307 and 5309 Funding
Guidelines

• OCTA’s Comprehensive Business
Plan

• OC Streetcar Project Revised
Funding Plan (December 2021)

• Capital Funding Program Report -
Rail Project (August 2022)



T. Convert Metrolink Stations to Regional Gateways that Connect
Orange County with High-Speed Rail Systems

89

Description:
Provide funding for local improvements
to stations along the LOSSAN corridor
in Orange County to facilitate
connections to future high-speed rail
systems, thereby ensuring Orange
County’s presence in the development
and implementation of high-speed rail
systems that will serve Orange County.
One project, the Anaheim Regional
Transportation Intermodal Center
(ARTIC), moved forward to completion.

Cost:
M2 contributed $35.29 million of the
$225.53 million cost of the ARTIC project.

Status:
As part of EAP efforts, OCTA held a
competitive call in 2009 for eligible
station cities for the development and
implementation of station projects in
preparation of future high-speed rail
systems. The cities of Anaheim,
Fullerton, Irvine, and Santa Ana were
awarded funding for planning of major
expansions of their Metrolink Stations.
The City of Anaheim received
environmental clearance for the ARTIC
project in early 2012. The completed
facility opened to rail and bus service
on December 6, 2014.

On December 14, 2015, the Board
amended the M2 Ordinance and Plan
to officially close out Project T by
considering the completion of ARTIC
as fulfilling the intent of Project T, as the
only Orange County station on the
planned high-speed rail route. The
remaining balance of M2 funds were
then transferred to two projects in need:
the Metrolink Service Expansion

Program (part of Project R), and the
Fare Stabilization Program for Seniors
and Persons with Disabilities (part of
Project U).

Present Day:
In partnership with transportation
agencies, corridor cities, and
stakeholders, the California High-
Speed Rail Authority in 2008 planned a
high-speed rail system that was
envisioned to extend as far north as
Sacramento and as far south as
San Diego with a connection in
Anaheim. Work on the Central Valley
segment from Bakersfield to Merced
continues, however other areas of the
system have been postponed.

Benefits:
Early completion of Project T allowed
for investment in Orange County’s rail
system to facilitate the planned ultimate
integration of various high-speed rail
systems within the County. The project
relocated the prior rail station from
leased land in the Los Angeles Angels
of Anaheim parking lot, to its new
permanent location as a multimodal
station for all transit riders.

External Funding:
State: STIP totaling $29.22 million.

Federal: CMAQ, Regional Surface
Transportation Program, FTA Sections
5309 and 5337, FTA Bus Livability,
and Highway Safety Improvement
Program, totaling $76.00 million.

M1 also provided $87.02 million of
which $32.50 million for ROW will be



T. Convert Metrolink Stations to Regional Gateways that Connect
Orange County with High-Speed Rail Systems

90

repaid plus interest by the City of
Anaheim by 2025.

Risks:
None – project completed.

Related Projects:
California High-Speed Rail System.

Other Involved Agencies:
California High-Speed Rail Authority,
Caltrans, cities of Anaheim, Fullerton,
Irvine, and Santa Ana, CTC, FTA, and
Metrolink.

Assumptions:
The California High-Speed Rail System
will extend to the City of Anaheim as
identified in their 2016 Business Plan.

References:

• M2 Eligibility Guidelines

• Section 5309 and 5337 Funding
Guidelines

• California High-Speed Rail 2016
Business Plan

• December 2017 Project Status
Report

• Capital Funding Program Report –
Rail Project (August 2022)



U. Expand Mobility Choices for Seniors and Persons with
Disabilities

91

Description:
Project U provides funding for three
programs to expand mobility choices for
seniors and persons with disabilities.

The SMP, administered by OCTA, was
first established in 2001. For the first ten
years, this program was supported with
Transit Development Act funds. The
allocation of Project U funding ensures
the continuation of dedicated resources
to sustain this program.

The SNEMT Program was established
by the County of Orange in 2003, utilizing
Tobacco Settlement Revenue (TSR) to
fund the program. Project U funding
supplements existing TSR resources to
expand the capacity of the program and
increase the number of available
SNEMT trips.

The Fare Stabilization Program ensures
that fares for seniors and persons with
disabilities continue to be discounted at
the same percentage as 2006 levels.

Program Funding:
Up to $178.61 million will be provided
between 2023 through 2032.

Status:
SMP: This program offers a variety of
senior transportation resources.
Participating cities determine the
services that best meet the needs of the
seniors in their community. Examples of
services include transportation for
medical, nutrition, shopping, and social
trips. As of June 2022, there are 32 cities

4
Only includes disbursed funds. On October 12, 2020, the

Board approved a temporary exception to the SMP
guidelines, which allows OCTA to hold allocations in

participating; however, one cities’ service
remains temporarily suspended due to
COVID-19.

SNEMT: This program is administered
by the County of Orange Office on Aging
and is carried out by two transportation
contractors. This program provides
approximately 140,000 annual trips
under Project U for non-emergency
services such as trips to doctor and
dental appointments, therapy, dialysis,
and pharmacy visits.

As of June 2022, approximately
$42.40 million has supported over
132.7 million trips through the Fare
Stabilization Program, $30.284 million
provided nearly 2.6 million trips through
SMP, and $32.61 million provided nearly
1.4 million trips through the SNEMT
Program since the inception of M2.

Fare Stabilization: In December 2015,
the Board approved an amendment to
the M2 Ordinance and M2 Plan that
backfilled a funding shortfall identified in
this program with remaining Project T
funds. Effective January 2016, an
amendment to the M2 Ordinance
adjusted this amount to
1.47 percent of net M2 revenues. With
the amendment, projected Fare
Stabilization revenues are expected to
be solvent through the life of the M2
Program.

Present Day:
Studies of senior mobility needs have
identified seniors’ preference for utilizing

reserve for agencies with suspended services due to the
COVID-19 pandemic. The funds will be held until the State
lifts the State of Emergency or the agency resumes
transportation services, whichever occurs first.



U. Expand Mobility Choices for Seniors and Persons with
Disabilities

92

local, community-based transportation
services rather than countywide or
regional services.

The SMP allows participating cities to
identify the specific mobility needs of the
seniors in their communities and develop
transportation programs to best meet
those needs with available funding.

The SNEMT Program fills a gap in senior
transportation services, as trips are often
provided to seniors who do not qualify for
OC ACCESS service, or to seniors
whose advanced age or disposition
make it difficult to use OC ACCESS
service. Contracting with social service
agencies to provide SNEMT services
allows this program to provide enhanced
service elements beyond the
requirements of OC ACCESS, a
paratransit service that complements
OCTA’s fixed-route bus service and is
provided to comply with ADA.

Benefits:
M2 funding of these programs, combined
with OC ACCESS service and other
senior transportation services funded
with public and private resources,
provide a menu of mobility options for
Orange County seniors, allowing them to
select the service that most appropriately
meets their transportation need.

External Funding:
Local jurisdictions contribute a
20 percent match to their SMP services.
A variety of funding sources are used by
cities for their SMP match requirement,
including general fund, Community
Development Block Grants,
sponsorships, advertising revenue, and

administrative in-kind resources. The
County of Orange utilizes primarily TSR
funds to meet their maintenance of effort
requirement.

Risks:
Local jurisdictions must meet eligibility
requirements and provide matching
funds for SMP.

Related Projects:
Not Applicable.

Other Involved Agencies:
Nearly all local jurisdictions. Participating
SMP cities include: Aliso Viejo, Anaheim,
Brea, Buena Park, Costa Mesa,
Cypress, Dana Point, Fountain Valley,
Fullerton, Garden Grove,
Huntington Beach, Irvine, La Habra,
Laguna Beach, Laguna Hills,
Laguna Niguel, Laguna Woods,
Lake Forest, Mission Viejo,
Newport Beach, Orange, Placentia,
Rancho Santa Margarita, San Clemente,
San Juan Capistrano, Santa Ana,
Seal Beach, Stanton, Tustin, Villa Park,
Westminster, and Yorba Linda. The
Orange County Office on Aging
administers the SNEMT Program.

Assumptions:
Project U is assumed to be funded on a
pay-as-you-go basis.

References:

• M2 Eligibility Guidelines

• Project U Funding and Policy
Guidelines

• OCTA’s Comprehensive Business
Plan



V. Community-Based Circulators

93

Description:
Project V provides funding to local
jurisdictions through a competitive
process to develop local bus transit
services, such as community-based
circulators, shuttles, and bus trolleys
that complement regional bus and rail
services and meet local needs in areas
not adequately served by regional
transit. Projects need to meet
performance criteria, connect to bus
and rail services, and document
financial viability to be considered for
funding.

Program Funding:
$99.30 million between 2023 through
2032.

Status:
Since M2 inception, the Board has
approved $52 million for 35 projects
(Note: service expansions and/or
extensions from the 2018 & 2020 calls
are counted as separate projects) and
ten planning studies through four calls.

Out of the 35 projects awarded by
OCTA: 17 are currently active, five are
suspended (or not initiated) due to
COVID-19, ten have been cancelled
(primarily due to low ridership), and
three have been completed.

Present Day:
Project V helps address the regularly-
expressed need for local community-
based transit service by Orange County
communities.

Benefits:
Community-based circulators can
provide relief to arterials in high traffic
areas, and provide non-auto based
mobility options that meet specific local
needs.

External Funding:
The local match requirement for both
capital and any operating funds
authorized by the Board is a minimum
of ten percent.

Risks:
Local jurisdictions must meet eligibility
requirements to receive funding. Ability
to sustain service and ridership will be
key to moving projects forward.
Changes in travel behavior and flexible
remote work schedules may also
impact ridership as services are
re-initiated post-pandemic.

Related Projects:
Project S (some Project S and V routes
could serve dual purposes).

Other Involved Agencies:
Participating local jurisdictions.

Assumptions:
Project V is assumed to be funded on a
pay-as-you-go basis.

References:

• M2 Eligibility Guidelines

• Project V Guidelines

• OCTA’s Comprehensive
Business Plan



W. Safe Transit Stops

94

Description:
Project W provides funding for
passenger amenities at the 100 busiest
transit stops across Orange County.
The intent is to assist bus riders in the
ease of transfer between bus lines and
provide passenger amenities.

Program Funding:
$9.19 million between 2023 through
2032.

Status:
Since inception, the Board has
approved over $3.1 million for 122 stop
improvements through three calls. To
date, 49 stops have been completed,
63 stop improvements are either
planned or underway, and ten
improvements have been cancelled by
the awarded agency.

Present Day:
High volume stops are eligible for
funding providing needed passenger
amenities commensurate with the
volume of riders.

Benefits:
Eligible improvements in locations
where such amenities do not exist to
enhance the customer experience.
Improvements include enhancements
such as sun/rain protection, passenger
seating, improved lighting, etc.

External Funding:
Minimal local match provided for design
requests; the rest is 100 percent M2
funded up to the Project W funding
caps. If over the cap, then additional
local agency funds are required.

Risks:
Local jurisdiction-initiated: Local
jurisdictions are responsible for
amenities at bus stops. Depending on
the amenities selected, long-term
maintenance and costs could be
required.

Related Projects:
Not Applicable.

Other Involved Agencies:
Local jurisdictions with a top 100
busiest stop are eligible to receive
these funds.

Assumptions:
Project W is assumed to be funded on
a pay-as-you-go basis.

References:

• M2 Eligibility Guidelines

• Project W Guidelines

• OCTA’s Comprehensive
Business Plan



95

Environmental Cleanup Program



96

This page intentionally left blank



97



Environmental Cleanup Program

98

Overview:
The ECP (Project X) allocates
approximately $301 million toward
improving overall water quality in Orange
County from transportation-related
pollution. Project X was approved by
Orange County voters under the M2
half-cent sales tax for transportation
improvements in 2006.

To adhere to the promise of M2, the
Next 10 Plan includes the following
framework for Project X:

• Provide supplemental funds (not
supplant) for existing
transportation-related water
quality programs.

• Allocate funds on a competitive
basis to improve water quality
standards in Orange County.

• Reduce transportation-generated
pollutants along Orange County’s
streets, roads, and freeways.

• Implement best management
practices to improve runoff from
streets, roads, and freeways.

Additionally, as part of the overall M2 Plan,
all M2 capital projects (freeway, street, and
transit) must include water quality
mitigation as part of their respective project
scope and cost. Therefore, this source of
funding is not eligible for environmental
mitigation efforts.

Next 10 Plan Deliverables:
The Next 10 Plan for Project X
recommends two major initiatives
through 2032 consistent with the above
framework:

1. Protect Orange County beaches
by removing trash from entering
waterways and inlets that
ultimately lead to the ocean.

2. Work with the ECAC to develop
the next tiers of water quality
funding programs to prevent the
flow of trash, pollutants, and
debris into waterways from
transportation facilities. In
addition, focus on improving water
quality on a regional scale that
encourages partnerships among
the local agencies as part of
Project X.



X. Environmental Cleanup Program

99

Description:
Project X implements street- and highway-
related water quality improvement
programs and projects that assist Orange
County cities, the County of Orange and
special districts in meeting federal Clean
Water Act standards for urban runoff.
Project X is intended to augment, not
replace existing transportation-related
water quality expenditures and to
emphasize high-impact capital
improvements over local operations and
maintenance costs.

In May 2010, the Board approved a
two--tiered approach to fund Project X. The
Tier 1 grant program is designed to
mitigate the more visible forms of
pollutants, such as litter and debris that
collect on roadways and in storm drains.
Tier 1 consists of funding equipment
purchases and upgrades to existing catch
basins and related best management
practices, such as screens and other low-
flow diversion devices.

The Tier 2 grant program consists of funding
regional, potentially multi-jurisdictional, and
capital-intensive projects. Examples
include constructed wetlands,
detention/infiltration basins, and
bioswales which mitigate pollutants such
as heavy metals, organic chemicals, and
sediment and nutrients.

Program Funding:
$68.86 million between 2023 and 2032.

Status:
To date, the Board has awarded over
$30 million to fund 199 Tier 1 projects
across the County through 11 rounds of
funding since M2 inception. The 12th call
was released in early 2022 for
approximately $3 million and

programming recommendations are
anticipated in late 2022. The Board has
also awarded approximately $27.89
million for 22 Tier 2 projects in 12 cities
and the County of Orange.

The 2022 Next 10 Plan will continue to
commit to annual Tier 1 calls. The timing
for the next Tier 2 call is currently being
evaluated, with future calls determined
based on local jurisdiction interest and
cash flow analysis.

Present Day:
Staff estimates that over 45 million
gallons (approximately 105 football fields
at one-foot deep) of trash have been
captured as a result of the installation of
Tier 1 devices since the inception of the
Tier 1 Program in 2011. As the
equipment is in service over time, the
volume of trash captured is expected to
increase. The funded Tier 2 projects,
once fully operational, have the potential
to recharge 157 million gallons of
groundwater annually.

Benefits:
Improvements funded through this
program will improve overall water quality
in Orange County. Funds allocated on a
countywide competitive basis will assist
agencies in meeting federal Clean Water
Act requirements for controlling
transportation-generated pollution.

External Funding:
Local jurisdictions are required to provide
a 20 percent (Tier 1) and 50 percent (Tier
2) minimum local cash match. Tier 2
matching funds may be reduced,
depending on project readiness and
operations and maintenance above the
ten-year minimum requirement.



X. Environmental Cleanup Program

100

Risks:
Local jurisdictions must meet eligibility
requirements and timely-use-of-funds
provisions to M2 receive funding.

Related Projects:
Not Applicable.

Other Involved Agencies:
All local jurisdictions (cities and County of
Orange). Third parties such as
environmental organizations,
homeowner’s associations, non-profit
groups, and water and wastewater public
entities cannot be a lead agency
applicant; however, they could jointly
apply with an eligible applicant.

Assumptions:
Funds will be allocated on a countywide
competitive basis to assist agencies with
improving water quality related to
transportation pollution.

References:

• M2 Eligibility Guidelines

• Project X Guidelines

• Tier 2 Grant Program Planning
Study

• OCTA’s Comprehensive Business
Plan



Appendix



102

This page intentionally left blank



Next 10 Plan Funding Assumptions

103

To determine the status of the M2 Program, staff reviewed and updated cash flows
for the Next 10 Plan for each of the program elements to test whether commitments
provided to the voters as part of the M2 approval in November 2006 remain
achievable. The revenue assumptions are based on the 2022 M2 revenue forecast of
$15 billion using the latest M2 revenue forecast methodology approved by the Board.
The Next 10 Plan also assumes approved TIFIA proceeds, Full Funding Grant
Agreement, and net excess 91 Express Lanes revenues for eligible projects.
Revenues and expenses were merged into a high-level cash flow model. Bonding
assumptions were reviewed to determine the need to address projected negative
ending balances by year (compared to a pay-as-you-go scenario) and are constrained
to minimum debt coverage ratios. An M2 cash flow summary chart showing ending
balances in all years is shown below.

Freeway Program

Revenues for the M2 Freeway Program assumed a proportional share (43 percent) of
net M2 revenue. From inception to 2032, the Freeway Program would receive
approximately $3.65 billion in M2 revenue, $495.44 million in prior bond proceeds,
and $1.65 billion in state/federal grants, $108.93 million in committed proceeds,
$430 million in net excess 91 Express Lanes revenue for eligible projects,
$31.60 million in interest, and $20 million transferred in from M1 for a total of
$6.38 billion in total revenue. Costs for the same period total $5.28 billion (including
debt service payments against prior bonding).



Next 10 Plan Funding Assumptions

104

For the 2022 Next 10 Plan update, forecasted revenues and costs through 2041 were
also tested for the complete M2 Freeway Program to ensure it could be delivered
consistent with commitments. For projects currently in environmental or final design,
project schedules and costs were based on data provided by OCTA’s Project Controls
Department. For projects that have not yet entered the environmental phase,
conceptual estimates were prepared based on a scoring of congestion relief, project
readiness, and cost escalation risks (associated with project delays). The 2022 update
eliminates the one bond issuance that was anticipated in the 2021 Next 10 Plan; there
are no anticipated issuances looking out to 2041. As always, bonding is constrained
to legal debt coverage ratios, and a Plan of Finance is brought separately to the Board
for approval as needed with refined bond assumptions.

Prior to FY 2022-23, 13 of the 30 freeway projects have been completed, as listed in
the table below.

Completed M2 Freeway Projects
Construction

Complete
Cost*

1. Project A I-5 between SR-55 and SR-57 2021 $38.9

2. Project C, D
I-5 between Avenida Pico and Avenida Vista
Hermosa/Avenida Pico Interchange

2018 $83.6

3. Project C
I-5 between Avenida Vista Hermosa and Pacific
Coast Highway

2017 $75.3

4. Project C
I-5 between Pacific Coast Highway and San
Juan Creek Road

2018 $74.3

5.  Project D I-5, Ortega Highway Interchange 2016 $79.8

6.  Project E
SR-22 Access Improvements at Euclid Street,
Brookhurst Street, and Harbor Boulevard

2008 M1$’s

7.  Project G
SR-57 Northbound from Katella Avenue to
Lincoln Avenue

2015 $38.0

8.  Project G
SR-57 Northbound from Orangethorpe Avenue
to Yorba Linda Boulevard

2014 $52.3

9. Project G
SR-57 Northbound from Yorba Linda Boulevard
to Lambert Road

2014 $54.1

10.  Project H SR-91 Westbound from I-5 to SR-57 2016 $59.2

11.  Project I
SR-91 Westbound from Tustin Avenue
Interchange to SR-55

2016 $42.5

12.  Project J SR-91 between SR-55 to SR-241 2013 $79.7

13.  Project J SR-91 Eastbound from SR-241 to SR-71 2011 $57.8

Completed M2 Freeway Projects Total $735.5

* Cost in millions



Next 10 Plan Funding Assumptions

105



Next 10 Plan Funding Assumptions

106

Streets and Roads

The M2 Streets and Roads Program consists of Project O (RCP), Project P (RTSSP),
and Project Q (LFS). Combined M2 revenues for these programs assume a
proportional share (32 percent) of net M2 revenue. From inception to 2032, the Streets
and Roads Program would receive approximately $2.72 billion in M2 revenue,
$40.27 million in interest, $121.62 million in prior bond proceeds, and $621.10 million
in M1 and state/federal grants (primarily for the OC Bridges Program), for a total of
$3.50 billion in total revenue. This includes $16.89 million in SB 1 funding leveraged
for Project P. Costs for the same period would total approximately $3.24 billion
(including debt service payments against prior bonding).

Part of Project O includes the OC Bridges Program, which funded seven over- or
underpass grade separations that eliminated car and train conflicts along the BNSF
railway in northern Orange County. These grade separations, listed in the table below,
increased safety for everyone traveling through the intersections and eliminated
delays caused by trains.

Completed OC Bridges – Grade Separation Projects
Construction

Complete
Cost*

1. Project O Kraemer Boulevard (Anaheim/Placentia) 2014 $63.8

2. Project O Placentia Avenue (Fullerton/Placentia) 2014 $64.5

3. Project O Orangethorpe Avenue (Anaheim/Placentia) 2016 $105.9

4. Project O Tustin Avenue/Rose Drive (Anaheim/Placentia) 2016 $96.6

5. Project O Lakeview Avenue (Anaheim/Placentia) 2017 $110.7

6. Project O Raymond Avenue (Fullerton) 2018 $126.2

7. Project O State College Boulevard (Fullerton) 2018 $99.6

Completed OC Bridges – Grade Separation Projects Total $667.3

*Cost in millions



Next 10 Plan Funding Assumptions

107

Transit Program

The M2 Transit Program consists of Project R (High Frequency Metrolink Service),
Project S (Transit Extensions to Metrolink), Project T (Metrolink Gateways), Project U
(Seniors/Disabled Persons Mobility Programs), Project V (Community-Based
Transit/Circulators), and Project W (Safe Transit Stops). Revenues for the M2 Transit
Program assume a proportional share (approximately 25 percent) of net M2 revenue.
From inception to 2032, the Transit Program would receive approximately
$2.12 billion in M2 revenue, $51.68 million in prior bond proceeds, $407.40 million in
external revenue, $45.65 million transferred from M1, and $17.11 million in interest for
a total of $2.64 billion. The cash flow includes $148.96 million in Federal New Starts
funding, $108.13 million in federal CMAQ, and $25.59 million in State Cap-and-Trade
for the OC Streetcar project. Expenses for this same time period total $2.49 billion
(including debt service payments against prior bonding). The unprogrammed balance
for Project S allows for the option of an additional future transit connection project.

Environmental Cleanup Program

The M2 ECP consists of Project X (Cleanup Highway and Street Runoff that Pollutes
Beaches). Revenues for the M2 ECP assume two percent of gross annual M2 sales
tax revenue. From inception to 2032, the ECP would receive approximately
$176.07 million in M2 revenue. Expenses for this same time period total $115.30
million.



Common Abbreviations

108

Americans with Disabilities Act ADA
Anaheim Regional Transportation Intermodal Center ARTIC
BNSF Railway Company BNSF
Board of Directors Board
California Department of Fish and Wildlife CDFW
California Department of Transportation Caltrans
California Highway Patrol CHP
California Public Utilities Commission CPUC
California State Transportation Agency CalSTA
California Transportation Commission CTC
Call for Projects Call
Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality CMAQ
Conservation Properties Preserves
Coronavirus COVID-19
Early Action Plan EAP
Environmental Cleanup Allocation Committee ECAC
Environmental Cleanup Program ECP
Environmental Impact Report EIR
Environmental Impact Statement EIS
Environmental Mitigation Program EMP
Federal Highways Administration FHWA
Federal Transit Administration FTA
Fire Management Plan FMP
Fiscal Year FY
Freeway Service Patrol FSP
Full Funding Grant Agreement FFGA
High-Occupancy Vehicle HOV
Infrastructure Construction Cost Pressure Index ICCPI
Interstate 15 I-15
Interstate 405 I-405
Interstate 5 I-5
Interstate 605 I-605
Local Fair Share LFS
Los Angeles-San Diego-San Luis Obispo LOSSAN
Master Plan of Arterial Highways MPAH
Measure M M1
Measure M2 or Renewed Measure M M2
Natural Community Conservation Plan/Habitat Conservation Plan Conservation Plan
Next 10 Delivery Plan Next 10 Plan
Orange County Business Council OCBC
Orange County Transportation Authority OCTA
Ordinance No. 3 Ordinance
Pacific Coast Highway PCH



Common Abbreviations

109

Regional Capacity Program RCP
Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program RTSSP
Resource Management Plan RMP
Right-of-Way ROW
Riverside County Transportation Commission RCTC
Senate Bill 1 SB 1
Senior Mobility Program SMP
Senior Non-Emergency Medical Transportation SNEMT
Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies SAFE
State Highway Account SHA
State Route 133 SR-133
State Route 22 SR-22
State Route 241 SR-241
State Route 55 SR-55
State Route 57 SR-57
State Route 71 SR-71
State Route 73 SR-73
State Route 74 SR-74
State Route 91 SR-91
State Transportation Improvement Program STIP
State Water Resources Control Board SWRCB
Tobacco Settlement Revenue TSR
Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act TIFIA
United States Army Corps of Engineers USACE
United States Fish and Wildlife Service USFWS
Year of Expenditure YOE



ATTACHMENT C

$0

$200

$400

$600

$800

$1,000

$1,200

$1,400

$1,600

$1,800

$
 M

IL
L

IO
N

S

YEAR

2022 Updated Next 10 Delivery Plan
Measure M2 Program Cash Balance



2022 Updated Next 10 Delivery Plan
Progress on Deliverables

1

Significant progress and accomplishments have been made to Measure M2 (M2) since
2007. The 2022 update of the Next 10 Delivery Plan (Next 10 Plan) confirms that M2 can
be delivered consistent with the commitment to voters. To outline a near-term work plan
to promote effectiveness and efficiency, ten deliverables on program and project delivery
have been defined during the ten-year period from fiscal year (FY) 2022-23 through
FY 2031-32.

Freeways

1. Deliver 13 freeway improvement projects through construction (Projects A-M).

Status:
The M2 Freeway Program is currently made up of 30 projects/project segments.
Deliverable 1 includes 13 projects to be delivered through construction as reflected in the
table below. The completion of these projects would bring the total number of completed
projects to 26 by FY 2029-30, which equates to approximately 87 percent of the M2
Freeway Program.

In Construction
Construction

Complete
Cost*

1. Project C, D
Interstate 5 (I-5) between State Route 73 (SR-73) and
Oso Parkway/Avery Parkway Interchange

2024 $195.8

2. Project C, D
I-5 between Oso Parkway and Alicia Parkway/
La Paz Road Interchange

2024 $203.1

3. Project C I-5 between Alicia Parkway and El Toro Road 2024 $165.9

Project C, D I-5 between SR-73 and El Toro Road Landscaping 2026 $12.4

4. Project F
State Route 55 (SR-55) between
Interstate 405 (I-405) and I-5

2026 $503.2

5. Project K I-405 between SR-73 and Interstate 605 (I-605) 2024 $1,560.2

In Design
Construction

Complete
Cost*

6. Project B I-5 between I-405 and Yale Avenue 2029 $230.5

7. Project B I-5 between Yale Avenue and SR-55 2029 $200.4

8. Project G
State Route 57 (SR-57) Northbound from
Orangewood Avenue to Katella Avenue

2028 $71.8

9. Project I
State Route 91 (SR-91) between SR-55 and
Lakeview Avenue

2027 $100.9

ATTACHMENT D



2022 Updated Next 10 Delivery Plan
Progress on Deliverables

2

In Design
Construction

Complete
Cost*

10.Project I SR-91 between La Palma Avenue and SR-55 2028 $208.4

11.Project I SR-91 between Acacia Street and La Palma Avenue 2028 $116.2

12.Project M I-605 Katella Avenue Interchange 2025 $29.0

In Environmental
Construction

Complete
Cost*

13.Project F SR-55 between I-5 and SR-91 2029 $131.3

Deliverable 1 Total $3,729.1

* Cost in millions

2. Prepare remaining freeway improvement projects for delivery (Projects A-M).

Status: The four remaining projects (of the 30 total) are environmentally cleared or on
track to be cleared by FY 2031-32, making them shelf-ready for future advancement.
These projects will continue to be reevaluated for earlier delivery as the Next 10 Plan is
reviewed each year.

Remaining Projects
Environmentally Clear/

Shelf-Ready
Cost

1. Project D I-5 El Toro Road Interchange 2024 $120.51

2. Project G
SR-57 Northbound from Lambert Road to
Tonner Canyon Road

2028 $227.11

3. Project J
SR-91 between State Route 241 and
Interstate 15

2026 $300.01

4. Project L I-405 between I-5 and SR-55 2018 $262.4

Remaining M2 Freeway Projects Total $910.02

* Cost in millions

1 These cost estimates are preliminary and will be updated once the project alternative is selected at the
completion of environmental clearance.
2 The total will be revised once the three remaining projects (projects D, G, and J) have a selected project
alternative and complete environmental clearance.



2022 Updated Next 10 Delivery Plan
Progress on Deliverables

3

Streets and Roads

3. Provide annual competitive funding opportunities for local jurisdictions to
address bottlenecks and gaps in the street system (Project O), synchronize
signals (Project P) and continue flexible funding to local jurisdictions to
support pavement rehabilitation or other transportation needs as appropriate
(Project Q).

Status: As of June 2022, Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) has awarded

approximately $482.0 million in competitive funding through the Regional Capacity

Program (Project O) and Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program (Project P)

through annual calls for projects (call). Additionally, $584.3 million in Local Fair Share

(Project Q) funds have been distributed to local jurisdictions.

Transit

4. Maintain Metrolink service and complete one rail station improvement
(Project R).

Status: In October 2019, three weekday intracounty round trips operating between
Laguna Niguel/Mission Viejo and Fullerton were replaced with two round trips between
Laguna Niguel/Mission Viejo (extended from Fullerton) into Los Angeles. Additional
service changes were scheduled to be implemented in April 2020; however, in
March 2020, all Metrolink services were severely impacted by the statewide enforcement
of stay-at-home orders that resulted from the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.
Metrolink implemented temporary service reductions in March and November 2020 due
to the decline in ridership resulting from these orders. In April 2022, Metrolink partially
restored service in response to increasing ridership, customer feedback and demand for
more train trips. The three lines serving Orange County (Orange County, Inland
Empire-Orange County, and the 91/Perris Valley lines) currently operate 45 weekday
trains, a 17 percent reduction from the 54 weekday trains operated prior to COVID-19.

Close monitoring of Metrolink operations is necessary to ensure sustainability through
2041. As shared with the Board earlier this year, Metrolink ridership has struggled to
recover, continuing the impacts of farebox revenues and cost recovery. To exacerbate
this shortfall, operating costs have increased. Consequently, Metrolink has postponed the
full service restoration that was previously scheduled for implementation in October 2022
in order to manage costs while also working on campaigns to attract more riders.
However, many variables affect ridership recovery, such as prevalence of flexible remote
work policies. Without changes in service levels, ridership growth, and operations and
rehabilitation costs or availability of external funds, the current service cannot be
sustained beyond FY 2035-36. Staff will closely monitor ridership and these variables.
The Next 10 Plan is reviewed annually, which will provide OCTA many opportunities to



2022 Updated Next 10 Delivery Plan
Progress on Deliverables

4

update and adjust assumptions as necessary. OCTA will continue to actively engage with
Metrolink and the other member agencies to monitor ridership levels and the
corresponding financial impacts to M2.

Another impact to Metrolink in Orange County is the on-going railroad track stabilization
effort in the City of San Clemente. In September 2021, a failing slope severely degraded
the railroad track structure. Emergency repair efforts were taken between late 2021 and
early 2022. However, recent higher tidal events coupled with movement of an ancient
slide have continued to impact the stability of the track, leading to a suspension of
passenger rail service in this area. On October 3, 2022, the Board adopted a resolution
to authorize OCTA to take all necessary actions to address the emergency need for
railroad track stabilization. These repairs are funded from the commuter rail fund and
some state emergency funds for this phase of the work. Long-term solutions need to be
developed to ensure the ability to provide service in this portion of the County, the cost
for which is undetermined at present.  Future updates to the Next 10 Plan will need to
consider the financial implications of the long-term track improvement needs.

Within this program, funding is provided for rail corridor and station improvements to
accommodate increased passenger train service including station upgrades, parking
expansions, and safety enhancements. One station improvement project is anticipated to
be completed during the Next 10 Plan timeframe. Construction on the Anaheim Canyon
Metrolink Station Improvements Project began in May 2021 and is anticipated to be
complete in early 2023.

5. Complete construction, secure vehicles, begin operating the OC Streetcar,
and work with local jurisdictions to consider recommendations from
planning studies to guide development of future high-quality transit
connections (Project S).

Status: The 4.15-mile OC Streetcar will serve the Santa Ana Regional Transportation
Center through Downtown Santa Ana and the Civic Center to Harbor Boulevard in the
City of Garden Grove. Activities underway include construction of the tracks, installation
of rail and overhead poles, communication with third parties on utility relocation, and
continued coordination with the Federal Transit Administration. Other significant activities
include construction of the maintenance and storage facility and an issued limited notice
to proceed for the operations and maintenance contract. The first seven cars are in the
final stages of equipping and the last car is in final assembly. Construction is anticipated
to be complete in 2024.

6. Support expanded mobility choices for seniors and persons with disabilities
(Project U).

Status: Project U is comprised of three programs: the Senior Mobility Program (SMP),
the Senior Non-Emergency Medical Transportation (SNEMT) program, and the Fare



2022 Updated Next 10 Delivery Plan
Progress on Deliverables

5

Stabilization Program. Since inception, approximately $105.3 million3 has been provided
to these three programs. The SMP provides funding to participating cities to design and
implement transit service that best fits the needs of seniors (60 and above) in their
communities. The SNEMT program provides funding to the County of Orange Office on
Aging for senior (60 and above) transportation to and from medical appointments,
dentists, therapies, exercise programs, testing, and other health-related trips at a low cost
to the rider than would otherwise be available. The Fare Stabilization Program provides
stable discounted fares for seniors and persons with disabilities by lowering the cost of
riding transit.

7. Work with local jurisdictions to maintain successful community circulator
projects and potentially provide grant opportunities for expanded or new
local transit services (Project V).

Status: Since inception, OCTA has approved 35 projects and ten planning studies
totaling approximately $52 million through four calls. The most recent Project V call was
programmed by the OCTA Board on April 13, 2020. OCTA receives ridership reports from
local agencies on a regular basis to monitor the success of awarded services against
performance measures adopted by the Board. As of June 2022, 17 projects are active,
ten have been cancelled (primarily due to low ridership), five are suspended or not
initiated as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, and three have been completed. Staff
continues to work with local jurisdictions through letters of interest requests, workshops,
Comprehensive Transportation Funding Program Guidelines revisions, calls, and
cooperative agreement amendments to fine-tune this program and facilitate successful
project implementation, especially in light of the COVID-19 pandemic.

8. Continue to improve the top 100 busiest transit stops to enhance the
customer experience (Project W).

Status: Through three calls, the Board has approved $3.1 million to improve 122
city-initiated improvement projects at the busiest OCTA transit stops. The program is
designed to ease transfers between bus lines and provide passenger amenities such as
installation of bus benches or seating, shelters, improved lighting, and other passenger
related amenities. To date, 49 improvements have been completed, 63 improvements are
in various stages of implementation, and ten improvements have been cancelled by the
awarded agency.

3 Only includes disbursed funds. On October 12, 2020, the Board approved a temporary exception to the
SMP guidelines which allows for OCTA to hold allocations in reserve for agencies with suspended services
due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The funds will be held until the State lifts the State of Emergency or the
agency resumes transportation services, whichever occurs first.



2022 Updated Next 10 Delivery Plan
Progress on Deliverables

6

Environmental

9. Ensure the ongoing preservation of purchased open space, which provides
comprehensive mitigation of the environmental impacts of freeway
improvements and higher-value environmental benefits in exchange for
streamlined project approvals (projects A-M).

Status: The M2 freeway Environmental Mitigation Program (EMP) includes seven
conservation properties totaling more than 1,300 acres and 12 restoration projects
covering nearly 350 acres. In 2017, OCTA received biological resource permits after
completing a state and federal Natural Community Conservation Plan/Habitat
Conservation Plan (Conservation Plan) for the EMP, allowing streamlined project
approvals for the M2 freeway improvement projects. The Conservation Plan also includes
a streamlined process for coordination of streambed alteration agreements. In 2018,
OCTA secured programmatic permits and assurances for federal and state clean water
permitting requirements. Receipt of these permits represents the culmination of years of
collaboration and support by the Board, environmental community, and regulatory
agencies.

OCTA makes annual endowment deposits of approximately $2.9 million. As of
June 30, 2022, the endowment balance was $19,332,924. While the performance of the
endowment fund will affect the time frame for full funding, current projections indicate that
OCTA is on track to meet the target of $46.2 million in FY 2027-28.

10. Work with the Environmental Cleanup Allocation Committee to develop the
next tiers of water quality programs to prevent the flow of trash, pollutants,
and debris into waterways from transportation facilities. In addition, focus
on improving water quality on a regional scale that encourages partnerships
among the local agencies as part of the Environmental Cleanup Program
(Project X).

Status: In May 2010, the Board approved a two-tier approach to funding Project X.
Tier 1 consists of funding equipment purchases and upgrades to existing catch basins
and related best management practices, such as screens and other low-flow diversion
devices. Tier 2 consists of funding regional, potentially multi-jurisdictional, and
capital-intensive projects. Since inception, the Board has approved over $30 million in
funding for 199 Tier 1 projects through 11 calls and $27.9 million for 22 Tier 2 projects
through two calls.



Measure M2



2

• Purpose

• Accomplishments

• Financial Outlook

• Deliverables

• Next Steps

Overview



3

M2 Delivery Plans

• Purpose:

• Validate OCTA’s ability to deliver M2

• Outline near-term workplan

• Establish common understanding among stakeholders

• Set baseline upon which future changes are measured

• Provide basis for preparation of OCTA’s annual budgets for
capital projects

• Principles:

• Confirm promised plan can be delivered

• Ensure financial sustainability

• Implement projects and programs expeditiously

M2- Measure M2

OCTA - Orange County Transportation Authority



4

• Freeways
✓ 13 projects completed
✓ 679,000 motorist assists/lane clearances
✓ Endowment to protect mitigation properties

• Streets and Roads
✓ 159 street capacity improvement projects
✓ 125 signal synchronization projects
✓ $584.3 million in flexible funding distributed

• Transit
✓ Station, track, and grade crossing improvements
✓ Expanded Metrolink service
✓ OC Streetcar underway
✓ $105.3 million for expanded mobility choices for of seniors and persons with disabilities
✓ 25 community-based circulators
✓ 112 bus stop enhancements

• Environmental Cleanup
✓ 206 water quality projects
✓ 45.3 million gallons of trash collected

M2 Accomplishments to Date

Note: Figures reflect only active or completed projects



5

• Revenue:
• $15 billion of M2 funds

• $3.6 billion of external funds

• Conservative debt service coverage ratios

• No additional bond issuances

• Minimum cash balance of $579 million

• Ending cash balance of $699 million in 2041

Updated Financial Framework



6

Freeways

• Deliver 13 freeway projects

• Continue annual endowment deposits

Streets and Roads

• Return 18 percent to local agencies for transportation needs

• Provide annual grants to address street bottlenecks and gaps

• Fund ongoing coordination of 2,200 traffic signals

Transit

• Continue operation of Metrolink and fund station improvements

• Complete OC Streetcar construction and begin operations

• Offer enhanced mobility options for seniors and persons with disabilities

• Continue to support local transit circulators

• Continue to improve the top 100 busiest transit stops

Environmental Cleanup

• Provide ongoing grants for water cleanup

Next 10 Delivery Plan Deliverables Summary



7

M2 Program Cash Balance

$0

$200

$400

$600

$800

$1,000

$1,200

$1,400

$1,600

$1,800

$
 M

IL
L

IO
N

S

YEAR

2022 Updated Next 10 Delivery Plan
M2 Program Cash Balance



8

• Funding
• Increased market pressures

• Changing external funding policy shifts and priorities

• Metrolink operations

• Regulatory
• New environmental requirements

• Project approvals

Potential Risks



9

• M2 plan deliverable as promised

• Continued investments to all modes

• M2 revenue forecast exceeds

pre-pandemic level

• High inflationary environment anticipated

in 2023 and 2024

• Need a sustainable Metrolink plan

2022 Update – Key Takeaways



10

• Distribute the updated Next 10 Delivery Plan to local jurisdictions

and stakeholders

• Work with transportation partners on delivery of the Next 10

Delivery Plan

• Monitor the risks associated with the changing environment and

return to the Board of Directors with updates as appropriate

Next Steps



Orange County Transportation Authority
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282)

October 13, 2022

To: Transit Committee

From: Darrell E. Johnson, Chief Executive Officer

Subject: OC Streetcar Project Quarterly Update

Overview

The Orange County Transportation Authority is implementing the OC Streetcar
project, and updates are provided to the Board of Directors on a quarterly
basis. This report covers OC Streetcar project activities from
July 2022 through September 2022.

Recommendation

Receive and file as an information item.

Background

The Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA), in cooperation with the
cities of Santa Ana and Garden Grove, is implementing a modern streetcar
running between the Santa Ana Regional Transportation Center in
the City of Santa Ana (City) and the intersection of Harbor Boulevard and
Westminster Avenue in the City of Garden Grove. The OC Streetcar
project (Project) will improve transit connectivity and accessibility, increase
transit options, relieve congestion, and provide benefits to the community and
traveling public. The Project is being implemented as part of Measure M2
Project S – Transit Extensions to Metrolink, approved by Orange County voters
in November 2006.

Construction of the 4.15-mile alignment involves complex and specialized work,
including the installation of embedded track in existing streets, an overhead
contact system (OCS) to supply power to the vehicles, stops with canopies,
bridges, and a maintenance and storage facility (MSF).

The Project includes ten streetcar stops in each direction (four shared center
platforms and six side platforms in each direction, for a total of 16 platforms).
Each stop includes a canopy, benches, leaning rails, trash cans, lighting,



OC Streetcar Project Quarterly Update Page 2

variable message signs, video cameras, a public address system, and ticket
vending machines, which will be procured separately. Platforms will be
14 inches high to enable level boarding to streetcar vehicles. The installation of
new traffic signals and transit signal priority at intersections along the route is
also included.

The MSF can accommodate up to 15 modern streetcar vehicles, as well as all
necessary administration, operations, vehicle maintenance, parts storage, and
maintenance-of-way needs for the Project. The MSF will also include secured
exterior vehicle storage, a wye track for turning vehicles end-for-end, a
free-standing vehicle wash, employee parking, and fire department/delivery
access.

On March 26, 2018, the OCTA Board of Directors (Board) awarded a contract to
Siemens Mobility, Inc., (Siemens) for the manufacture and delivery of
eight modern streetcar vehicles, spare parts, and special tools. On
September 24, 2018, the Board awarded the Project construction contract to
Walsh Construction Company II, LLC (Walsh). On November 30, 2018, the
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) executed the Full Funding Grant
Agreement (FFGA), securing $149,000,000 in federal New Starts discretionary
funding for the Project. In February 2019, the FFGA was funded through the FTA
Transit Award Management System, which was the last step necessary to begin
the drawdown of federal funding. Through August 2022, $105,179,362 has been
drawn down on the FFGA. On May 22, 2020, the Board awarded a contract to
Herzog Transit Services, Inc., to provide operations and maintenance services for
an initial start-up and pre-revenue period, and a five-year revenue term.

Discussion

The following is the status of ongoing project activities related to construction,
vehicle manufacturing, and public outreach.

Construction

Construction is progressing with several construction activities continuing to
advance in all segments of the Project. These include the substantial completion
of the Santa Ana River and Westminster bridges with the placement of concrete
plinths and rails and installation of walls, conduit and piping, roof curbs and
skylights, girder painting, and shop tracks at the Maintenace and Storage
Facility (MSF).  Final grading for the MSF yard is ongoing. Grade crossings are
complete at Fairview Street and Fifth Street and 80 percent of the overhead
catenary system poles have been installed.

In the downtown Santa Ana area, the Project achieved a significant milestone
with the completion of several key intersections, including Fourth Street/
Main Street,  Santa Ana Boulevard/Main Street, Fourth Street/Sycamore Street,



OC Streetcar Project Quarterly Update Page 3

as well as Ross Street/Fourth Street, which was completed in advance of the
start of the school year at Nova Academy. Fourth Street is currently opened in
both directions to vehicular traffic from Sycamore Street to French Street.  Track
installation also occurred in Segment 5 on Santa Ana Boulevard between
Santiago Street and Minter Street. Overall, approximately 75 percent of the
embedded track has been installed throughout the alignment. Attachment A
reflects the status of track installation.

Other ongoing construction activities include preparation of various street
intersections for installation of new traffic signal poles, preparation of three sites
for installation of Southern California Edison switchgears and traction power
substations, reconstruction of Fourth Street/Broadway Street and Santa Ana
Boulevard/Broadway Street intersections, embedded track installation along
Fourth Street from Ross Street to Broadway Street, excavation and grading for
the Santa Ana Regional Transporation Center (SARTC) station, and building
platform stations at French Street, Sycamore Street, Flower Street, Bristol Street,
Raitt Street, and Harbor Boulevard.

Vehicle and Operations

Siemens continues production of eight S700 streetcar vehicles. Currently,
Cars 1-7 are in the final stages of manufacturing with installation of the last
remaining vehicle components. Car 8 is in final assembly and preparations are
underway to commence static and dynamic testing at the end of the year.

The First Article Inspection (FAI) for Car 1, conducted in May 2022, had open
items for reinspection that was conducted in mid-September 2022. Most of the
open items were signed off at this reinspection, with the remaining items to be
closed by the end of the year. Siemens is preparing FAI for Car 3, and the
anticipated inspection is mid-October 2022.

Ongoing coordination with Siemens on the design features and FAIs of multiple
vehicle components has impacted the anticipated dates for delivery of the S700
vehicles. OCTA staff is in negotiations with Siemens for an updated master
program schedule, including options for vehicle storage at the Siemens facility
to align with the availability of the project infrastructure needed to accept and
test the vehicles.

In August 2022, staff inventoried approximately $1 million dollars of spare parts
and equipment which is now in storage at Siemens. OCTA staff is in negotiations
with Siemens to extend the warranty for spare parts and special tools over the
next year. Staff anticipates returning to the Board in early 2023 with any contract
amendments required for Siemens as a result of these discussions.



OC Streetcar Project Quarterly Update Page 4

Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Contract

A limited Notice to Proceed (NTP) for the O&M contractor, Herzog, was issued
in May 2021. The Herzog O&M general manager has been coordinating with
OCTA staff on several processes, which will be performed by Herzog during
system integration testing, pre-revenue operations, and once revenue service
begins. Over 60 documents have been submitted by Herzog, which range from
standard operating procedures, training documents, and submittals for state and
federal oversight. Based on the Project schedule and anticipated Revenue
Service Date, a second limited NTP was issued in April 2022. During the
reporting quarter, Herzog prepared the initial draft of the Public Transportation
Agency Safety Plan, an FTA and California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC)
requirement, to develop safety plans that include the processes and procedures
to implement safety management systems. The full NTP will be issued to Herzog
in early 2023 pending negotiations related to any required cost and schedule
adjustments.

Public Outreach

Outreach efforts between July 2022 through September 2022 continued to
include bilingual notifications for construction activities, in-person bilingual
outreach presentation meetings, information tables at community events, and
marketing support activities through the Eat Shop Play program.

In support of the special track work on Ross Street adjacent to Nova Academy,
the outreach team provided ongoing status reports to school staff and worked
with them to identify and resolve issues, such as alternate parking and drop-off
areas, flaggers for special events, and associated coordination with OCTA bus
operations to accommodate the closure of Ross Street between Santa Ana
Boulevard and Third Street.

Other targeted construction activities requiring outreach support included
opening of the Main Street intersections, closure of the Broadway Street
intersections and initiation of track installation in the final two blocks in
Segment 4 between Broadway Street and Ross Street. The outreach team
distributed bilingual notices, posted progress information on social media outlets,
and partnered with the City’s distribution channels to inform the public of ongoing
activities. Additional targeted bilingual notices were distributed in Segment 5 to
alert residents and businesses about the concrete pours to affix the streetcar
track to the track bed.

Outreach staff provided support at an in-person event at Garfield Elementary
school to educate parents and staff about the benefits of the Project, as well as
information about the construction activities in Segment 5. In September 2022,
Downtown Santa Ana restaurants held their first in-person Savor Santa Ana
event since 2019. The event was very successful and exceeded its attendance



OC Streetcar Project Quarterly Update Page 5

target with more than 1,500 attendees. Visitors to the OC Streetcar table
acknowledged completed work looked great, and they see the vision of how the
streetcar will bring riders to Downtown. Outreach staff also provided project
information to several hundred County of Orange employees who attended an
Employee Appreciation event sponsored by Supervisor Foley’s office.
Employees received project information and the Eat Shop Play walking map of
downtown business locations.

On September 15, 2022, OCTA staff provided a presentation to Downtown
merchants at a public outreach meeting held at Frida Cinema. Project progress
information and upcoming activities were shared. Merchant’s questions focused
on the anticipated reopening of the Broadway Street intersection, upcoming
completion of the track installation between Broadway Street and Ross Street
and restoration of parallel parking on the south side of Fourth Street. Attendance
was significantly reduced from previous meetings indicating that since the road
has opened between Sycamore Street to French Street, questions about
construction progress have lessened.

The Eat Shop Play program has more than 90 participants, and the targeted
marketing support for businesses continues. In addition to paid social media ads,
ads are appearing both inside and outside OCTA buses, as well as on digital
billboards, including a recently added billboard on State Route 57.

Project information was also shared at a presentation to the Tustin Rotary Club,
WTS Mentoring Committee tour, and to the two business associations in the
downtown area.

Cost and Schedule

In December 2021, the Board approved a revised Project budget of
$509.54 million. Staff continues to coordinate with the construction contractor
and vehicle manufacturer to achieve the March 2024 revenue service date as
presented to the Board in December 2021.

Staff will be conducting a Project risk assessment consistent with achieving
70 percent construction completion with the FTA and CPUC in attendance.  Staff
will return to the Board to present the results of the risk analysis, including any
adjustments to the Project cost and schedule, in early 2023.

Next Steps

Activities in the next quarter will focus on construction of the remaining track on
Fourth Street between Broadway Street and Ross Street, the westbound track
between Mortimer Street and Santiago Street, and the track into the SARTC
station. Work will also continue on the station stop platforms, the installation of
street pavement, curbs, gutters, and OCS and traffic signal poles.  Next steps



OC Streetcar Project Quarterly Update Page 6

for vehicles include finalizing vehicle equipping, ongoing static and dynamic
testing, and completing vehicle FAIs. Upcoming outreach activities include
ongoing coordination with the construction team and the City regarding traffic
control measures that are needed for the in-street embedded track installation
and continued coordination with the City ford business support.

Summary

An OC Streetcar project update covering July 2022 through September 2022 is
provided for the Orange County Transportation Authority Board of Directors’
review.

Attachment

A. Project Alignment - Status of Track Installation

Prepared by: Approved by:

Ross Lew, P.E. James G. Beil, P.E.
Sr. Program Manager
(714) 560-5775

Executive Director, Capital Programs
(714) 560-5646



AR R
tS   ttiaR W

 nretse
A

ev

tseroF
A

ev

cificaP
A

ev

tS nairepseH

tS lotsirB

tS rekaB

tS notlehS

tS rewolF

yawdaorBtS ssoR

tS eromacyS

tS niaM

tS hsuB

tS noegrupS

tS hcnerF

tS nagoL

Minter St

Lacy St

Garfield St

Poinsettia St

Santiago St

azalP retneC civiC

tS notraP

6th St 6th St

5th St

W  5th St

5th St
4th St

Santa Ana Blvd

Santa Ana Blvd

AM
EES ENIL HCT

THGIR EVOBA

MATCH LINE SEE BELOW LEFT

Santa Ana Blvd

tS remitr o M

W 4th St

N Townsend St

Westm
inster Ave

Harbor

Willow     DrBoyer
Ave

Blvd

Civic 
Center Dr

Fairview St

Redwood

W 5th St

N Townsend StEnglish St

N Sunset StN Hawley St

N Daisy Ave
Fairlawn Ave

N Sullivan St
Nantucket Pl

Seaboard Cir

West St

Harbor Blvd

Santa Ana
Blvd

Bristol

Flower
Ross

Sycamore

Harbor/Westminster

Fairview

Raitt

French

Lacy

SARTC

Potential Future
Stop at Willowick

Railroad Crossing
Gates

Willowick Municipal

Willowick Royal
Mobile Home Park

Santa Ana
River Channel

Spurgeon Intermediate
School

A&M
Metals, Inc.

Templo
Calvario

Golf Course

Santa Ana
Regional

Transportation
Center

(SARTC)

Maintenance and Storage
Facility (MSF)

Santa Ana
River

OCTA Garden Grove
Annex Control Center

Santa Ana
River Bridge

TPSS No. 1
Westminster

TPSS No. 2
MSF

Westminster Ave
Bridge Maximum

Speed
is 44 MPH

Railroad Crossing
Gates

TPSS No. 3
Civic Center

TPSS No. 4
SARTC

Maximum
Speed
is 35 MPH

Maximum
Speed
is 25 MPH

Maximum Speed
is 35 MPH

Maximum
Speed
is 35 MPH

County Building
16 Development

Bike Lane

Bike Lane

Santa Ana
River

Bike Lane

N
O

R
TH

- Traction Power Substation (TPSS)

- New Traffic Signals
- Fiber Optic Duct Bank

Legend

- Existing Traffic Signals

- Pedestrian Signal
- Station Platform

Recreation
Trail

Santa Ana
River Bike Trail (East Side)

NORTH

Recreation
Trail

Prepared by HDR, Inc.
05.10.2018

Project Alignment - Status of Track Installation
ATTACHMENT A

JAHECHT
Polygonal Line

JAHECHT
Polygonal Line

JAHECHT
Line

JAHECHT
Line

JAHECHT
Polygonal Line

JAHECHT
Polygonal Line

JAHECHT
Polygonal Line

JAHECHT
Polygonal Line

JAHECHT
Line

rsanchez2
Textbox
Track Installed as of September 30, 2022

rsanchez2
Textbox

rsanchez2
Rectangle

JAHECHT
Polygonal Line

JAHECHT
Polygonal Line

Gracie Guerrero
Polygonal Line



OC Streetcar Project Quarterly Update



• Pacific Electric Right-of-Way (PEROW)

• Substantial completion of the Santa Ana River and Westminster bridges with ongoing placement of

concrete plinths and rails.

• Maintenance and Storage Facility

• Construction continues and includes installation of walls, conduit and piping, roof curbs and skylights,

girder painting, and shop tracks.

Construction – Segment 1

2



Westminster and Santa Ana River Bridges

3

Westminster Bridge plinths Santa Ana River Bridge plinths



Maintenance and Storage Facility

4

Painted ceiling girdersExterior walls



Maintenance and Storage Facility

5

Southern California Edison (SCE)

metering switchgear
Interior walls, piping and heating, ventilation,

and air conditioning



Construction – Segments 2 through 5

6

• Key completions in Segments 2, 4, and 5



Progress on Segment 2B

7
Segment 2B Eastbound - Santa Ana Boulevard

Completed Eight Track Pours

Near Flower StreetNear Bristol Street



8

Progress on Segment 4 (Fourth Street)

Fourth Street/Ross Street Intersection Reopened on August 15, 2022

Facing north on Ross Street First day of school at Nova Academy



9

Progress on Main Street Intersections

Fourth Street/Main Street and Santa Ana Boulevard/Main Street

Intersections Reopened on August 29, 2022

Fourth Street/Main Street Santa Ana Boulevard/Main Street



Progress on Fourth Street

10

Sycamore Street Main Street to

Bush Street

Spurgeon Street



Fourth Street Stations

11
French Street Station Platform Sycamore Street Station Platform



Fourth Street (Ross Street to Broadway Street)

12

Fourth Street Looking East from Ross Street Fourth Street Looking East from Broadway



Progress on Segment 5 (Santa Ana Boulevard)

13

Six Track Pours from Lacy Street to Santiago Street



Track Installation Progress

14



Upcoming Construction Activities

15

• Segment 1 – Complete remaining bridge and track work.

• Maintenance and Storage Facility – Continue site and building work. Start track work to

building.

• Segment 2 – Significantly complete the remaining work, including asphalt and concrete (AC)

paving, and start conditional acceptance with City of Santa Ana (City) staff.

• Segment 4 – Complete remaining track installation and reopen last two blocks to traffic. Install

pavers, electrical, and overhead contact system items. Continue conditional acceptance with

City staff.

• Segment 5 – Start AC paving for eastbound direction. Continue excavation for Santa Ana

Regional Transportation Center station. Possibly start work at Santiago Street intersection.

• Continue platform stations at French Street, Sycamore Street, Flower Street, Bristol Street,

Raitt Street, and Harbor Boulevard.

• Installation of new traffic signal poles at many intersections.

• Installation of SCE metering switchgears and Traction Power Substations.



Vehicles

16

• Cars 1-7 are in the final stages of manufacturing with

installation of the last remaining vehicle components.

• First Article Inspection of Car 1 was successful with

only minor action items and will be completed by the

end of the year.

• Car 8 is in final assembly and preparations are

underway to commence static and dynamic testing at

the end of the year.

• Negotiations ongoing with Siemens Mobility, Inc.,

regarding vehicle storage to align with significant

completion of the maintenance and storage facility,

tracks and power needed to accept and test the

vehicles.



OC Streetcar Vehicle Advertising

17

OC Streetcar Advertising Sales

• 2018 - Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) Board of Directors approved

OC Streetcar vehicle graphics

• OCTA currently contracts with a private vendor to sell advertising space on the bus fleet

• Request for proposals release in February 2023 to combine OC Streetcar and OC Bus

advertising sales in one procurement



Project Budget and Cost Status

18

As of August 31, 2022

SCC = Federal Transit Administration Standard Cost Category

FFGA - Full Funding Grant Agreement

SCC CODE DESCRIPTION
APPROVED FFGA

BUDGET

APPROVED OCTA

BUDGET*
COMMITMENTS

July 2022

EXPENDITURES

CURRENT

EXPENDITURES

CURRENT

FORECAST**

PROPOSED FFGA

BUDGET /

FORECAST

VARIANCE

10 GUIDEWAY AND TRACK ELEMENTS $48,334,164 $48,803,358 $48,275,212 $37,472,594 $38,151,159 $48,365,324 $438,034

20 STATIONS, STOPS, TERMINALS, INTERMODAL $9,353,108 $9,785,451 $9,134,834 $3,321,096 $3,308,731 $9,785,451 $0

30
SUPPORT FACILITIES: YARDS, SHOPS,

ADMINISTRATION BUIDLINGS
$43,125,724 $47,073,200 $46,812,640 $17,179,237 $18,420,682 $47,337,640 ($264,440)

40 SITEWORK AND SPECIAL CONDITIONS $84,725,622 $103,699,790 $89,106,211 $74,297,442 $74,764,184 $101,654,536 $2,045,254

50 SYSTEMS $63,722,009 $72,278,941 $74,052,057 $40,684,189 $41,406,577 $74,497,789 ($2,218,848)

CONSTRUCTION SUBTOTAL (10-50) $249,260,628 $281,640,740 $267,380,954 $172,954,558 $176,051,333 $281,640,740 $0

60
RIGHT-OF-WAY, LAND, EXISTING

IMPROVEMENTS
$8,604,055 $7,174,328 $6,820,417 $6,760,953 $6,760,953 $7,174,328 $0

70 VEHICLES $57,709,177 $63,137,294 $59,271,923 $32,562,618 $33,196,242 $63,137,294 $0

80 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $74,414,933 $139,815,499 $116,998,842 $84,554,286 $85,974,488 $139,815,499 $0

SUBTOTAL (10-80) $389,988,793 $491,767,860 $450,472,136 $296,832,416 $301,983,016 $491,767,860 $0

90 UNALLOCATED CONTINGENCY $17,771,172 $17,771,172 $ - $ - $ - $17,771,172 $0

100 FINANCE CHARGES $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$

-

TOTAL PROJECT (10-100) $407,759,966 $509,539,032 $450,472,136 $296,832,416 $301,983,016 $509,539,032 $0



Public Outreach Program

19

❑ Fourth Street Business Outreach

❑ Santa Ana City Council

❑ Field Meetings

❑ Door-to-Door Outreach

❑ Downtown Business Associations

❑ Eat Shop Play Program

❑ Construction Alerts

❑ Crowd Fence Covers

❑ Parking Structure Banners

❑ Eat Shop Play Banners

❑ Wayfinding Banners

❑ Newspaper, Radio, and Spotify Ads

❑ Radio Remotes

❑ E-toolkits

❑ Movie Theater ads

❑ Electronic Billboards

❑ Bus Ads

❑ Geo-fencing

❑ Go-Pro Videos

❑ Tours

❑ Eat Shop Play Walking Map

❑ Lunch Meet-Ups

Eat, Shop, Play Advertisement Video

https://vimeo.com/750565758

	1 - TOC Agenda 12.13.22
	2 - Info Items Cover
	3 - 12.13.22 Info Items List
	4 - 2022-10 TOC Minutes
	5 - Attendance 2022-2023
	6 - Action Items Cover
	7 - Rev & Exp
	Stmt Rev & Exp (1)
	Net Tax Rev (2)
	Rev Exp Sum (3)

	8 - Presentation Items Cover
	9 - Staff Report
	9A - Attachment A
	9B - Attachment B
	9C - Attachment C
	9D - Attachment D
	9E - Presentation
	10 - Staff Report
	10A - Attachment A
	10B - Presentation
	10.13.22 Transit- OC Streetcar Project Update - PPT CLEAN
	OC Streetcar Project Quarterly Update 
	Slide 2 
	Westminster and Santa Ana River Bridges
	Maintenance and Storage Facility
	Maintenance and Storage Facility
	Slide 6 
	Progress on Segment 2B
	Progress on Segment 4 (Fourth Street) �
	Progress on Main Street Intersections�
	 Progress on Fourth Street�
	Fourth Street Stations
	Fourth Street (Ross Street to Broadway Street)
	Progress on Segment 5 (Santa Ana Boulevard) 
	Track Installation Progress 
	Upcoming Construction Activities
	Vehicles
	OC Streetcar Vehicle Advertising
	Project Budget and Cost Status
	Public Outreach Program 



